
     
                    
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 

Vice Mayor Victor Vazquez, Ph. D.                                  Councilman Bob Best  

Councilwoman Jacky Bravo                          Councilman Walter Fajet, Ph. D. 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred 
from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the 
majority vote of the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 

 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, November 14, 2022 – 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida  

 (In-person and virtually. See pages 3-4 for additional information) 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

2. Invocation: Councilwoman Jacky Bravo 

 Pledge of Allegiance: Audience will lead the Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag 
   

3. Agenda / Order of Business 
 

4. Awards & Presentations:   
 
A) Recognition of the Artist of the Month for November 2022 Springview Elementary 

Fourth and Fifth Grade Art Students; inspired by French Artist Henri Rousseau’s landscapes 
 

5. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general City business, may do so in 
person (subject to capacity restrictions) or virtually by following the instructions on pages 3-4. This 
portion of the meeting also includes any pre-screened video submittals.  The purpose of Open 
Forum is to encourage residents and members of the public to address their concerns and make comments 
on any item.  The City Council will not enter into a dialogue at this time. City staff will gladly address any 
question, issue, and/or comment after the meeting. The Mayor is the presiding officer of all Council 
meetings and shall conduct the meetings accordingly. 

 

 

6. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) October 24, 2022 – Regular Meeting 
B) October 27, 2022 – Special Meeting 

 

7. Reports from Boards & Commissions:   
 

A) Advisory Board Update by Recreation Commission Board Member Fred Gonzalez 
B) Advisory Board Update by Board of Adjustment Chair Ernie Aloma  
 

8. Public Hearings:   

REVISED 



 

A) Ordinance – Second Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Of Miami Springs, 
Florida, Amending The City’s Comprehensive Plan By Adopting The Evaluation And Appraisal 
Report (Ear) Based Comprehensive Plan Amendments; Providing For Transmittal; Providing For 
Conflicts; Providing For Severability; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 

B) Ordinance – Second Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Of Miami Springs, 
Florida, Adopting An Amendment To The Water Supply Facilities Work Plan; Providing For 
Transmittal; Providing For Conflicts; Providing For Severability; And Providing For An Effective 
Date 

 

C) Ordinance – Second Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Of Miami Springs, 
Florida, Approving A Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment To The City’s Future Land 
Use Map (FLUM) From “Public Facility” To “Single Family Residential” For A 37,751 Square Foot 
(±0.86 Acre) Parcel Of Property Generally Located At 1101 Wren Avenue; Providing For 
Authorization; Providing For Conflicts; Providing For Severability; And Providing For An Effective 
Date 

 

D) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs, 
Florida, Approving A Tentative Plat Application By Enclave At Miami Springs, LLC For Property 
Located At 1101 Wren Avenue (Folio No. 05-3024-017-0010); Providing For Conditions; Providing 
For Violations; Providing For Authorization; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 

9. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):   
 

A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Selecting Superior Park Systems, Inc. For The Tennis Court Resurfacing Project; 
Authorizing The Execution Of A Construction Contract In An Amount Not To Exceed $30,900; And 
Providing For An Effective Date 

 

B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Accepting A Statewide Surface Restoration And Wastewater Projects State 
Appropriation Grant In The Amount Of $750,000; Approving A State-Funded Grant Agreement 
With The Florida Department Of Environmental Protection (FDEP) Relating To The Hook Square 
Pump House Replacement Project; Providing For Authorization; And Providing For An Effective 
Date 

 

C) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Selecting F&L Fire And Electrical System, Inc. For Citywide Miscellaneous 
Electrical Services Pursuant To Request For Proposals No. 01-22/23; Providing For Authorization; 
And Providing For An Effective Date 
 

10. Old Business: None. 
 

11. New Business: None. 

 

12. Other Business:   

 
A) Update on Annexation 

 



B) Request to Fill the Vacancy Employee Pension Board  
  

13. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 

B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 

 

14. Adjourn 



 CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 

 
The City of Miami Springs will hold a Council meeting on: 

Monday, November 14, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. at  

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida  

(Physical Meeting Location) 

 
The meeting agenda is available online at: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings 

 
Elected officials and City staff will participate from the physical meeting location.  

Members of the public may attend the meeting in person at the physical meeting location, or, 
alternatively, may watch or call in to the meeting by following these instructions: 

 

ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON AT THE PHYSICAL MEETING LOCATION 

The meeting will be held in person at the physical meeting location stated above.  
Admission to the physical meeting location is on a first-come, first-serve basis and space is limited.  

Doors will open 30 minutes prior to the meeting start time.  
The City highly encourages those in attendance to wear facial coverings and abide by social distancing as 

recommended by the CDC.   

WATCH THE MEETING 

• Comcast/Xfinity: Channel 77 (Meeting will not be live broadcast, but will be available for later viewing) 

• YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC2at9KNnqUxZRSw1UkhdHLQ/featured 

• From your computer/mobile device: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings  

CALL IN TO THE PUBLIC MEETING  

Dial 305-805-5151 or 305-805-5152  
(Alternatively, you may also dial the phone numbers below to join the meeting: 

        1 (646) 558 8656, 1 (301) 715 8592, 1 (312) 626 6799, 1 (669) 900 9128, 1 (253) 215 8782,  
1 (346) 248 7799) then input the Meeting ID: 863-9512-4146, followed by #. 

There is no participant ID. Press # again. 

Any person requiring special accommodations to access this proceeding is asked to advise the City  
at least 2 days before the proceeding by contacting the City Clerk at cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS WILL BE ACCEPTED BY THE FOLLOWING MEANS: 

EMAILED COMMENTS: Members of the public may email their public comments to the City in advance of 

the meeting. Please email the City at cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov by 12:00 p.m. on the day of the 
meeting with the subject line “PUBLIC COMMENT” and the following information in the body of the email: 
Your Name, Address, if you are a hired Consultant or City Employee, and/or if you are engaged in Lobbying 
Activities and/or representing an organization. Please limit your comments to no more than 350 words. 
Public comments received via email may be read into the record during the public comment portion of the 
agenda, if any.  

IN-PERSON COMMENTS: Members of the public may attend the meeting at the physical meeting location 
stated above and deliver their public comments in person during the public comment portion of the agenda.  

VIRTUAL COMMENTS: Public comments will also be accepted during the meeting using the virtual 

meeting platform as follows:  

By telephone: To ask to speak during the meeting, call in to the meeting using the instructions above. 
Please press *9 from your telephone and you will be called on to speak during public comments and 
identified by the last 4-digits of your telephone number.  

During the meeting, when your name or the last 4-digits of your telephone number is called, you will be 
unmuted and you may deliver your comments.  

https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC2at9KNnqUxZRSw1UkhdHLQ/featured
https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings
mailto:cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov
mailto:cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov


Please be sure to be in a quiet area to avoid unnecessary noise. Please provide the following information 
before delivering your comments: Your Name, Address, if you are a hired Consultant or City Employee, 
and/or if you are engaged in Lobbying Activities and/or representing an organization. 

 

A time limit may be imposed for each speaker during public comment. 
Your cooperation is appreciated in observing the time limit. 

 
Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the 
City Council, shall be barred from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission 
to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the majority vote of the City Council members 
present. In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments when 
addressing the Council during public comments. 

 

PUBLIC RECORDS 
The meeting will be recorded for later viewing and is a public record. The virtual chat, if any, will be saved 
and is a public record. Minutes of the meeting will be taken and will be made available. 

 

NOTICE PURSUANT TO §286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES 

IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD, AGENCY, OR 

COMMISSION WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING OR HEARING, HE 

OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE, HE OR SHE 

MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH 

RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations to participate in this proceeding is asked to advise the City at least 2 days before the 
proceeding by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 305-805-5006.  

 

LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 
In accordance with Section 33-01 of the City Code, adopting Section 2-11.1(s) of the Miami-Dade County 
Code, any person engaging in lobbying activities, as defined therein, must register at the City Clerk’s Office 
before addressing the City Council on the agenda items or engaging in lobbying activities. Specifically, all 
persons, firms or corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, 
defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or decision of the City Council; (2) any action, 
decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of 
City personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or 
recommendation which will be heard or reviewed by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall 
register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose and shall 
state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or 
entity which has employed said registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been 
employed to lobby. A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the Office of the City Clerk and 
online at: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/cityclerk/lobbyist-registration-form-0. 

 

Have questions or need additional information? 

Write: cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov 

Call: 305-805-5006 

Mail: 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, FL 33166 
 

https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/cityclerk/lobbyist-registration-form-0
mailto:cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov


1

Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria

From: Shannen M. Jaser
Sent: Wednesday, November 2, 2022 1:44 PM
To: Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria
Subject: FW: Abdiel Acosta Bio 

Artist of the month for November.  
 
 

Thanks Much! 

 

 

 

Shannen Jaser  
Public Information & Professional Services Specialist   
 
 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS  
201 Westward Drive  
Second Floor – Professional Services  
Miami Springs, Florida 33166 
(O) 305-805-5010 
(City Cell) 786‐606‐1282  
(E) JaserS@miamisprings-fl.gov  

 

  

               
 

Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail address 
released in response to a public-records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. 
Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing.  
 Please save a tree. Don't print this e-mail unless it's really necessary.   
 

  

 

 

From: Acosta, Abdiel <aacosta@dadeschools.net>  
Sent: Wednesday, November 2, 2022 1:19 PM 
To: Shannen M. Jaser <jasers@miamisprings‐fl.gov> 
Cc: Flor, Catalina <cjflor@dadeschools.net> 
Subject: Abdiel Acosta Bio  
 

Henri Rousseau Fantasy Landscapes 
  
These pieces were created by the Fourth and Fifth Grade art students at Springview
Elementary School.  Their objective was to create a landscape inspired by the French
self‐taught artist, Henri Rousseau.  Henri was a  retired toll and tax collector who



2

lived from the late 1800’s to the beginning of the 1900’s.  He taught himself how to 
paint  and  would  find  the  inspiration  for  his  fantasy  landscapes  in  the  botanical
gardens  in  Paris.   Through  his  art,  Henri  created  exotic  scenes  from  faraway
lands.  His work shows us that we do not need wings to fly away to distant lands, we
only need a vivid imagination to take us anywhere our heart desires. 
 
 

Abdiel Acosta 

Art Teacher 

 

 

  

This email has been scanned for spam and viruses. Click here to report this email as spam. 

 



 

 1 

      

 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
Regular Meeting Minutes  

Monday, October 24, 2022 7:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 

Virtual Council Meeting using Communications Media Technology Pursuant to 
Governor’s Executive Order 20-69 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:00 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 
Vice Mayor Victor Vazquez, Ph.D. 
Councilman Bob Best  
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo  
Councilman Walter Fajet, Ph.D. 
 
City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso  
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero  
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
City Attorney Haydee Sera 
City Attorney Candice Balmori (via Zoom) 
Police Chief Armando Guzman 
 
2. Invocation:  Offered by Vice Mayor Victor Vazquez 
 Pledge of Allegiance: The audience participated in leading the pledge. 

 
3. Agenda / Order of Business  

 
Mayor Mitchell requested that Item 12A and 11B be heard after Open Forum; it was 
the general consensus of the City Council to move up the items. 
 

4. Awards & Presentations:   
 

A) Presentation by Chief Armando Guzman – Officer of the Month Award for 
the month of September 2022 - Officer Brian Nickerson 
 
Mayor Mitchell welcomed Chief Guzman to the podium.  Chief Guzman introduced 
Sgt. Fetters who then addressed the Council on his recommendation for 
nominating Officer Nickerson as the recipient of the Officer of the Month for 
September.  Officer Nickerson thanked the City Administration, Mayor and City 
Council for the recognition and for their continued support.  

 
5. Open Forum:  The following members of the public addressed the City 
Council:  No speakers at this time. 



 

 2 

 
6. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) October 10, 2022 – Regular Meeting 
B) October 13, 2022 – Special Meeting  

 
Councilman Best moved to approve the minutes of September 26, 2022 Regular 
Meeting.  Vice Mayor Vazquez seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call 
vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Vazquez, Councilman Best, 
Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 
 
7. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None at this time.  
 
8. Public Hearings:   
 

A) Ordinance – Second Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Amending Section 32-68, “Mitigation Of Fines,” Of The City’s Code Of 
Ordinances To Establish Procedures And Guidelines For The Mitigation Of Code 
Enforcement Fines, Penalties And Liens; Providing For Codification; Providing For 
Severability; Providing For Conflicts; And Providing For An Effective Date 
 
City Attorney Haydee Sera read the Ordinance by title.  Mayor Mitchell opened the 
public hearing.  There were no speakers at this time. 
 
Vice Mayor Vazquez moved to approve the Ordinance on second reading.  
Councilwoman Bravo seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The 
vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Vazquez, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, 
Councilman Fajet and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 
 
9. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):  

 
A) Recommendation by staff that Council approve an expenditure to River 

Cities Gazette, as a sole source local print publishing provider, on an "as needed basis" 
in the amount of $32,200.00.  The River Cities Gazette provides for expanded access 
reaching every residential home and including local businesses within City limits through 
mailed or delivered publishing newspaper.  In addition, the City fulfills its publishing 
requirements for legal notices in the generally circulated Daily Business Review and the 
Miami Herald, additionally on its Official Website.  The City utilizes the Gazette for 
courtesy notices, City’s events, and local City updates.  Funds were budgeted in the 
FY22/23 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(c) of the City Code 

 
B) Recommendation by Public Works that Council authorize the issuance 

and/or execution of a purchase order to Petersen Industries, a sole source provider, as 
there is only one source (proof attached) for the required in an amount not to exceed 
$30,000.000 for the hydraulic parts for the cranes, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(c) 
of the City Code 

 
C) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And The City Council Of The City 



 

 3 

Of Miami Springs, Florida, Approving A First Amendment To The Agreement With Metro 
Express, Inc. To Extend The Term Of The Agreement; Authorizing The City Manager To 
Issue A Purchase Order To Metro Express, Inc. For Concrete Curbside/Sidewalk 
Construction, Milling, And Resurfacing Of Asphalt Concrete And Striping Services On An 
As-Needed Basis For Fiscal Year 2022-23 In An Amount Not To Exceed $200,000; 
Providing For Implementation; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 
D) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 

Miami Springs, Florida, Approving The Purchase Of One Vehicle For The Parks And 
Recreation Department From Alan Jay Automotive Management, Inc. In An Amount Not 
To Exceed $31,379 Utilizing The Terms And Conditions Of Sourcewell Contract No. 
091521-Naf Pursuant To Section 31-11(E)(5) Of The City Code; Providing For 
Implementation; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 
E) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami 

Springs, Florida Providing For The Fourth Amendment To The Fiscal Year 2021-22 
General Fund Budget; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 
F) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 

Miami Springs, Florida, Accepting A Municipal Grant Program Award In The Amount Of 
$50,000; Approving A Grant Agreement With The Miami-Dade Transportation Planning 
Organization For The City Of Miami Springs Parking Analysis; Providing For 
Authorization; Providing For Implementation; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 
Mayor Mitchell pulled item 9F for further discussion.   
 
Councilman Best moved to approve Item 9A through 9E.  Vice Mayor Vazquez 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Vazquez, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet 
and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 
 
City Manager William Alonso read Consent Agenda Item 9F by title.  He provided 
background information on the parking study grant.  Councilman Fajet made a 
motion to approve the Resolution as read.  Vice Mayor Vazquez seconded the 
motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Vazquez, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet and Mayor 
Mitchell voting Yes. 
 
10. Old Business:  None at this time. 

 
11. New Business:   
 

A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And The City Council Of The City 
Of Miami Springs, Florida, Declaring City Manager William Alonso, Controller Moira 
Ramos, And Chief Of Police Armando Guzman As Authorized Signatories For The City’s 
Amerant Bank, N.A. Bank, Savings, And Trust Accounts; Authorizing Amerant Bank, 
N.A. To Accept Either Two Manual Signatures Or Two Facsimile Signatures From Any 
Combination Of The City’s Authorized Signatories For The City’s Bank, Savings, And 



 

 4 

Trust Accounts; Providing For Implementation; Providing For Conflicts; And Providing 
For An Effective Date 

 
City Manager William Alonso read the Resolution by title. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the Resolution as read.  Vice Mayor Vazquez 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Vazquez, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet 
and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 

 
B) Update on Golf Carts 

 
This item was heard earlier in the meeting.  City Attorney Candice Balmori 
provided some vital background on the current State legislation for the regulation 
of Golf Carts and Low Speed Vehicles.  She provided information on the difference 
between golf carts and low speed vehicles and specific requirements on allowing 
either one within the City. It was the consensus of the City Council for the City to 
provide a fact sheet on the current State regulations and place on the December 
agenda to discuss further with the residents. 

 
12. Other Business:   

 
A) Request by Dennis Caicedo for a donation from Miami Springs Middle 

School PTSA 
 
This item was heard earlier in the meeting.  Mr. Caicedo requested a donation 
towards the Miami Springs Middle School PTSA to kick-off the fundraising season.  
Vice Mayor Vazquez moved to approve a donation of $250.00 towards the Miami 
Springs Middle School PTSA.  Councilman Best seconded the motion, which 
carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Vazquez, 
Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet and Mayor Mitchell 
voting Yes. 

 
B) Request to Cancel the second meetings in November (November 28th) and 

December (December 26th) 
 

Vice Mayor Vazquez moved to cancel the second meetings in November and 
December.  Councilwoman Bravo seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll 
call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Vazquez, Councilman Best, 
Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 

 
C) Update on Annexation Application 

 
City Manager William Alonso provided an update on the status of the City’s 
annexation application. He stated that he and the City Attorney have been in touch 
with the County Attorney’s Office on the negotiations for the Interlocal Agreement.  
He mentioned that the legal description will be updated soon and will be included 
in the new legal description in the final interlocal.   



 

 5 

 
 
 

D) Update on the Vacancy Process 
 
City Attorney Haydee Sera provided an update on the upcoming process to fill the 
vacancy coming up on November 22nd for Group IV. She explained that the City’s 
charter requires a special election within thirty days of the vacancy which does 
not comply with County legislation and State statutes.  She stated that she and the 
City Clerk are in communication with the County Elections to coordinate a 
possible special election or to explore other possibilities until the City’s regularly 
scheduled General Election in April 2023. 

 
E) Update on November 9th Farewell Event at Curtiss Mansion for 

Commissioner Sosa’s Years of Service 
 
Mayor Mitchell reminded the public that the event commemorating Commissioner 
Sosa’s years of service is quickly approaching and that tickets are still available 
through Eventbrite or through RSVPing to the City Clerk.  She stated that the 
event will take place on Wednesday, November 9th from 7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. at 
the historic Curtiss Mansion.   
 
13. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
City Attorney Haydee Sera had no report at this time. 
  

B) City Manager 
 

City Manager William Alonso stated that the groundbreaking event for the Realtors 
Association headquarters will take place on October 26th at 10:00 a.m.  The 
groundbreaking is the kickoff event for the Realtors Association new building that 
will house one of the largest realtor associations nationwide.  Assistant City 
Manager Tammy Romero announced all the upcoming City events and stated that 
more information is available on the City website. 
 

C) City Council 
 
Councilman Best reminded that the Halloween events are happening this year 
around the Circle and surrounding neighborhoods, he advised trick or treaters to 
be aware of vehicles when crossing the street.  He wished everyone a Happy 
Halloween.   
 
Councilwoman Bravo had no report at this time.  
 
Councilman Fajet had no report at this time.     
 



 

 6 

Vice Mayor Vazquez      
 
Mayor Mitchell stated that she recently attended the Miami Airport Chamber of 
Commerce meeting and event on Thursday night at Woody’s.  She looks forward 
to a long-term relationship with the Chamber to promote businesses in the 
Springs, and encourage potential businesses to making the City their new home.  
She stated that Early Voting started today and encourage everyone to go out and 
vote. 
 
 
 
 
14. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 



 

 7 

 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 14th day of November, 2022. 
 
 
           
Maria Puente Mitchell, Mayor 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY 
DECISION MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED 
A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM 
RECORD OF THE PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO 
BE BASED THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE 
INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 



 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
Special Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, October 27, 2022 6:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers at City Hall  

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 6:02 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 
Vice Mayor Victor Vazquez, Ph.D. (via Zoom) 
Councilman Bob Best  
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo  
Councilman Walter Fajet, Ph.D. 
 
City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
City Attorney Haydee Sera 
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero 
 
 

2. Invocation:  Councilman Bob Best 

Pledge of Allegiance: Audience will lead the Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the 
Flag 

   

3. Public Comments 
 

4. Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Approving An Interlocal Agreement With Miami-Dade County Relating To 
The Annexation Of Unincorporated Property Contiguous To The City Of Miami Springs; 
Providing For Authorization; Providing For Implementation; Providing For Conflicts; And 
Providing For An Effective Date 
 
City Manager William Alonso read the Resolution by title. 
 
Councilman Best moved to adopt the resolution as read. Vice Mayor Vazquez 

seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Vazquez, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet and 

Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 
  

5. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 6:20 p.m. 



 
 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 14th day of November, 2022. 
 
 
           
Maria Puente Mitchell, Mayor 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 



ORDINANCE NO.    - 2022 1 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, 2 

FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CITY’S COMPREHENSIVE 3 

PLAN BY ADOPTING THE EVALUATION AND 4 

APPRAISAL REPORT (EAR) BASED COMPREHENSIVE 5 

PLAN AMENDMENTS; PROVIDING FOR TRANSMITTAL; 6 

PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 7 

SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 8 

DATE.  9 

WHEREAS, Section 163.3191, Florida Statutes directs local governments to 10 

periodically assess the success or failure of the adopted comprehensive plan in 11 

adequately addressing changing conditions, state policies, and rules; and 12 

WHEREAS, Section 163.3191(1), Florida Statutes directs local governments to 13 

adopt an Evaluation and Appraisal Report (“EAR Report”) assessing the progress in 14 

implementing the local government’s comprehensive plan; and 15 

WHEREAS, based on its EAR Report, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) has 16 

prepared comprehensive plan amendments, attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” which are 17 

necessary to update the City’s Comprehensive Plan and address the issues and 18 

opportunities identified in the EAR Report; and 19 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 161.3191(2), Florida Statutes on [date], 20 

the City transmitted its EAR Report Notification Letter to the Florida Department of 21 

Economic Opportunity (“DEO”); and 22 

WHEREAS, the DEO and other state reviewing agencies have reviewed the EAR 23 

Report and determined it to be sufficient; and 24 

WHEREAS, the City Council, sitting as the Local Planning Agency, has reviewed 25 

the proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments and recommends approval; and 26 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this proposed Ordinance serves to further 27 

enhance the protection of the public health, safety and welfare. 28 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 29 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:1 30 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 31 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 32 

 33 

Section 2. Comprehensive Plan Amendments Adopted.   The City Council 34 

hereby adopts the EAR Report Based Comprehensive Plan Amendments attached hereto 35 

as Exhibit “A.”  36 

                                                            
1 Coding: Strikethrough words are deletions to the existing words. Underlined words are additions to the existing words. Changes 
between first and second reading are indicated with double strikethrough and double underline. 



Ordinance No.   -2022 
Page 2 of 3 

Section 3. Transmittal.   The City Planner is directed to transmit the EAR 37 

Report Based Comprehensive Plan Amendments adopted by this Ordinance to the DEO 38 

and all other units of local government or governmental agencies required by Florida 39 

Statutes, Section 163.3184. 40 

 41 

Section 4. Conflicts. All ordinances or parts of ordinances, and all Resolutions, 42 

or parts of Resolutions, in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the extent of such 43 

conflict. 44 

 45 

Section 5. Severability. That the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to 46 

be severable and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for 47 

any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the 48 

validity of the remaining sections, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance but 49 

they shall remain in effect, it being the legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand 50 

notwithstanding the invalidity of any part. 51 

 52 

Section 6. Effective Date. That this Ordinance shall be effective immediately 53 

upon passage by the City Council on second reading, except that the effective date of the 54 

comprehensive plan amendments approved by this Ordinance shall be the date a final 55 

order is issued by the DEO or Administrative Council finding the plan amendments in 56 

compliance in accordance with Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes, whichever occurs 57 

earlier.  The Florida DEO notice of intent to find the plan amendments in compliance shall 58 

be deemed to be the final order if no timely petition challenging the plan amendment is 59 

filed. 60 

PASSED ON FIRST READING on the    day of   , 2022, on a 61 

motion made by      and seconded by     . 62 

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this   day of  , 2022, 63 

on a motion made by    and seconded by    . Upon being put to a 64 

roll call vote, the vote was as follows: 65 

Vice Mayor Dr. Walter Fajet    66 

Councilman Bob Best      67 

Councilwoman Jacky Bravo    68 

Councilman Dr. Victor Vazquez    69 

Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell    70 

 71 

 72 

 73 

              74 

       MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 75 

MAYOR 76 

 77 

 78 

 79 



Ordinance No.   -2022 
Page 3 of 3 

ATTEST: 80 

 81 

 82 

        83 

ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  84 

CITY CLERK 85 

 86 

 87 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 88 

FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 89 

 90 

 91 

        92 

WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 93 

CITY ATTORNEY94 



EXHIBIT A 

EAR REPORT BASED COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 
Proposed 

Amendments  



 
Amendments by Element: 
 
Intergovernmental Coordination Element 

Policy 1.1.12: Dispute Resolution Process, The City of Miami Springs shall utilize the 
South Florida Regional Planning Council's dispute resolution process to resolve disputes 
or conflicts, on planning, growth management, related issues between other local 
governments. When the City’s efforts fail to resolve a dispute with any local 
government, the City shall notify the Regional Planning Council in writing about the 
dispute, requesting the Council's mediation. The City shall also notify the local 
government that the City has requested mediation assistance from the South Florida 
Regional Planning Council. 

Policy 1.3.1: Miami Springs shall monitor changes to the adopted level-of-service 
standards of adjacent municipalities and jurisdictions, including City of Hialeah, Village of 
Virginia Gardens, and Miami-Dade County, and adjust its own level- of-service standards 
accordingly. 

Policy 1.1.21 The City shall coordinate its planning and permitting processes with Miami- 
Dade County, Miami-Dade County Public Schools, and other parties of the Interlocal 
Agreement consistent with the procedures established within the Interlocal Agreement 
as follows: 

1. Review and update of the annual Public Schools Work Program, 
containing the financially feasible schedule of capital improvements 
for school facilities needed to achieve and maintain the adopted level 
of service standards in all concurrency service areas (CSAs) and/or 
districtwide 

 
  



Capital Improvements: 

Policy 1.2.1 

The following Level of Service (LOS) standards shall be maintained: 

Potable Water: The City shall secure adequate potable water supply from Miami- Dade 
WASD to provide an average of 155 94 gallons of water per capita per day. In addition, the 
City shall enforce the following standards though its interlocal agreement with the Miami-
Dade Water and Sewer Department: 

(a) The regional treatment system shall operate with a rated maximum daily capacity of 
no less than 2 percent above the maximum daily flow for the preceding year and an 
average daily capacity of 2 percent above the average daily system demand for the 
preceding 5 years. The maximum daily flow shall be determined by calculating the average 
of the highest five single day flows for the previous 12 months. 
 

Policy 1.2.3 

Miami Springs hereby adopts by reference the Miami-Dade County Comprehensive 
Development Master Plan Amendments adopted February 4, 2015, the Miami-Dade Water 
and Sewer Department 20-year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan (2014-2033) Support 
Data (November 2014), the 2018 Lower East Coast Water Supply Plan Update (LEC) 
approved by the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) on November 8, 2018 
and additional information found within Water Use Permit 13- 00017-W are herein 
incorporated by reference. The Water Use Permit which was modified and approved by 
the SFWMD on February 9, 2015, will now expire on February 9, 2035. Currently, WASD is 
preparing to submit a WUP modification that will include updated water demand 
projections based on revised population data and is requesting an extension of the permit 
duration through the year 2040. 
 
Policy 1.2.3  
 
Miami Springs hereby adopts by reference, the Miami-Dade Water Supply Facilities Work Plan as 
revised April 2008, the capital projects described therein and subsequent revisions. County 
Comprehensive Development Master Plan Amendments adopted February 4, 2015, the Miami-
Dade Water and Sewer Department 20-year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan (2014-2033) 
Support Data (November 2014), the 2013 2018 Lower East Coast Water Supply Plan Update 
(LEC) approved by the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) on October 10, 2013 
November 8, 2018 and additional information found within Water Use Permit 13-00017-W are 
herein incorporated by reference. The Water Use Permit which was modified and approved by the 
SFWMD on February 9, 2015, will now expire on February 9, 2035.Currently, WASD is preparing 
to submit a WUP modification that will include updated water demand projections based on revised 
population data and is requesting an extension of the permit duration through the year 2040. 

 



CONSERVATION ELEMENT 

Policy 1.2.1 The City shall cooperate with the Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer Authority and other 
Miami-Dade County agencies to help ensure that wellfields and cones of influence are protected. 
Protection measures shall include restrictions on uses. No new facilities that use, handle, generate, 
transport or dispose of hazardous wastes shall be permitted within wellfield protection areas, and all 
existing facilities that use, handle, generate, transport or dispose of more that the maximum allowable 
quantity of hazardous wastes (as specified in Chapter 24-12-1 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, as may 
be amended from time to time within wellfield protection areas shall be required to take substantial 
measures such as secondary containment and improved operating procedures to ensure 
environmentally safe operations. 

Policy 1.3.3 The City shall continue to evaluate alternative potable water supply sources evaluation 
techniques and technologies for water capture and reuse, including rainwater harvesting, and revise its 
Land Development Regulations as necessary to allow for these options with local building design 
 
Policy 1.3.4 The City shall continue to promote the use of ultra-low-flow high efficiency plumbing 
fixtures through its Showerhead Exchange Program and requires and enforces the guidelines 
established by the Florida Building Code, Plumbing. 
 
 
  



FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT 
 
GOAL 1: ACHIEVE THE FOLLOWING COMMUNITY CHARACTER: Miami Springs should be a residential 
community which offers the best possible residential environment consistent with its location and development 
history. Development policies should protect and preserve its single-family residential character and neighborhoods 
by maintaining an adequate supply of safe decent and affordable housing for its current and future residents. The 
planning horizon in maintaining these goals for the City shall be 2040. 
 
Policy 1.1.1 The City shall enact and enforce land development code provisions which are consistent 
with the Future Land Use Map (Figure 1.1), including the land uses and the densities and intensities 
specified in Policy 1.1.8. The City shall maintain land use densities at levels which shall a minimum be 
sufficient to accommodate growth for a 2040 planning horizon. 
 

Policy 1.1.4 

The City shall enact and enforce as part of the land development code a concurrency 
management system. The concurrency management system shall specify that no 
development permit shall be issued unless the public facilities necessitated by a 
development (in order to meet level of service standards specified in the Transportation, 
Recreation and Open Space, and Infrastructure Policies) will be in place concurrent with 
the impacts of the development or the permit is conditional to assure that they will be in 
place. The requirement that no development permit shall be issued unless public facilities 
necessitated by the project are in place concurrent with the impacts of development shall 
be effective immediately and shall be interpreted pursuant to the following: 

Policy 1.1.9 The City shall maximize the use of native plants in City landscaping projects 
and large redevelopment sites utilizing Florida Friendly Landscape principles to provide 
and improve urban habitat and connectivity for native species. 
 
Policy 1.1.10 The City shall adopt Florida Friendly Landscape principles into the Land 
Development Regulations. 

Policy 1.2.1: By 2016, tThe City will adopt and maintain a community redevelopment plan 
that will address commercial redevelopment and deteriorated and blighted areas within the 
community. 

Objective 1.10: Decisions regarding the location, extent and intensity of future land use 
will be based upon the physical and financial feasibility of providing all urbanized areas 
with services at levels of service (LOS) which meet or exceed the minimum standards 
adopted in the Capital Improvements Element. 
 
  



INFRASTRUCTURE ELEMENT 

Policy 1.4.3 Drainage: All nonresidential development and redevelopment shall adequately 
accommodate runoff to meet all Federal, state and local requirements. Stormwater shall be treated in 
accordance with the state code. One inch of runoff shall be retained on site. Post-development runoff 
shall not exceed peak pre development runoff. 
 
Objective 1.5 Water Conservation 
 

Policy 1.5.2 The city shall promote education programs for residential, commercial and other uses 
which will discourage waste and conserve potable water. The City will coordinate with the Miami-Dade 
Water and Sewer Department on this matter whenever possible. 

Policy 1.5.3 The City shall collaborate with the Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer Department efforts 
to identify and reduce non-revenue water. 

Policy 1.5.5 The City will continue to actively support the SFWMD and Miami-Dade County in the 
implementation of new regulations or programs that are designed to conserve water during the dry 
season. The City will also comply with the water conservation requirements of the Miami-Dade County 
Code. 

Policy 1.5.6 The City shall adopt Florida Friendly Landscape principles into the Land Development 
Regulations. 

Policy 1.5.7 The City shall maximize the use of native plants in City landscaping projects and large 
redevelopment sites utilizing Florida Friendly Landscape principles to provide and improve urban 
habitat and connectivity for native species. 
 

Policy 1.5.8 The City shall continue to evaluate alternative potable water supply sources evaluation 
techniques and technologies for water capture and reuse, including rainwater harvesting, and revise its 
Land Development Regulations as necessary to allow for these options with local building design. 

Policy 1.5.9 The City shall continue to promote the use of ultra-low-flow high efficiency plumbing fixtures 
through its Showerhead Exchange Program and requires and enforces the guidelines established by the 
Florida Building Code, Plumbing. 
 
  



Public Schools Facilities Element 
 
Objective 1.1 The City shall work in conjunction with Miami-Dade County Public Schools 
towards the reduction of the overcrowding which currently exists in the public school 
system, while striving to attain an optimum level of service pursuant to Objective 1.2. The 
City shall also coordinate with Miami-Dade County Public Schools and other appropriate 
agencies to provide additional solutions to overcrowding so that countywide enrollment in 
Miami-Dade County's public schools will meet state requirements for class size by 
September 1, 2010. 
 
Policy 1.2.3: It is the goal of Miami-Dade County Public Schools, Miami-Dade County, and 
parties of the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement for Public School Facilities 
Planning, including the City of Miami Springs, for all public school facilities to achieve 100 
percent utilization of Permanent FISH (No Relocatable Classrooms) by January 1, 2018. To 
help achieve the desired 100 percent utilization of Permanent FISH by 2018, Miami-Dade 
County Public Schools should continue to decrease the number of relocatable classrooms 
over time. Public school facilities that achieve 100 percent utilization of Permanent FISH 
capacity should, to the extent possible, no longer utilize relocatable classrooms, except as 
an operational solution, such as to achieve the level of service standard during 
replacement, remodeling, renovation or expansion of a public school facility. By December 
2010, Miami- Dade County in cooperation with Miami-Dade County Public Schools will 
assess the viability of modifying the adopted LOS standard to 100 percent utilization of 
Permanent FISH (No Relocatable Classrooms) for all CSAs. 

Policy 1.2.1: The City shall amend its plan annually to adopt a new fifth year, updating 
the financially feasible public schools capital facilities program, coordinating the 
program with the 5-year school district facilities work plan, the plans of other local 
governments and as necessary, updates to the concurrency service area maps. 
 
  



Transportation Element: 
 
Policy 1.1.3 The City shall approve no alteration in the existing traffic circulation system which 
materially reduces the continuity and rights-of-way of arterials or collectors shown on the Future 
Transportation Map. The Future Transportation Map will provide, at minimum, for the 5 and 10 year 
planning horizon. This policy shall not be interpreted to block closing of local streets to enhance 
neighborhood security and quietude. The planning horizon for the City’s transportation system shall be 
2040, and shall be reviewed for updates upon the Miami-Dade Transportation Planning Organization’s 
adoption of an updated regional Long-Range Transportation Plan. 

  



Recreation & Open Space Element 
 

Policy 1.3.7: The City shall create a Recreation and Open Space Master Plan by 2016 which 
will address the current and future needs of City residents, possible sites for new projects as 
well as coordination and integration of recreation and open space goals with the other 
Elements of the Comprehensive Plan. The Plan will include potential funding sources that 
will allow the enhancement and expansion of the City’s recreation and open space system. 
 
  



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Draft New Property 
Rights 

Element 



PROPERTY RIGHTS ELEMENT 
 

Goal The City of Miami Springs will make planning and development decisions 
with respect for property rights and with respect for people’s rights to 
participate in decisions that affect their lives and property. 

 

Objective 1.1 The City of Miami Springs will respect judicially 
acknowledged and constitutionally protected private property rights. 

 

Policy 1.1.1 The City of Miami Springs will consider in its decision-
making the right of a property owner to physically possess and control 
his or her interests in the property, including easements, leases, or 
mineral rights. 

 

Policy 1.1.2 The City of Miami Springs will consider in its decision-
making the right of a property owner to use, maintain, develop, and 
improve his or her property for personal use or for the use of any other 
person, subject to state law and local ordinances. 

 

Policy 1.1.3 The City of Miami Springs will consider in its decision-
making the right of the property owner to privacy and to exclude others 
from the property to protect the owner’s possessions and property. 

 

Policy 1.1.4 The City of Miami Springs will consider in its decision-
making the right of a property owner to dispose of his or her property 
through sale or gift. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Miami Springs 
Maps 79

  2040



Objections, Recommendations and Comments Report 

Proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

City of Miami Springs 22-0lER 

 
The Department has identified three comments regarding the City of Miami Springs' proposed 
comprehensive plan amendments. The comments are provided below, along with 
recommended actions the City could take to resolve issues of concern. Comments are offered 
to assist the local government and will not form the basis for a compliance determination. 

 
Department staff has discussed the basis of the report with City staff and is available to assist 
the City to address the comments. 

 

Comment 1: Property Rights Element: 

 
Section 163.3177(6)(i)1., Florida Statutes (F.S.), requires each local government to include a 
property rights element in its comprehensive plan. The City's proposed Property Rights Element 
generally models the statement of rights set forth in section 163.3177(6)(i)l., F.S. However, the 
Goal of the proposed Property Rights Element limits the consideration of property rights 
matters to "planning and development decisions" as opposed to considering them in all local 
decision making. 

 
Prior to adoption, the Department recommends that the proposed amendment be revised to 
consider private property rights in all of the City's local decision making. 

 
Please be advised the Property Rights Element adopted by the local government may not 
conflict with the statement of rights provided under Section 163.3177(6)(i)l., F.S. To ensure the 
adopted language does not conflict, the Department recommends that the local government 
consult with its legal department. 
 

Response: The Amendment has been revised accordingly to remove the 

limitation to planning and development. Goal The  City  of Miami  Springs will make 

planning and development decisions with respect for property rights and with respect 

for people’s rights to participate in decisions that affect their lives and property. 

 
 

Comment 2: Planning Horizon: 

 
The proposed comprehensive plan amendment does not reflect an updated planning horizon 
for the City's Comprehensive Plan. Section 163.3177(5)(a), F.S. requires comprehensive plans to 
establish at least two (2) planning periods, one covering the first 5-year period occurring after 
the plan's adoption and one covering at least a 10-year period. Additional planning periods for 
specific components, elements, land use amendments, or projects shall be permissible and 
accepted as part of the planning process. Prior to adoption, the amendment should be revised 
to incorporate an appropriate, updated planning horizon covering at least the two required 
planning periods. 
 
Response: Th City is adding the additional amendments: 



GOAL 1: ACHIEVE THE FOLLOWING COMMUNITY CHARACTER: Miami Springs should 
be a residential community which offers the best possible residential environment consistent 
with its location and development history. Development policies should protect and preserve 
its single-family residential character and neighborhoods by maintaining an adequate supply 
of safe decent and affordable housing for its current and future residents. The planning 
horizon in maintaining these goals for the City shall be 2040. 

 
Policy 1.1.1 The City shall enact and enforce land development code provisions which are consistent with 
the Future Land Use Map (Figure 1.1), including the land uses and the densities and intensities specified 
in Policy 1.1.8. The City shall maintain land use densities at levels which shall a minimum be sufficient to 
accommodate growth for a 2040 planning horizon. 
 
The City’s map shall note 2040 Future Land Use Map in its title. 
 
The Transportation Element shall additionally be amended as follows: 
 

Transportation Element: 
 

Policy 1.1.3 The City shall approve no alteration in the existing traffic circulation system which materially 
reduces the continuity and rights-of-way of arterials or collectors shown on the Future Transportation 
Map. The Future Transportation Map will provide, at minimum, for the 5 and 10 year planning horizon. 
This policy shall not be interpreted to block closing of local streets to enhance neighborhood security and 
quietude. The planning horizon for the City’s transportation system shall be 2040, and shall be reviewed 
for updates upon the Miami-Dade Transportation Planning Organization’s adoption of an updated regional 
Long-Range Transportation Plan. 

 

 

Comment 3: Internal Inconsistency: 

 
The City has proposed revisions to its Capital Improvements Element ("CIE") in both the 
Evaluation and Appraisal Review ("EAR")-based amendment to the City's comprehensive plan 
and in the update to the City's Water Supply Facilities Work Plan (the "Work Plan"). While these 
two sets of proposed revisions are similar in intent, the proposed policy revisions do not exactly 
correlate. For instance, the Work Plan update proposes to delete text within Policy 1.2.3 of the 
CIE; however, the proposed EAR-based amendments do not include such a revision to Policy 
1.2.3 of the CIE. The Department recommends revising the amendments further to avoid 
internal inconsistencies. 

 
Response:   Report and Comprehensive Plan have been adjusted for second reading as 
follows and matched for consistency. 
 

Policy 1.2.3  
 

Miami Springs hereby adopts by reference, the Miami-Dade Water Supply Facilities Work Plan 
as revised April 2008, the capital projects described therein and subsequent revisions. County 
Comprehensive Development Master Plan Amendments adopted February 4, 2015, the Miami-
Dade Water and Sewer Department 20-year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan (2014-2033) 
Support Data (November 2014), the 2013 2018 Lower East Coast Water Supply Plan Update 
(LEC) approved by the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) on October 10, 
2013 November 8, 2018 and additional information found within Water Use Permit 13-00017-W 
are herein incorporated by reference. The Water Use Permit which was modified and approved 
by the SFWMD on February 9, 2015, will now expire on February 9, 2035.Currently, WASD is 
preparing to submit a WUP modification that will include updated water demand projections 



based on revised population data and is requesting an extension of the permit duration through 
the year 2040. 



 



ORDINANCE NO.    - 2022 1 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, 2 

FLORIDA, ADOPTING AN AMENDMENT TO THE WATER 3 

SUPPLY FACILITIES WORK PLAN; PROVIDING FOR 4 

TRANSMITTAL; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 5 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR 6 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  7 

WHEREAS, Section 163.3167(9), Florida Statutes requires all local governments 8 

to address in its comprehensive plan, the water supply sources necessary to achieve the 9 

existing and projected water use demand for an established planning period; and 10 

WHEREAS, Section 163.3177(4)(a), Florida Statutes requires coordination of the 11 

local comprehensive plan with the applicable water management district’s regional water 12 

supply plan; and 13 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) recognizes the need for 14 

integration between land use planning and water supply planning; and 15 

WHEREAS, Section 163.3177(6)(c), Florida Statutes requires that local 16 

governments prepare and adopt a water supply facilities work plan covering at least a  ten 17 

(10) year planning period and amend their comprehensive plan within eighteen (18) 18 

months after the applicable regional water management district approves a regional water 19 

supply plan or its update; and 20 

WHEREAS, South Florida Water Management District updated and approved its 21 

regional water supply plan entitled the Lower East Coast Water Supply Plan (“LEC”) on 22 

November 8, 2018; and 23 

WHEREAS, since November 8, 2018, the City has reviewed and proposes to now 24 

adopt amendments to its Water Supply Facilities Work Plan and related amendments in 25 

its Comprehensive Plan in order to comply with Florida law; and 26 

WHEREAS, the City Council, sitting as Local Planning Agency (LPA), at a duly 27 

advertised public hearing, reviewed the proposed 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work 28 

Plan (2022) Update attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” found it consistent with the City’s 29 

Comprehensive Plan and Florida law, and recommended adoption of this Ordinance to 30 

the City Council; and       31 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this proposed Ordinance serves to further 32 

enhance the protection of the public health, safety and welfare. 33 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 34 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:1 35 

                                                            
1 Coding: Strikethrough words are deletions to the existing words. Underlined words are additions to the existing words. Changes 
between first and second reading are indicated with double strikethrough and double underline. 



Ordinance No.   -2022 
Page 2 of 3 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 36 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 37 

 38 

Section 2. Water Supply Facility Plan Amendments Adopted.   The City 39 

Council hereby adopts the 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan (2022) Update, 40 

attached as Exhibit “A.”  41 

 42 

Section 3. Transmittal.   The City Planner is authorized to transmit the Water 43 

Supply Facilities Work Plan Update adopted by this Ordinance to the Florida Department 44 

of Economic Opportunity (“DEO”) and all other units of local government or governmental 45 

agencies required by Florida Statutes, Section 163.3184. 46 

 47 

Section 4. Conflicts. All ordinances or parts of ordinances, and all Resolutions, 48 

or parts of Resolutions, in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the extent of such 49 

conflict. 50 

 51 

Section 5. Severability. That the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to 52 

be severable and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for 53 

any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the 54 

validity of the remaining sections, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance but 55 

they shall remain in effect, it being the legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand 56 

notwithstanding the invalidity of any part. 57 

 58 

Section 6. Effective Date. That this Ordinance shall be effective immediately 59 

upon passage by the City Council on second reading, except that the effective date of the 60 

comprehensive plan amendments approved by this Ordinance shall be the date a final 61 

order is issued by the Florida DEO or Administrative Council finding the plan amendments 62 

in compliance in accordance with Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes, whichever occurs 63 

earlier.  The DEO notice of intent to find the plan amendments in compliance shall be 64 

deemed to be the final order if no timely petition challenging the plan amendment is filed. 65 

PASSED ON FIRST READING on the    day of   , 2022, on a 66 

motion made by      and seconded by     . 67 

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this   day of  , 2022, 68 

on a motion made by    and seconded by    . Upon being put to a 69 

roll call vote, the vote was as follows: 70 

Vice Mayor Dr. Walter Fajet    71 

Councilman Bob Best      72 

Councilwoman Jacky Bravo    73 

Councilman Dr. Victor Vazquez    74 

Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell    75 

 76 

 77 



Ordinance No.   -2022 
Page 3 of 3 

 78 

              79 

       MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 80 

MAYOR 81 

ATTEST: 82 

 83 

 84 

        85 

ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  86 

CITY CLERK 87 

 88 

 89 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 90 

FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 91 

 92 

 93 

        94 

WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 95 

CITY ATTORNEY96 



EXHIBIT A 

 

WATER SUPPLY FACILITIES WORK PLAN (2022) UPDATE  





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 
Draft Water Supply Plan 



CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
 
 

 

10-YEAR 
WATER SUPPLY FACILITIES 

WORK PLAN 20222017 
UPDATE 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 2 

August 7, 20172022  

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 
 

City Council 
 

Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 
Councilman Bob Best 

Councilwoman Jackie Bravo 
Councilman Walter Fajet 

Councilman Victor Vasquez 

 
 

City Staff 
 

William Alonso, City Manager 
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, City Clerk 

Chris Heid, City Planner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: 
The Corradino Group 
4055 NW 97 Avenue 
Miami, FL 33178 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 3 

August 7, 20172022  

 

 

Table of Contents 
1.0 Introduction ............................................................................................................................................. 3 

1.1 Statutory History ................................................................................................................................. 4 

1.2 Statutory Requirements....................................................................................................................... 5 

2.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION ................................................................................................................. 7 

2.1 Overview ............................................................................................................................................. 7 

2.2 City Boundaries .................................................................................................................................... 7 

2.3 Relevant Regional Issues ...................................................................................................................... 7 

3.0 DATA AND ANALYSIS................................................................................................................................ 9 

3.1 Population Information ....................................................................................................................... 9 

3.2 Miami Springs' Water Service Area ...................................................................................................... 9 

3.3 Potable Water Level of Service Standard ........................................................................................... 10 

3.4 Population and Potable Water Demand Projections for Miami Springs ............................................. 11 

3.5 Water Supply Distribution Provided by the City of Miami Springs ..................................................... 11 

3.6 Water Supply Provided by Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department ............................................ 12 

3.7 Conservation ...................................................................................................................................... 12 

3.7.1 County-wide Issues ..................................................................................................................... 13 

3.7.2 Local Government Specific Actions, Programs, Regulations, or Opportunities ........................... 14 

3.7.3 MDWASD Specific Regulations ............................................................................................ 14 

3.8 Reuse ................................................................................................................................................. 15 

3.8.1 Regional and County-wide Issues ............................................................................................... 15 

3.8.2 Local Government Specific Actions, Programs, Regulations, or Opportunities ........................... 15 

4.0 INTERGOVERNMENTAL COORDINATION ......................................................................................... 16 

5.0 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ...................................................................................................................... 17 

6.0 CONCLUSION ......................................................................................................................................... 24 

Figures ..................................................................................................................................................... 3365 

1.0 Introduction 

The purpose of the City of Miami Springs Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update (Work Plan Update) 
adopted on XXXXX XX ,2022 is to identify and plan for the water supply sources and facilities needed to 
serve existing and new development within the City’s jurisdiction. The City’s first Work Plan was adopted 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 4 

August 7, 20172022  

on August 8, 2008 while the first Update was adopted with an update adopted on August 14, 2017. This 
is the second update to the City’s original 20-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan. 

This is an update to the first Water Supply Facilities Work Plan that was adopted on August 8, 2008. 
Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., requires local governments to prepare and adopt Work Plans into their 
comprehensive plans within 18 months after the water management district approves a regional water 
supply plan or its update. The 20183 Lower East Coast Water Supply Plan Update was approved by the 
South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) on October 10, 2013 November 8, 2018. Therefore, 
the deadline for local governments within the Lower East Coast jurisdiction to amend their comprehensive 
plans to adopt a Work Plan is March 13, 2015. 

 

As a retail customer, City residents of the obtain their water directly from the Miami-Dade County Water 
and Sewer Department (WASD), which is responsible for ensuring that enough capacity is available for 
existing and future customers. 

 
The City acknowledges the importance of water conservation and reuse and has included policies in its 
Comprehensive Plan to assist in implementing related strategies. The City recognizes that to maintain a 
water supply system and conservation program there must be effective coordination with Miami-Dade 
County Water and Sewer Department (WASD). The City has an excellent working relationship with 
WASD in ensuring compliance with all regulations and guidelines. City staff also coordinates with WASD 
during the development review process to ensure enough capacity is available for existing and future 
customers and supporting infrastructure is adequately maintained. 

 

Starting with this Work Plan Update, the Miami-Dade County Water Supply Facilities Work Plan will 
have a 10-year planning horizon. The City Work Plan will reference the initiatives already identified in 
Miami-Dade County's 2010-year Work Plan Update, which was adopted on February 4, 2015, since the 
City is a retail buyer. To date, Miami-Dade County’s 2020 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan 
Update has not been adopted, therefore this Work Plan Update will rely on the most current available 
data that may become available found in the Draft Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department 10-Year 
Water Supply Facilities Work Plan October 2020, revised April 2021. According to state guidelines, the 
Work Plan and the comprehensive plan amendment must address the development of traditional and 
alternative water supplies, bulk sales agreements and conservation and reuse programs that are 
necessary to serve existing and new development for at least a 10-year planning period. The City’s Work 
Plan has the same planning timeframe as Miami-Dade County's 2010-year Work Plan. 

 

The City's Work Plan is divided into six sections: 

 
 

Section 1 - Introduction 
Section 2 - Background Information 
Section 3 - Data and Analysis 
Section 4 - Intergovernmental Coordination 
Section 5 - Capital Improvement Elements 
Section 6 - Conclusion 

 

1.1 Statutory History 
 

The Florida Legislature enacted bills in the 2002, 2004, 2005 and2011, 2012, 2015 and 2016 sessions 
to address the state's water supply needs. These bills, especially Senate Bills 360 and 444 (2005 
legislative session), significantly changed Chapters 163 and 373 Florida Statutes (F.S.) by strengthening 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 5 

August 7, 20172022  

the statutory links between the regional water supply plans prepared by the water management districts 
and the comprehensive plans prepared by local governments. In addition, these bills established the 
basis for improving coordination between local land use planning and water supply planning. 

 

1.2 Statutory Requirements 
 

The City has considered the following statutory provisions when updating its Water Supply Facilities Work 
Plan Update (Work Plan Update): 

 

1. Coordinate its comprehensive plan with the appropriate water management district's regional 
water supply plan, [163.3177(4)(a), F.S.] 

 
2. Ensure that its future land use plan is based upon availability of adequate water supplies and 

public facilities and services [s.163.3177(6)(a),F.S . Data and analysis demonstrating that 
adequate water supplies and associated public facilities will be available to meet projected growth 
demands must accompany all proposed Future Land Use Map amendments submitted for review. 

 

3. Ensure that adequate water supplies and facilities are available to serve new development no 
later than the issuance by the local government of a certificate of occupancy or it functional 
equivalent and consult with the applicable water supplier to determine whether adequate water 
supplies will be available to serve the development by the anticipated issuance date of the 
certificate of occupancy [s.163.3180(2)(a),F.S. 

 
4. For local governments subject to a regional water supply plan, revise the General Sanitary Sewer, 

Solid Waste, Drainage, Potable Water, and Natural Groundwater Aquifer Recharge Element (the 
"Infrastructure Element"), within 18 months after the water management district approves an 
updated regional water supply plan, to: 

 
a. Identify and incorporate the alternative water supply project(s) selected by the local 

government from projects identified in the updated SFWMD Regional Water Supply Plan, or 
the alternative project(s) proposed by the local government under [s. 373707(7)709(8)(b),F.S. 
[s.163.3177(6)(c),F.S.]; 

 
b. Identify the traditional and alternative water supply projects, and the conservation and reuse 

programs necessary to meet water needs identified in the SFWMD Regional Water Supply 
Plan within the local government's jurisdiction [s. 163.3177(6)(c), F.S.]; and 

 

c. Update the Work Plan for at least a 10-year planning period for constructing the public, private, 
and regional water supply facilities identified in the element as necessary to serve existing 
and new development. [s.163.3177(6)(c),F.S.]. 

 
 

5. Revise the Five-Year Schedule of Capital Improvements to include any water supply, reuse, and 
conservation projects and programs to be implemented during the five-year period [s. 
163.3177(3)(a)4, F.S.]. 

 

6. To the extent necessary to maintain internal consistency after making changes described in 
Paragraph 1 through 5 above, revise the Conservation Element to assess projected water needs 
and sources for at least a 10-year planning period, considering the SFWMD Regional Water 
Supply Plan, the SFWMD Water Management Plan, as well as applicable consumptive use 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 6 

August 7, 20172022  

permit(s). [s.163.3177(6)(d),F.S.]. The plan must address the water supply sources necessary to 
meet and achieve the existing and projected water use and demand for the established planning 
period, considering the SFWMD Regional Water Supply Plan. [s.163.3167(913),F.S.]. 

 

7. To the extent necessary to maintain internal consistency after making changes described in 
Paragraphs 1 through 5 above, revise the Intergovernmental Coordination Element to ensure 
coordination of the comprehensive plan with the SFWMD Regional Water Supply Plan 
[s.163.3177(6)(h)1.F.S.]. 

 

8. While an Evaluation and Appraisal Report is not required, local governments are encouraged to 
comprehensively evaluate, and as necessary, update comprehensive plans to reflect changes in 
local conditions. The evaluation could address the extent to which the local government has 
implemented the need to update their Work Plan, including the development of alternative water 
supplies, and determine whether the identified alternative water supply projects, traditional water 
supply projects, and conservation and reuse programs are meeting local water use demands 
[s.163.3191(3), F.S.]. 

 
9. A local government that does not own, operate, or maintain its own water supply facilities, 

including, but not limited to, wells, treatment facilities, and distribution infrastructure, and is served 
by a public water utility with a permitted allocation of greater than 300 million gallons per day is 
not required to amend its comprehensive plan in response to an updated regional water supply 
plan or to maintain a work plan if any such local government’s usage of water constitutes less 
than 1 percent of the public water utility’s total permitted allocation. However, any such local 
government is required to cooperate with, and provide relevant data to, any local government or 
utility provider that provides and natural groundwater aquifer recharge element updated in 
accordance with s. 163.3191. Any local government may verify its qualifications for the exemption 
with the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) [s.163.3177(6)(c)4., F.S.]. 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 7 

August 7, 20172022  

2.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

2.1 Overview 
 

The City of Miami Springs was founded by Glenn H. Curtiss, in 1926, and was originally known as Country 
Club Estates. The area we now know as Miami Springs was originally 17,000 acres of land bought by 
Curtiss to create a flight school for the growing air travel from Miami. From the original 128 residences 
that occupied the area, the City grew with the expansion of Miami's air travel needs. Today, Miami Springs 
has approximately 14,0000 14,500 residents. 

 

Historically, the development of Miami Springs has been tied to Miami International Airport, and this still 
serves as the largest economic engine within the City. Over time Miami Springs has developed a more 
diversified economy that caters to the needs of its residents and to the people living within the surrounding 
area. 

 

Due to Glenn H. Curtiss’ planning, Miami Springs has developed in a relatively planned and organized 
manner, providing its residents with green space, schools, and easily serviceable areas. While Miami 
Springs has experienced growth, it is important to note that it has not shown the same aggressive growth 
as other cities or as the County. As a substantially built out community the City will not have significant 
population growth during the planning period. The City’s first Water Supply Facilities Work Plan was 
adopted in 2008, and was subsequently updated in 2017. 

 

2.2 City Boundaries 
 

The City is bound by N.W. 36th Street to the south, Miami River to the northeast and Ludlum Road to the 
west. The City also includes a 54-acre parcel of land located between the Miami River to the northeast, 
Le Jeune Road to the west and railroad tracks to the south and southeast. Figure 1 shows Miami Springs’ 
location and boundaries. 

 

2.3 Relevant Regional Issues 
 

Regional issues that affect the City include minimizing pressure on the Everglades and Biscayne Bay 
ecosystems and, Biscayne and Floridan Aquifers. To that end, the Comprehensive Everglades 
Restoration Plan (CERP) is providing the foundation for one of the largest ecosystem restoration projects 
in the world. The SFWMD and the US Army Corps of Engineers have partnered in order to restore, protect 
and preserve the water resources of central and southern Florida, including the Everglades. Various 
projects under CERP help ensure the proper quantity, quality, timing, and distribution of waters to the 
Everglades and all of South Florida. The goal of CERP is to capture fresh water that now flows unused 
to the Atlantic Ocean and the Gulf of Mexico and redirect it to areas that need it most. 

 
The SFWMD is the state agency responsible for water supply in the Lower East Coast planning area 
which includes the jurisdictional boundaries of Miami Springs. SFWMD plays a pivotal role in resource 
protection, through criteria used for Consumptive Use Permitting. As pressure increased on the 
Everglades ecosystem resource, the Governing Board initiated rulemaking to limit increased allocations 
dependent on the Everglades system. As a result, the Regional Water Availability Rule was adopted by 
the Governing Board on February 15, 2007 as part of SFWMD’s water use permit program. This reduced 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 8 

August 7, 20172022  

reliance on the regional system for future water supply needs, mandates the development of alternative 
water supplies, and increasing conservation and reuse. 

 

Even with an ever increasing population, withdrawals from the Aquifers will be limited, greater 
conservation will be required to reduce per capita use; and, reclaimed water must continue to be an 
important alternative water source per the 2008 Leah G. Schad Ocean Outfall Program. The City does 
not have any domestic wastewater facilities which discharge into the ocean. But I It supports Miami-Dade 
Counites efforts in reducing wastewater outflows and providing for reuse. 

 

The Lower East Coast’s 2018 2013 Plan Update notes that a number of utilities have diversified their 
water supplies, including treatment and storage technologies, and water conservation programs. These 
alternatives include constructing brackish Floridan aquifer wells and reverse osmosis treatment plants, 
reclaimed water treatment and distribution facilities, and aquifer storage and recovery systems. Between 
2007 and 2009, 41 MGD of potable water supply capacity was added. From 2010 to 2013, nine utilities 
built public water supply (PWS) projects with a capacity of 49 MGD. Approximately 14 percent of the 
current PWS allocation is now from an alternative water source, primarily brackish groundwater. 

 

Intergovernmental Coordination Policy 1.1.4 provides coordination with MDWASD, RER (DERM) and the 
SFWMD. Intergovernmental Coordination Objective 1.4 and its implementing Policies supports climate 
change and sea level rise initiatives. 

 

From FY2013 to FY2018, the SFWMD provided more than $3 million in alternative water supply funding 
for 11 projects in the LEC Planning Area. Funded projects created 9.25 million gallons per day (mgd) of 
new reclaimed water capacity and 4.19 mgd of additional reclaimed water distribution or storage in the 
LEC Planning Area. 

 

The 2018 Lower East Coast Water Supply Plan Update water supply major issues are as follows: 1. 
Fresh surface water and groundwater are limited; further withdrawals could have impacts on the regional 
system, wetlands, existing legal uses, and saltwater intrusion. As a result, additional alternative water 
supplies need to be developed. 2. Surface water allocations from Lake Okeechobee and the Water 
Conservation Areas are limited in accordance with the Lake Okeechobee Service Area RAA criteria. 3. 
Construction of additional storage systems (e.g., reservoirs, aquifer storage and recovery systems) to 
capture wet season flow volumes will be necessary to increase water availability during dry conditions 
and attenuate damaging peak flow events from Lake Okeechobee. 4. Expanded use of reclaimed water 
is necessary to meet future water supply demands and the Ocean Outfall Law. 5. Expanded use of 
brackish groundwater from the Floridan aquifer system requires careful planning and wellfield 
management to prevent undesirable changes in water quality. 

 

Policies are also in place to assist in the protection of surface and ground waters and, requirements that 
private development and public infrastructure projects maintain required surface water quality standards. 

 

Through Conservation Objectives 1.2, 1.3 and Infrastructure Objectives1.1, 1.3, 1.5 and its implementing 
policies, the City supports the protection and conservation of surface and groundwater. It also and 
maintains required surface water quality standards. Additionally, Intergovernmental Coordination, through 
its implementing Polices under Objectives 1.1 requires coordination with MDWASD and SFWMD. 

 

As further outlined in Section 3.7 of this Plan the City of Miami Springs supports and assists Miami-Dade 
County and SFWMD in implementing programs and incentive for water conservation. 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 9 

August 7, 20172022  

3.0 DATA AND ANALYSIS 

The intent of the Data and Analysis section of the Work Plan is to describe the information that local 
governments need to provide to state planning and regulatory agencies as part of their proposed 
comprehensive plan amendments, particularly those that would change the Future Land Use Map 
(FLUM) to increase density and/or intensity. Additionally, population projections should be reviewed for 
consistency between the County and the SFWMD’s Water Supply Plan Update. 

 
 

3.1 Population Information 
 

According to the 2010 2020 Census, the City had has a population of 13,859 13,809 residents. The July 
2015 2010 estimate count was 14,490 13,809. This is a 4.9 0.8% percent increase in population within 
that timeframe. 

 

The City’s existing and future population (Years 2015-2035) figures were derived from the MDWASD 
Retail Customers estimate. Below is a comparison in tabular format. For the purpose of water supply 
planning the LEC projections will be utilized. As shown in Table 1, the LEC Update states that the 
MDWASD Service Area has a population of 2,239,773. 

 

The total 2010 2020 population of Miami-Dade County, in which the City’s population is included, was 
2,861,401 2,496,435 (Table A-7.B-1 PWS and DSS Service area population projections for the LEC 
Planning Area, 2013 2018 LEC Water Supply Plan Update). 

 

Of that total the Miami-Dade WASD serviced 2,141,885 2,487,983 residents. 
 

 
Table 1. City vs. Miami-Dade County Population Comparison  

 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 

City of 
Miami 
Springs 

 
14,490 

14,473 
15,069 

14,672 
15,447 

14,871 
15,825 

15,070 
16,203 

 

16,581 

MDWASD  
2,266,092 

 

2,370,769 
2,487,983 

 

2,475,446 
2,647,294 

 

2,580,123 
2,792,869 

 

2,642,929 
(2033) 

3,043,340 
Service 

Area 
2,93,543 

Miami-Dade  
2,631,629 

 
2,766,823 
2,861,401 

 
2,902,018 
3,048,599 

 
3,037,212 
3,222,001 

 
3,118,328 

(2033) 

3,515,800 

County 
Total Pop. 

3,374,199 

Source: Draft Miami-Dade WASD 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Plan October 2020 and 2018 LEC Water 
Supply Plan Update. 

 

3.2 Miami Springs' Water Service Area 
 

In September 2008, Miami Springs became a retail water customer of Miami-Dade WASD. Previously 
the City had been a wholesale customer. Figure 2 depicts current and future water service areas of the 
City. MDWASD is the only service provided to customers within the City’s municipal boundaries. The City 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 10 

August 7, 20172022  

is currently undergoing applications for annexation of unincorporated Miami-Dade County areas; 
however, this is still pending final decisions. The proposed annexation area will continue to be served by 
MDWASD. 

 
 
 

3.3 Potable Water Level of Service Standard 
 

Policy 1.5.2 1.2.1 of the Infrastructure Capital Improvements Element of the City’s Comprehensive plan 
contains the City’s Level of Service (LOS) standard for potable water. 

 

The City shall secure adequate potable water supply from the Miami-Dade Water and Sewer 
Department in order to provide an average of 96  94 gallons of potable water per capita per day. 
In addition, the City shall enforce the following standards though its interlocal agreement with the 
Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department: 

 
(a) The regional treatment system shall operate with a rated maximum daily capacity of no less 

than 2 percent above the maximum daily flow for the preceding year, and an average daily 
capacity 2 percent above the average daily system demand for the preceding 5 years. The 
maximum daily flow shall be determined by calculating the average of the highest five single 
day flows for the previous 12 months. 

 
(b) Water shall be delivered to users at a pressure of no less than 20 pounds per square inch 

(psi) and no greater than 100 psi. Unless otherwise approved by the Miami-Dade Fire 
Department, minimum fire flows based on the land use served shall be maintained as follows: 

 
 

 
Land Use Min. Fire Flow (gpm) 

Single Family Residential Estate 500 

Single Family and Duplex; (Residential on 
minimum lots of 7,500 sf) 

750 

Multi-Family Residential; Semiprofessional 
Offices 1,500 

Hospitals; Schools 2,000 
Business and Industry 3,000 

 

(c) Water quality shall meet all federal, state, and county primary standards for potable water. 
 

(d) Countywide storage capacity for finished water shall equal no less than 15 percent of the 
Countywide average daily demand. 

 

The City will continue to encourage the reduction of annual average per person demand pursuant to 
policies in the comprehensive plan as coordinated by MDWASD and the SFWMD. As evidenced by 
MDWASD data, as shown in Subsection 3.4 Table 2, the City has been successful in terms of water 
conservation as compared to other areas of Miami-Dade County (96 93.79 gpcd (Miami Springs) vs. 
137.2 gpcd (WASD)). In the future, the City will participate with Miami-Dade County in the utilization of 
reclaimed/reused water when available. 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 11 

August 7, 20172022  

3.4 Population and Potable Water Demand Projections for Miami Springs 
 

The SFWMD 2013 2018 Lower East Coast Water Supply Plan Update (LEC) details the projected potable 
water demand for MDWASD, which includes the City of Miami Springs. Since MDWASD provides water 
to a number of Miami-Dade County municipalities and most of the unincorporated area, the analysis of 
the City’s water needs is determined by the City’s percentage of the overall population of the MDWASD 
service area population (Table 2). 

 
 
 
 

Table 2. 
MDWASD – Miami Springs 

Current and Projected Water Supply 
(MDWASD) Water Use Permit No. 13-00017-W) 

 
 

 ACTUAL PROJECTED 

 2015 
2020 

2020 

2025 

2025 

2030 

2030 

2035 

2035 

2040 

Population 
14,490 
15,069 

14,473 
15,447 

14,672 
15,825 

14,871 
16,203 

15,070 
16,581 

2018 Per Capita (gallons per day finished 
water) 

96 

93.79 

96 

93.79 

96 

93.79 

96 

93.79 

96 

93.79 

 MGD MGD MGD MGD MGD 

Potable Water Demands (daily average 
annual) – City of Miami Springs 

1.34 
1.41 

1. 34 
1.45 

1.40 
1.48 

1.43 
1.52 

1.45 
1.56 

Notes 
1. Population projections and per Capita data from Draft MDWASD Retail Customers10-Year Water Facilities 

Work Plan Exhibit C-7 
2. Per Capita data from LEC Chapter 6: Water Supply Development Projects, p. 248 

 
 
 
 

 

3.5 Water Supply Distribution Provided by the City of Miami Springs 
 

MDWASD is a regional water and wastewater utility that furnishes potable water service to approximately 
2.6 million inhabitants and tens of thousands of commercial establishments. The service area covers 
numerous municipalities and most of the unincorporated areas of Miami-Dade County. The City of Miami 
Springs does not provide or distribute potable water to the City’s residents or businesses. 

 
After review of County records it has been determined they are incomplete with respect to self-supply 
systems. 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 12 

August 7, 20172022  

3.6 Water Supply Provided by Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department 
 

The City receives its entire water supply from the Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department. In 2007, 
the City indicated their desire to pursue the transfer of its water and sewer department to the County; 
said transfer was approved by the Miami-Dade County Commissioners (BCC) on July 17, 2008. In the 
Miami-Dade County 20-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan, the WASD committed to meet the water 
demand for the municipalities within the service area. 

 

The MDWASD System supplies potable water to over 2.6 million persons, including residents and 
businesses within a number of municipalities, and is an interconnected system of three subareas. The 
WASD's service area includes all portions of Miami-Dade County within the Urban Development 
Boundary (UDB), excluding all or portions of North Miami, North Miami Beach, Miami Gardens, 
Homestead and the Florida City service area. Miami Springs is located in the Hialeah-Preston Subarea, 
which serves the northern part of Miami-Dade County. 

 
The City of Miami Springs is served by the Hialeah-Preston sub-area water treatment plant. The sub- 
area is comprised of dedicated low-pressure pipelines, remote storage tanks, pumping facilities and high 
pressure systems. This system delivers water to Hialeah, Miami Springs, the City of Miami and other 
portions of northeastern Miami-Dade County, generally north of Flagler Street. The Hialeah Reverse 
Osmosis (R.O.) plant was completed in October 2013 and is providing water to the City of Hialeah and 
unincorporated Miami-Dade County. 

 
 

The information contained in the Comprehensive Development Master Plan Amendments adopted 
February 4, 2015 and the draft Miami-Dade WASD 10-year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Miami- 
Dade WASD 20-year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan (2014-2033) Support Data (November 2014), 
the 2013 2018 Lower East Coast Water Supply Plan Update (LEC) approved by the SFWMD on October 
10, 2013 November 8, 2018 and additional information found within Water Use Permit 13-00017-W are 
herein incorporated by reference. The Water Use Permit which was modified and approved by the 
SFWMD on February 9, 2015, will expire on February 9, 2035. 

 
The following Miami-Dade County Comprehensive Development Master Plan Policy supports the 
coordination with the SFWMD LEC Update: 

 
WS-6D. In the development of its future potable water supplies, Miami-Dade County shall, to the 
maximum extent feasible, utilize methods which preserve the integrity of the Biscayne Aquifer, protect 
the quality of surface water and related ecosystems, consider and are compatible with the South Florida 
Water Management District’s Lower East Coast Regional Water Supply Plan and the current Water Use 
Permit, and comply with the land use and environmental protection policies of the Miami-Dade County 
CDMP, the Strategic Regional Policy Plan for South Florida, and the State Comprehensive Plan. 

 

3.7 Conservation 
 

The 2018 LEC Water Supply Plan update suggests that Miami-Dade County may be able to save 
approximately 40 mgd by 2040 if urban and agricultural conservation practices are followed. 

 

Water conservation is the key to maintaining the health and productivity of the Surifical surficial and 
Floridan Aquifers. Promoting water conservation equipment, techniques, and practices will benefit 
customers economically and maintain a realistic water demand picture for utilities. Protection of the 
aquifer system and wellfields (Figure 3.) through conservation and reuse, recharge enhancement, 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 13 

August 7, 20172022  

limitations on withdrawal, regulation of land use, and maintenance of minimum flows and levels will 
ensure the availability of an adequate water supply for all competing demands, maintain and enhance 
the functions of natural systems and preserve water quality. 

 

The City works in coordination with and supports MDWASD, SFWMD and state efforts aimed at 
promoting conservation through a variety of means including working with community groups to promote 
education and water conservation techniques. For example, the Miami Springs Woman’s Club hosted a 
free educational session “Water: Our Most Precious Resource” on April 24, 2017. The City website 
includes links to the Miami-Dade County water restriction and water conservation website. In 2007, the 
City removed water meters and discontinued irrigation to City owned properties, including landscaped 
medians, downtown and City parks. The City provides free water-efficient showerheads to the residents 
in an exchange program. In 2016, the Miami Springs golf course replaced its entire irrigation system with 
a modern, water efficient system. 

 
Beyond educating the business and residential community, the City promotes water conservation through 
conformance with and use of the Miami-Dade County Landscape Ordinance. All landscape projects are 
required to conform with these standards which are enforced during the development review process. 
The City also promotes outdoor conservation through the Miami Springs Ecology Board which promotes 
Florida-friendly landscaping, composting and other water saving techniques. City sponsored projects 
include water efficient landscape techniques as well. The new Westward Drive Bike Path was designed 
with drought tolerant plants which will be an improvement to medians currently landscaped with grass. 

 
The City implements mandatory year-round landscape irrigation conservation per FAC 40E-24 by 
distribution of an educational flyer. The flyer is available on the City’s website, at City hall Hall and is 
provided to violators by the City’s code enforcement team. In addition to the flyer, the City website 
contains a link to the Miami-Dade County webpage detailing the rules pertaining to yard watering 
restrictions. 

 

The City does not currently have reclaimed water capability or infrastructure. 

 

 
3.7.1 County-wide Issues 

 

Section 4.5 Water Conservation and Reuse of the Miami-Dade WASD 20-year Water Supply Facilities 
Work Plan (2014-2033) Support Data (November 2014) outlines additional MDWASD efforts. (pages 4- 
6 and 7). 

 

Miami-Dade Consolidated PWS Water Use Permit No. 13-00017-W Water Conservation Plan 2020 
Annual Report Section I states BMPs implemented since the plan inception resulted in declining per 
capita water consumption. Because of public outreach efforts as of December 31, 2020, the County is 
currently experiencing actual finished water demands of 324.26 MGD, which is approximately 17 MGD 
lower than 2006 actual finished water demands of 341.58 MGD (as of 12/31/2006), the year prior to 
implementation of the WUE Plan). 

 

Presently, water utilities are saving substantial amounts of water through strategic water-efficiency 
programs and Best Management Practices (BMP) included in their Water Use Efficiency Plan. The 
savings from water conservation often translate into more potable water available for residential and non- 
residential use, capital and operating savings, which allow systems to defer or avoid significant 
 expenditures for water supply facilities and wastewater facilities.  



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 14 

August 7, 20172022  

The City continues to remain in full support of the water conservation initiatives adopted by SFWMD and 
Miami-Dade County. 

 

While the City is not responsible for the Comprehensive Everglades Restoration Project, it is supportive 
of the regional water conservation efforts related to this regional rehydration of the Florida Everglades. 
The City is also supportive of mandating yard water restrictions that have been directed by the South 
Florida Regional Water Management District. There are no water conservation projects identified in the 
City’s Capital Improvements Element or Capital Improvements Program. 

 
The City will continue to coordinate future water conservation efforts with WASD and SFWMD to ensure 
that proper techniques are applied. The City will continue to actively support SFWMD and Miami-Dade 
County in the implementation of new regulations or programs that are designed to conserve water. The 
City provides a link to the County webpage related to conservation and water restriction policies. 

 
Reuse 
For the past several years, t The State of Florida is leading the nation in water reuse. The water reuse 
effort in the state is primarily led by utilities, local governments, the water management districts and state 
agencies. The intent of their efforts is to implement water reuse programs that increase the volume of 
reclaimed water used and promotes public acceptance of reclaimed water. While the City does not own 
or maintain the water infrastructure, the City is in full support of the water reuse initiatives under 
consideration by both the SFWMD and Miami-Dade County. The County has committed to implement a 
total of 117.5 mgd of water reuse as noted in the County’s 20-year water use permit. 

 

Currently, WASD is implementing a total of 16.49 MGD of reuse at each of the Wastewater Treatment 
Plants, primarily for in-plant (process water) use. In addition, WASD will be providing up to 15 MGD of 
reclaimed water from the South District Wastewater Treatment Plant to the FPL facilities at Turkey 
Point, per Miami-Dade County Resolution No. R-579-20 approved by the BCC on June 16, 2020. At 
this time, WASD does not have additional reuse projects that are technically, environmentally, and 
economically feasible as defined in the Florida Statute. 

 

3.7.2 Local Government Specific Actions, Programs, Regulations, or Opportunities 
 

The City will coordinate future water conservation efforts with the WASD and the SFWMD to ensure that 
proper techniques are applied. In addition, the City will continue to support and expand existing goals, 
objectives and policies in the comprehensive plan that promote water conservation in a cost-effective and 
environmentally sensitive manner. The City will continue to actively support the SFWMD and Miami- Dade 
County in the implementation of new regulations or programs that are designed to conserve water. The 
City will also continue to comply with all the Water Use Efficiency requirements included in the Miami- Dade 
County Code. Finally, the City will administer its own water conservation policies and programs. 

 
The City implements mandatory year-round landscape irrigation conservation per FAC 40E-24 by 
distribution of an educational flyer. The flyer is available on the City’s website, at City hall and is provided 
to violators by the City’s code enforcement team. In addition to the flyer, the City website contains a link 
to the Miami-Dade County webpage detailing the rules pertaining to yard watering restrictions. 

 

 
3.7.3 MDWASD Specific Regulations 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 15 

August 7, 20172022  

MDWASD, and therefore the City of Miami Springs, implement water conservation through the following 
Ordinances: Irrigation Hours, Florida-Friendly Landscape, Ultralow Volume High Efficiency Fixtures, Rain 
Sensor, Water Conservation Rate Structure, Leak Detect & Repair Program and Public Education 
Program. The City will also continue to comply with all the Water Use Efficiency requirements included 
in the Code of Miami-Dade County. 

 
 

3.8 Reuse 
 

3.8.1 Regional and County-wide Issues 
 

State law supports reuse efforts. For the past years, Florida's utilities, local governments and water 
management districts have led the nation in implementing water reuse programs that increase the 
quantity of reclaimed water used and public acceptance of reuse programs. Section 373.250( 1) F.S. 
provides that “The encouragement and promotion of water conservation and reuse of reclaimed water, 
as defined by the department and used in this chapter, are state objectives and considered to be in the 
public interest.” In addition, Section 403.064(1), F.S., provides that "reuse is a critical component of 
meeting the state's existing and future water supply needs while sustaining natural systems." 

 

The City supports water reuse initiatives under consideration by both the SFWMD and Miami-Dade 
County. The County has committed to implement a total of 117.5 MGD of water reuse as noted in the 
County's 20-year water use permit. In the According to the 20 10-year Work Plan, “the County’s projected 
finished water demands are now markedly lower than anticipated when the first 20-year water use permit 
application as submitted. As such, wastewater reuse to address water supply demands is no longer 
required, and other alternative water supplies (Floridian aquifer, water conservation, C-51 reservoir, etc.) 
have been determined to be more viable and shall be considered in the future.” identified a number of 
water reuse projects and their respective schedules. According to the Plan, "reuse projects to recharge 
the aquifer with highly treated, reclaimed water will be in place before additional withdrawals over the 
base condition water use are made from the Alexander Orr and South Dade subarea wellfields. In 
addition, reuse irrigation projects are anticipated for the North and Central District Wastewater Treatment 
Plants. These projects will be implemented in the Cities of North Miami and North Miami Beach and are 
currently under construction for Key Biscayne." 

 

3.8.2 Local Government Specific Actions, Programs, Regulations, or Opportunities 
 

The City will support the SFWMD and Miami-Dade County water reuse projects, and implementation of 
new regulations or programs designed to increase the volume of reclaimed water used and public 
acceptance of reclaimed water. 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 16 

August 7, 20172022  

4.0 INTERGOVERNMENTAL COORDINATION 
 

The provision of water supply needs in the City is achieved in coordination with local, county, and regional 
partners including Miami-Dade County WASD and SFWMD. MDWASD is the City’s primary water partner 
as they provide the City its water service utilities. MDWASD ensures that water supply services are 
provided to the majority of residents of Miami-Dade County in the most efficient and effective manner. 
SFWMD acts to protect the region’s water supply resources and coordinates the implementation of state 
water regulations and policies through local water planning efforts and water supply services. 

 

In this update of the Water Supply Plan, the City has reviewed its water supply related Comprehensive 
Plan Objectives and Policies and updated them as necessary. Changes to the Comprehensive Plan 
Objectives and Policies are set forth in the amended Comprehensive Plan which is incorporated herein. 
Some of the policies included in in the amended Comprehensive Plan which detail coordination efforts 
between the City and both MDWASD and SFWMD, to provide sufficient water to its residents, are: 

 

• Capital Improvements Element 

o Goal 1, Objective 1.2, Policy 1.2.1 – 
o Goal 1, Objective 1.2, Policy 1.2.3 – 
o Goal 1, Objective 1.2, Policy 1.2.4 – 

• Conservation Element 

o Goal 1, Objective 1.2, Policy 1.2.1 – 
o Goal 1, Objective 1.2, Policy 1.2.3 – 
o Goal 1, Objective 1.3, Policy 1.3.1 – 

• Intergovernmental Coordination Element 

o Goal 1, Objective 1.1, Policy 1.1.4 – 
o Goal 1, Objective 1.1, Policy 1.1.5 – 
o Goal 1, Objective 1.4, Policy 1.4.1 – 
o Goal 1, Objective 1.4, Policy 1.4.2 – 
o Goal 1, Objective 1.4, Policy 1.4.3 – 

• Infrastructure Element 

o Goal 1, Objective 1.1, Policy 1.1.2; Policy 1.1.3; and Policy 1.1.4 
o Goal 1, Objective 1.3, Policy 1.3.1; Policy 1.3.2; Policy 1.3.3; and Policy 1.3.4 
o Goal 1, Objective 1.4, Policy 1.4.2; Policy 1.4.3 

o Goal 1, Objective 1.5, Policy 1.5.1; Policy 1.5.2; Policy 1.5.3; Policy 1.5.4; Policy 1.5.5 

As a retail customer, the City must coordinate the adequate supply of water and conservation practices 
with MDWASD and implement the requirements of County Code. 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 17 

August 7, 20172022  

5.0 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
 
 

The information contained in the Comprehensive Development Master Plan Amendments adopted 
February 4, 2015 and the Miami-Dade WASD 2010-year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan (2014-2033 
October 2020), Support Data (November 2014), the 2013 2018 Lower East Coast Water Supply Plan 
Update (LEC) approved by the SFWMD on October 10, 2013 November 8, 2018 and additional 
information found within Water Use Permit 13-00017-W are herein incorporated by reference. The Water 
Use Permit which was modified and approved by the SFWMD on February 9, 2015, will expire on 
February 9, 2035. WASD has requested an extension of the permit to 2040. 

 

As a retail customer the City of Miami Springs is not responsible for the provision of infrastructure for 
potable water treatment and distribution. There are no water facility projects in the City’s Capital 
Improvements Program during this planning period. Below is a partial list of MDWASD projects and 
changes to its Capital Improvement Schedule. 

 

As stated previously in Section 3.6, Miami Springs is located within the Hialeah-Preston (H-P) subarea 
and is comprised of dedicated low-pressure pipelines, remote storage tanks, pumping facilities and high- 
pressure systems. This system delivers water to Hialeah, Miami Springs, Virginia Gardens, the City of 
Miami and other portions of northeastern Miami-Dade County, generally north of Flagler Street. The 
Hialeah Reverse Osmosis (R.O.) plant was completed in October 2013 and is providing water to the City 
of Hialeah and unincorporated Miami-Dade County. 

 
City Capital Improvements Projects 
City of Miami Springs 
Capital Improvements 2022 -2027 Stormwater 

 
 FUNDING 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 Totals 

STORMWATER        

O&M Stormwater 
system 

 

Revenues 
 

 100,000 
 

100,000 
 

100,000 
 

100,000 
 

100,000 
 

500,000 

Oakwood/East Drive 
Stormwater Project 

 

ARPA 
 

  5,192,476 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

5,192,476 

NRP 
Median/Stormwater 
Project 

 

ARPA 

 

  2,348,721 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

2,348,721 
        

TOTAL ENTERPRISE 
FUNDS 

 
  7,716,197 100,000 331,000 185,000 185,000 8,517,197 

        

TOTAL ALL FUNDS 
 

 16,862,510 1,208,946 2,427,420 2,320,866 3,462,184 26,146,926 

 
 
 

The following major Capital Improvements Projects may impact the City and are as further described in 
the Miami-Dade WASD 2010-year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan (2014-2033) Support Data 
(November 2014) Table 12 5-1: 
1) Systemwide Wellfield Improvements; 

2) Systemwide Water Main Extensions; 
3) Central M-D Water Transmission Mains Improvements: and, 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 18 

August 7, 20172022  

4) Alexander Orr, Jr. Water Treatment Plant Expansion. 
 

Alternative Water Supply Projects 
10 MGD Hialeah RO WTP Phase 1 – Operational October 2013 (7.5 MGD well capacity 
constructed, increased to 10 MGD by end of 2020 when well completed.) 
20 MGD South Miami Heights WTP – under design (17.5 MGD Biscayne Florida Aquifer/2.5 MGD 
Florida Biscayne Aquifer) 

 

Alternative Water Supply Project’s – anticipated to be completed by December 31, 2018 
Hialeah RO WTP Phase 2 and 3 
Hialeah Floridan Aquifer RO WTP Phase 1-b, 4 Florida Aquifer supply plans.   
South Miami Heights WTP Phase 1 (RO Portion) – anticipated completion date 12/31/2026 
South Miami Heights WTP Phase 2 (RO Portion) – anticipated completion date 12/31/2031 

 

Graham Wells Construction 
Blending and canal recharge projects 

 

Reuse Projects 
Updated Reuse Projects 

Existing Reuse at Three Wastewater Treatment Plants 
Biscayne Bay Coastal Wetlands Rehydration 
 Pilot Completed 
 Full Scale capacity 
90 MGD FPL for new cooling towers 

CDWWTP, SDWWTP, New WDWWTP Florida Aquifer re-charge to meet Ocean Outfall 
Legislation (Total 27.6 MGD) 

 

CANCELLED Reuse Projects 
Phase 1 and 2 Canal Re-charge for Alexander Orr WTP 

 

Water Treatment Plants 
Hialeah RO WTP 

On-line October 2013 2020 
10 MGD (7.5 MGD Operational) 

50% MDWASD/50% Hialeah 
South Miami Heights 

On-line by December 31, 2019 2026 

17.5 MGD Finished Water from Florida Aquifer 
2.55 MGD Finished Water from Biscayne Aquifer (to be completed 12/31/2031) 

 

Expenditures and Revenues associated with the above referenced projects, and others, are found in 
Table 3 on the following page. 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 19 

August 7, 20172022  

Table 3. 
MDWASD – Water Supply CIE Projects 

City of Miami Springs 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 20 

August 7, 20172022  

 
 
 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 21 

August 7, 20172022  

 
 
 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 22 

August 7, 20172022  

 
 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 23 

August 7, 20172022  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 24 

August 7, 20172022  

6.0 CONCLUSION 
 

This Work Plan is a small reflection of the larger, more detailed Miami-Dade County Water Supply 
Facilities Work Plan Update. This is because the City receives its entire water supply from the Miami- 
Dade Water and Sewer Department. The Miami-Dade County Work Plan must consider the needs of all 
of its service area including retail and wholesale customers. In order to be consistent with Miami-Dade 
County, the City has utilized the information and data supplied in the Miami-Dade County Work Plan to 
produce its own work plan as required by Florida Statutes. As demonstrated in both the City and County 
work plans, the City will have an adequate water supply to meet its projected growth through the year 
2050.2040. 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 25 

August 7, 20172022  

Exhibit B 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 

The following section lists the Goals, Objectives and Policies being adopted into the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan to ensure consistency between the elements in the Comprehensive Plan and the 
20202015 MDWASD 2010-year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update. 

 

All references to 9J.5 are hereby deleted. 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT 

 

GOAL 1 UNDERTAKE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS NECESSARY TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND A HIGH QUALITY OF LIFE, WITHIN SOUND FISCAL 
PRACTICES. 

 
 

Objective 1.1 Annual Capital Improvements 
Programming Process 

 
In general, use the capital improvements element as a means to existing deficiencies, 
accommodate desired future growth and replace obsolete or worn-out facilities. In 
particular, use this Element as the framework to monitor public facility needs as a basis 
for annual capital budget and five-year program preparation. 

 
 

Objective 1.2 Coordinate Land Use, Financial Resources, and Level of Service Standards 
To coordinate future land use decisions with existing and planned capital facilities using 
the adopted level of service standards contained in this Element. 

 
 

Policy 1.2.1 
The following Level of Service (LOS) standards shall be maintained: 

 
* * * 

 

Potable Water: The City shall secure adequate potable water supply from Miami-Dade 
WASD to provide an average of 155 94 gallons of water per capita per day. In addition, 
the City shall enforce the following standards though its interlocal agreement with the 
Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department: 

 

(a) The regional treatment system shall operate with a rated maximum daily capacity of 
no less than 2 percent above the maximum daily flow for the preceding year and an 
average daily capacity of 2 percent above the average daily system demand for the 
preceding 5 years. The maximum daily flow shall be determined by calculating the 
average of the highest five single day flows for the previous 12 months. 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 26 

August 7, 20172022  

(b) Water shall be delivered to users at a pressure no less than 20 pounds per square 
inch (psi) and no greater than 100 psi. Unless otherwise approved by the Miami-Dade 
Fire Department, minimum fire flows based on the land use served shall be maintained 
as follows: 

 
Land Use Min. Fire Flow (gpm) 
Single Family Residential Estate 500 

Single Family and Duplex; (Residential on 
minimum lots of 7,500 sf) 

750 

Multi-Family Residential; Semiprofessional 
Offices 

1,500 

Hospitals; Schools 2,000 
Business and Industry 3,000 

 
(c) Water quality shall meet all federal, state, and County primary standards for potable 

water. 
 

(d) Countywide storage capacity for finished water shall equal no less than 15 percent of 
the Countywide average daily demand. 

 

* * * 
 

Policy 1.2.3 

 
Miami Springs hereby adopts by reference, the Miami-Dade Water Supply Facilities Work Plan as 
revised April 2008, the capital projects described therein and subsequent revisions. County 
Comprehensive Development Master Plan Amendments adopted February 4, 2015, the Miami-
Dade Water and Sewer Department 20-year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan (2014-2033) 
Support Data (November 2014), the 2013 2018 Lower East Coast Water Supply Plan Update 
(LEC) approved by the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) on October 10, 2013 
November 8, 2018 and additional information found within Water Use Permit 13-00017-W are 
herein incorporated by reference. The Water Use Permit which was modified and approved by the 
SFWMD on February 9, 2015, will now expire on February 9, 2035.Currently, WASD is preparing 
to submit a WUP modification that will include updated water demand projections based on 
revised population data and is requesting an extension of the permit duration through the year 
2040. 

 
 

Policy 1.2.4 
Miami Springs shall adopt and implement a water supply facilities work plan for at least a 
ten-year planning period that reflects coordination with the South Florida Water 
Management District's Lower East Coast Water Supply Plan Update as required by section 
163.3177(6)(c), F.S. within 18 months after updates or amendments to it are approved by 
the District. 

 
 

Policy 1.2.5 
Prior to approval of a building permit or its functional equivalent, the City shall consult with 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 27 

August 7, 20172022  

the Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer Department, the City's water supplier, to 
determine whether supplies to serve the new development will be available no later than 
the anticipated date of issuance of certificate of occupancy. 

 

CONSERVATION ELEMENT 

 

GOAL1 PRESERVE AND ENHANCE SIGNIFICANT NATURAL RESOURCES IN MIAMI 
SPRINGS. 

 

Objective 1.2 Water Quality and Quantity 

 
In general, conserve, appropriately use and protect the quality and quantity of current and 
projected water sources and water that flow into estuarine waters or oceanic waters. In 
particular, upgrade the drainage system so that stormwater outfalls into the Miami River 
Canal fully meet National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) standards. 
Upgrade on-site drainage standards to ensure that private properties retain at least the 
first one i nch of stormwater on-site and permit no more runoff after development than 
before development. 

 
Policy 1.2.1 

 

The City shall cooperate with the Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer Authority and 
other Miami-Dade County agencies to help ensure that wellfields and cones of influence 
are protected. Protection measures shall include restrictions on uses. No new facilities 
that use, handle, generate, transport or dispose of hazardous wastes shall be permitted 
within wellfield protection areas, and all existing facilities that use, handle, generate, 
transport or dispose of more that than the maximum allowable quantity of hazardous 
wastes (as specified in Chapter 24-12-1 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, as may be 
amended from time to time within wellfield protection areas shall be required to take 
substantial measures such as secondary containment and improved operating procedures 
to ensure environmentally safe operations. 

 

Policy 1.2.3 
The City shall ensure that the water quality in the traditional and new alternative water 
supply sources is protected. 

 

Objective 1.3 Water Supply 
 

To support the City’s potable water suppliers in the development of alternate water supply 
sources as approved by the South Florida Water Management District and to further 
conserve potable water during emergency situations. 

 
 

Policy 1.3.1 
The City will continue to enforce an emergency water conservation ordinance based on 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 28 

August 7, 20172022  

both the South Florida Water Management District model ordinance and any specific 
SFWMD requirements. In addition, the City will work with SFWMD to create a plan which 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 29 

August 7, 20172022  

allows for alternative water supply development funding, more comprehensive regional 
water supply plans, and enhanced consumptive use permitting. 

 
 

FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT 
 

GOAL 1: ACHIEVE THE FOLLOWING COMMUNITY CHARACTER: 
 

Miami Springs should be a residential community which offers the best possible residential 
environment consistent with its location and development history. Development policies 
should protect and preserve its single-family residential character and neighborhoods by 
maintaining an adequate supply of safe decent and affordable housing for its current and 
future residents. 

 
 

Policy 1.1.4 
The City shall enact and enforce as part of the land development code a concurrency 
management system. The concurrency management system shall specify that no 
development permit shall be issued unless the public facilities necessitated by a 
development (in order to meet level of service standards specified in the Transportation, 
Recreation and Open Space, and Infrastructure Policies) will be in place concurrent with 
the impacts of the development or the permit is conditional to assure that they will be in 
place. The requirement that no development permit shall be issued unless public facilities 
necessitated by the project are in place concurrent with the impacts of development shall 
be effective immediately and shall be interpreted pursuant to the following: 

 

* * * 

 

Objective 1.4 Ensure Protection of Natural Resources 
 

In general, ensure protection of natural resources. In particular, upgrade the drainage 
system so that stormwater outfalls into the Miami River Canal fully meet National Pollution 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) standards. 

 
Policy 1.4.2 9J-5.006(3)(c)4 

 

The City shall continue to follow all or a portion of the recommendations of the May 1995 
Storm water Management Masterplan prepared by Post, Buckley Schuh & Jernigan, Inc. 
The policy implications of the Post, Buckley, Schuh & Jernigan, Inc. study are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

 
 

Policy 1.4.3 
The City shall continue to incorporate in its capital improvements program any and all 
expenditures necessitated by the implementation of Policy 1.4.2 above. 

 

Policy 1.4.4 
The City will periodically test pollutant loads in its six stormwater outfalls. 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 30 

August 7, 20172022  

Policy 1.4.5 
The City shall update its Drainage Comprehensive Plan as necessary to ensure the 
continued efficacy of its provisions to upgrade the storm sewer system 

 
Policy 1.4.6 
The City will continue to ensure coordination between land use and future water supply 
planning. 

 
 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COORDINATION ELEMENT 
 

GOAL 1 TO MAINTAIN OR ESTABLISH PROCESSES TO ASSURE COORDINATION WITH 
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES WHERE NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
PLAN. 

 
 

Objective 1.1 Coordinate with the Plans of Other Jurisdictions and Agencies 

 
 

In general, coordinate the Miami Springs Comprehensive Plan with the plans of adjacent 
jurisdictions and agencies. In particular, achieve maximum feasible levels of consistency 
between the plans for Miami Springs, the Miami-Dade County School Board, Miami-Dade 
County, Virginia Gardens, Hialeah, the South Florida Water Management District, and the 
Florida Department of Transportation. 

 
 

The City shall coordinate the planning of potable water and sanitary sewer facilities and 
services and level-of-service standards with the Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer 
Department, Department of Regulatory and Economic Resources, and the South Florida 
Water Management District. 

 

Policy 1.1.5 
Miami Springs shall adopt and implement a water supply facilities work plan for at least a 
ten-year planning period that reflects coordination with the South Florida Water 
Management District's Lower East Coast Water Supply Plan Update within 18 months 
after updates or amendments to it are approved by the District. 

 
 

Objective 1.4 Support climate change and sea level rise initiatives. 
 

Policy 1.4.1  
Support the Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department and South Florida Water 
Management District in any efforts to evaluate the consequences of sea level rise, 
changing rainfall and storm patterns, temperature effects, and cumulative impacts to 
existing structures and existing legal uses. 

 
 

Policy 1.4.2  



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 31 

August 7, 20172022  

Participate in the Southeast Florida Regional Climate Change Compact to support 
regional planning efforts and initiatives to adapt to rising sea level in the LEC Planning 
Area. 

 
 

Policy 1.4.3 
Work collaboratively with the Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department, other utilities and 
South Florida Water Management District to identify the utility wellfields and other users 
at potential risk of saltwater intrusion within the LEC Planning Area. 

 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE ELEMENT 
 

GOAL 1:  PROVIDE AND MAINTAIN THE PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE IN A MANNER THAT WILL 
ENSURE WATER QUALITY, CONSERVE NATURAL RESOURCES AND PROTECT 
THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND QUALITY OF LIFE FOR MIAMI SPRINGS 
RESIDENTS 

 
 

Objective 1.1 Correct Drainage Deficiencies Increase Drainage Capacity 

 
 

Correct existing drainage facility deficiencies and increase drainage capacity. Upgrade 
the drainage system so that stormwater outfalls into the Miami River Canal fully meet 
National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) standards Upgrade on s ite 
drainage standards to ensure that private properties retain at least the first one inch of 
stormwater on site and permit no more runoff after development than before development. 

 
Policy 1.1.2 

 
The City shall continue to follow the recommendations of the May 1995 Stormwater 
Management Masterplan prepared by Post, Buckley Schuh & Jernigan as further defined 
in the priorities identified in the April 2001 Stormwater Master Plan Update. The policy and 
planning implications of the Post, Buckley, Schuh & Jernigan, Inc. studies are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

 
Policy 1.1.3 
The City will determine the need for laboratory testing of pollutant loads in its six 
stormwater outfalls. 

 
Policy 1.1.4 
The City shall update its Stormwater Management Master Plan as necessary to ensure 
the continued efficacy of its provisions to upgrade the storm sewer system in accordance 
with the specific standards of Objective 1.1 above. 

 
Objective 1.3 Correct Potable Water Deficiencies 

 

To correct existing potable water system deficiencies and otherwise improve potable water 
service. 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 32 

August 7, 20172022  

Policy 1.3.1 
The City shall coordinate with Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer Department to 
identify and correct potable water deficiencies in the City. 

 

Policy 1.3.2 
The City shall coordinate with Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer Department to plan 
for infrastructure improvements and expansions to serve new development and 
redevelopment 

 

Policy 1.3.3 
The City will support the SFWMD and Miami-Dade County water reuse projects and 
implementation of new regulations or programs designed to increase the volume of 
reclaimed water used and public acceptance of reclaimed water. 

 
Policy 1.3.4 
The City will coordinate with Miami-Dade County in the adoption and updates to the Water 
Supply Plan. 

 

Objective 1.4 Level of Service 
 

Continue to secure adequate water supply and potable water treatment capacity to meet 
the City's adopted level of service (LOS) standards; see policies for measurable standards. 

 
Policy 1.4.2 
Potable Water: The City shall secure adequate potable water supply from the Miami- 
Dade Water and Sewer Department in order to provide an average of 155 96 94 gallons 
of potable water per capita per day. In addition, the City shall enforce the following 
standards though its interlocal agreement with the Miami-Dade Water and Sewer 
Department: 

 
(a) The regional treatment system shall operate with a rated maximum daily capacity of 

no less than 2 percent above the maximum daily flow for the preceding year, and an 
average daily capacity 2 percent above the average daily system demand for the 
preceding 5 years. The maximum daily flow shall be determined by calculating the 
average of the highest five single day flows for the previous 12 months. 

 
(b) Water shall be delivered to users at a pressure of no less than 20 pounds per square 

inch (psi) and no greater than 100 psi. Unless otherwise approved by the Miami-Dade 
Fire Department, minimum fire flows based on the land use served shall be maintained 
as follows: 

 
Land Use Min. Fire Flow (gpm) 

Single Family Residential Estate 500 

Single Family and Duplex; (Residential on 
minimum lots of 7,500 sf) 

750 

Multi-Family Residential; Semiprofessional 
Offices 1,500 

Hospitals; Schools 2,000 

Business and Industry 3,000 
 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 33 

August 7, 20172022  

(c) Water quality shall meet all federal, state, and county primary standards for potable 
water. 

 

(d) Countywide storage capacity for finished water shall equal no less than 15 percent of 
the countywide average daily demand. 

 

Policy 1.4.3 
Drainage: All nonresidential development and redevelopment shall adequately 
accommodate runoff to meet all Federal, state and local requirements. Stormwater shall 
be treated in accordance with the state code. One inch of runoff shall be retained on site. 
Post-development runoff shall not exceed peak pre development runoff 

 
 

Objective 1.5 Water Conservation 
 

Implement water conservation initiatives recommended by Miami-Dade County, the South 
Florida Water Management District. the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
and the City's Utilities Department. 

Policy 1.5.1 
The City shall promote: 1) water conservation-based irrigation; 2) water conservation- 
based plant species derived from the South Florida Water Management District's list of 
native species and other appropriate sources; 3) lawn watering restrictions; 4) mandatory 
use of ultra-low volume water saving devices for substantial rehabilitation and new 
construction; and 5) other water conservation measures, as feasible. The City will comply 
with water use efficiency techniques for indoor water use in accordance with Section 8- 
31, 32-84 and 8A-381 of the Code of Miami-Dade County. All future development will 
comply with the landscape standards in Sections 18-A and 18-B of Miami-Dade County 
Code. 

 

Policy 1.5.2 
The city shall promote education programs for residential, commercial and other uses 
which will discourage waste and conserve potable water. The City will coordinate with the 
Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department on this matter whenever possible. 

 

Policy 1.5.3 
The City shall collaborate with the Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer Department 
efforts to identify and reduce non-revenue water. 

 
 

Policy 1.5.4 
The City shall coordinate future water conservation efforts with the Miami-Dade Water and 
Sewer Department and the South Florida Water Management District to ensure that proper 
techniques are applied. In addition, the City shall continue to support and expand existing 
goals, objectives and policies in the comprehensive plan that promote water conservation 
in a cost-effective and environmentally sensitive manner. 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 34 

August 7, 20172022  

Policy 1.5.5 
The City will continue to actively support the SFWMD and Miami-Dade County in the 
implementation of new regulations or programs that are designed to conserve water during 
the dry season. The City will also comply with the water conservation requirements of the 
Miami-Dade County Code. 

 

Policy 1.5.6 
The City shall adopt Florida Friendly Landscape principles into the Land Development Regulations. 

 

Policy 1.5.7 
The City shall maximize the use of native plants in City landscaping projects and large 
redevelopment sites utilizing Florida Friendly Landscape principles to provide and improve urban 
habitat and connectivity for native species. 

 
Policy 1.5.8 
The City shall continue to evaluate alternative potable water supply sources evaluation techniques 
and technologies for water capture and reuse, including rainwater harvesting, and revise its Land 
Development Regulations as necessary to allow for these options with local building design 

 
Policy 1.5.9 
The City shall continue to promote the use of ultra-low-flow high efficiency plumbing fixtures 
through its Showerhead Exchange Program and requires and enforces the guidelines established 
by the Florida Building Code, Plumbing. 

 
 
 

Figures 
 

Figure 1 – Miami Springs General Location Map 
Figure 2 – Miami-Dade County Water Service Area Map 
Figure 3 – Miami-Dade County Wellfield Protection Cones of Influence Map 
Figure 4 – Miami Springs Wellfield Protection Cones of Influence Map 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 35 

August 7, 20172022  

 
Figure 1 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 36 

August 7, 20172022  

 

 
Figure 2 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 37 

August 7, 20172022  

 
Figure 3 



City of Miami Springs 
2017 2022 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update 
P a g e | 38 

August 7, 20172022 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO.    - 2022 1 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, 2 

FLORIDA, APPROVING A SMALL SCALE 3 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT TO THE CITY’S 4 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP (FLUM) FROM “PUBLIC 5 

FACILITY” TO “SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL” FOR A 6 

37,751 SQUARE FOOT (±0.86 ACRE) PARCEL OF 7 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT 1101 WREN 8 

AVENUE; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; 9 

PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 10 

SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 11 

DATE. 12 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements set forth in Chapter 163, Florida 13 

Statutes, Enclave at Miami Springs, LLC (the “Applicant”) is requesting a Small Scale 14 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment to modify the City of Miami Springs’ (the “City”) Future 15 

Land Use Map (FLUM) from “Public Facility” to “Single Family Residential” for a 37,751 16 

square foot (± 0.86 acre) parcel of property generally located at 1101 Wren Avenue (the 17 

“Property”), as legally described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, (the “FLUM 18 

Amendment”); and 19 

WHEREAS, after careful review and deliberation, City Staff has determined that 20 

the FLUM Amendment is in compliance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and 21 

consistent with Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes, as set forth in the City Staff’s Report 22 

and Recommendations, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B” 23 

and which contains data and analysis supporting the FLUM Amendment; and  24 

WHEREAS, Section 150.130 of the City’s Code of Ordinances (the “Code”) 25 

provides that the City Council has been designated at the Local Planning Agency for the 26 

City pursuant to Section 163.3174, Florida Statutes; and 27 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 150.131 of the City’s Code of Ordinances and 28 

Section 163.3174(4), Florida Statutes, on     , 2022, at a duly 29 

noticed public hearing in accordance with law, the City Council, sitting as the Local 30 

Planning Agency, considered the recommendation of City Staff, the Applicant’s 31 

application, and all comments received concerning the FLUM Amendment as required by 32 

State laws and local ordinances, and recommended approval of the FLUM Amendment; 33 

and  34 

WHEREAS, after reviewing the Local Planning Agency’s recommendation, the 35 

recommendation of City Staff, the Applicant’s application, and comments from the public, 36 

the City Council finds that the proposed FLUM Amendment to the City’s Comprehensive 37 

Plan for the Property is in compliance with and consistent with Florida law and the City’s 38 

Comprehensive Plan and wishes to approve this Ordinance. 39 



Ordinance No.   -2022 
Page 2 of 3 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 40 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:1 41 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 42 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 43 

Section 2. Approval of Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 44 

Map (FLUM) Amendment. Pursuant to Section 163.3187, Florida Statutes, the City 45 

Council hereby approves a small scale Comprehensive Plan amendment of the City’s 46 

Future Land Use Map (FLUM) from “Public Facility” to “Single Family Residential” for the 47 

for a 37,751 square foot (± 0.86 acre) parcel of property generally located at 1101 Wren 48 

Avenue (the “Property”), as legally described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 49 

incorporated herein. 50 

Section 3. Authorization. That the City Manager, by and through the Director 51 

of Zoning and Planning, is authorized to make the necessary changes the City’s 52 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map (FLUM) to reflect the FLUM Amendment 53 

approved by this Ordinance. 54 

Section 4. Conflicts. All Sections or parts of Sections of the Code of 55 

Ordinances, all ordinances or parts of ordinances, and all Resolutions, or parts of 56 

Resolutions, in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 57 

Section 5. Severability. That the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to 58 

be severable and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for 59 

any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the 60 

validity of the remaining sections, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance but 61 

they shall remain in effect, it being the legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand 62 

notwithstanding the invalidity of any part. 63 

Section 6. Effective Date. That this Ordinance shall become effective 64 

immediately upon adoption on second reading, except that, pursuant to Section 65 

163.3187(5)(c), Florida Statutes, the FLUM Amendment adopted by this Ordinance shall 66 

not become effective until 31 days adoption. If timely challenged, the FLUM Amendment 67 

adopted by this Ordinance may not become effective until the state land planning agency 68 

or the Administration Commission, respectively, issues a final order determining that the 69 

adopted small scale development amendment is in compliance with Section 163.3184, 70 

Florida Statutes. 71 

PASSED ON FIRST READING on the   day of  , 2022,, on a motion made 72 

by      and seconded by     . 73 

                                                            
1 Coding: Strikethrough words are deletions to the existing words. Underlined words are additions to the existing words. Changes 
between first and second reading are indicated with double strikethrough and double underline. 



Ordinance No.   -2022 
Page 3 of 3 

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this   day of  , 2022, 74 

on a motion made by    and seconded by    . Upon being put to a 75 

roll call vote, the vote was as follows: 76 

Vice Mayor Dr. Walter Fajet    77 

Councilman Bob Best      78 

Councilwoman Jacky Bravo    79 

Councilman Dr. Victor Vazquez    80 

Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell    81 

 82 

 83 

              84 

       MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 85 

MAYOR 86 

ATTEST: 87 

 88 

 89 

        90 

ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  91 

CITY CLERK 92 

 93 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 94 

FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 95 

 96 

 97 

        98 

WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 99 

CITY ATTORNEY 100 



Mr. Chris Heid 

City Planner 

Page 7 

 

 

Bercow Radell Fernandez Larkin & Tapanes | 305.377.6227 direct | 305.377.6222 fax | mtapanes@brzoninglaw.com 

Exhibit “A” 

 

Legal Description and  

Property Appraiser Information 

 

 

Address:   1101 Wren Avenue, Miami Spring, FL 33166 

Lot Size:   39,751 sq. ft.  

Legal Description:  Tract A, of Second Addition to Spring View, according to the Plat thereof, 

as recorded in Plat Book 51, at Page 100, of the Public Records of Miami-

Dade County 

 

 

 

 

  



Page | 1 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 
 

 
 
TO:  Mayor & City Council  
 
FROM: Christopher Heid, City Planner 
 
DATE: October 10, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Amendment to the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) from Public 

Facilities to Single Family Residential 
 
CASE:  02-C-22 
 
APPLICANT: Enclave at Miami Springs, LLC 
 
ADDRESS: 1101 Wren Avenue 
 
ZONING DISTRICT:  R-1C Single Family Residential 
 
FURURE LAND USE MAP (FLUM) CATEGORY:  Public Facilities 
 
THE PROPERTY: The property is generally rectangular in shape, spanning a full 
block bounded by Wren Avenue on the south, Hammond Drive (east) and 
Hammond Drive (west) and Oriole Avenue on the north.  The property contains 
39,736 square feet or 0.91 Acres. 
 
THE REQUEST: The applicant is seeking an amendment to the Future Land Use 
Map (FLUM) of the Comprehensive Plan from Public Facilities to Single Family 
Residential for a 39,736 square (0.91 Acre) property at 1101 Wren Avenue. 
 
ANALYSIS: Currently, the Future Land Use Map category of Public Facilities and 
the zoning of R-1C Single Family Residential are inconsistent.  Development of 
this parcel for any use is therefore not possible.  
 
According to Policy 1.1.8 of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Single Family 
Residential Category “allows single family detached homes on lots of at least 
7,500 square feet of net area. . . [and] development shall not exceed 5 dwelling 
units per acre, including rights-of-way.” 
 
The proposed FLUM Amendment advances the following goals, objectives, and 
policies of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  

   201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL  33166 

Phone:(305) 805-5030 
Fax:(305) 805-5036 

 



Page | 2 

 
Future Land Use Element Objective 1.3: In general, encourage the elimination 
or reduction of uses which are inconsistent with the community's character and 
future land uses. This objective shall be measured by implementation of its 
supporting policies  
 
The proposed FLUM Amendment will advance Objective 1.3 because it will 
eliminate a use that, while historically used for a community organization, is 
inconsistent with the character of the neighborhood. 
  
Future Land Use Element Objective 1.7: Discourage the proliferation of urban 
sprawl. This objective shall be measured by implementation of its supporting 
policy.  
 
Miami Springs has been a single-family refuge in Miami-Dade County. At a time 
when the inventory of single-family homes is decreasing throughout the County, 
the development of four (4) new single-family homes helps discourage of urban 
sprawl by creating new inventory within the urban development boundary.  
 
Future Land Use Element Objective 1.10: Decisions regarding the location, 
extent and intensity of future land use will be based upon the physical and 
financial feasibility of providing all urbanized areas with services at levels of 
service (LOS) which meet or exceed the minimum standards adopted in the 
Capital Improvements Element.  
 
The level of service for infrastructure in the City will not be impacted by the 
addition of four (4) single-family homes. Conversely, the Public Building category 
permits uses of greater intensity that could have a negative impact on water, 
sewer, and road infrastructure.  
 
Future Land Use Element Policy 1.10.3: Miami Springs shall continue and, 
where possible, improve efforts to coordinate projects to construct or repair 
infrastructure such as roadways and utilities in order to minimize the disruption 
and inconvenience caused by such construction activities.  
 
The proposed FLUM Amendment is consistent with Policy 1.10.3 as it will allow 
the property to be developed with new single family homes, with supporting 
infrastructure such as alleys (east to west). Alleys are not currently possible 
because of the interference with the current use. A new alley will allow garbage 
collection to proceed directly east or west through the property, instead of having 
to drive around the block each time, saving time and fuel. Additionally, access to 
the Property during construction could be accomplished via the new alley. Lastly, 
the four intersections at the corners of Hammond and Wren and Oriole will be 
improved with accessibility enhancements.  
 



Page | 3 

Future Land Use Element Objective 1.12: Assure compatibility of adjacent land 
uses and developments through plan adoption and implementation procedures.  
 
As previously discussed, this objective is accomplished because the proposed 
new single-family use is compatible and consistent with the abutting and adjacent 
single-family land uses. Moreover, approval of the proposed FLUM Amendment 
would align the land use and zoning of the Property, eliminating a conflict and 
advancing appropriate land use policies and practices.  
 
Housing Element Goal 1: Ensure the availability of affordable sound and 
diversified housing stock in Miami Springs.  
 
The contemplated project associated with the FLUM Amendment calls for four (4) 
new, high-end single-family homes. The homes are planned to have at least four 
(4) bedrooms adding to the housing stock of larger homes in Miami Springs, 
which has historically lacked homes with more than three (3) bedrooms.  
 
The Site Plan provides for single-family homes within the density permitted in the 
Comprehensive Plan. The site area for each lot is nearly 9,000 sq. ft., which 
exceeds the requirements of both the Comprehensive Plan and the City Code. 
The Site Plan meets all height, lot coverage, and setback requirements in 
Section 150-043 of the City Code.  
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 -   

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, APPROVING A TENTATIVE 
PLAT APPLICATION BY ENCLAVE AT MIAMI SPRINGS, 
LLC FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1101 WREN AVENUE 
(FOLIO NO. 05-3024-017-0010); PROVIDING FOR 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 WHEREAS, consistent with the requirements set forth in the City of Miami Springs’ 
(the “City”) Code of Ordinances (the “Code”), Enclave at Miami Springs, LLC (the 
“Applicant”) has submitted a tentative plat application (the “Application”), a copy of the 
tentative plat being attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference 
(the “Preliminary Plat”), pertaining to a 37,751 square foot (± 0.86 acre) parcel of property 
generally located at 1101 Wren Avenue (the “Property”), as legally described in Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto; and  

 WHEREAS, City staff reviewed the Application and recommends approval with 
conditions which must be satisfied prior to final plat approval; and 

WHEREAS, on November 7, 2022, the City’s Zoning and Planning Board 
conducted a public hearing and recommended approval of the Application; and 

WHEREAS, public notice was provided in accordance with law; and 

WHEREAS, after a duly noticed public hearing, the City Council finds that the 
Application meets the requirements of the City Code and finds that the Application is 
consistent with the City’s Land Development Regulations and Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 
welfare of the citizens of the City. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by this reference.  

Section 2. Approval. The City Council, after a duly noticed public hearing, 
hereby approves the Application in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” 
subject to the satisfaction of all conditions listed in Section 3 herein, and finds that it meets 
the approval criteria set forth in the City Code. 



Res. No. 22-   
Page 2 of 5 

Section 3. Conditions. The approval granted in Section 2 of this Resolution is 
subject to compliance with the following conditions, which the Applicant stipulated and 
agreed to at the public hearing and agrees to comply with and/or satisfy prior to final plat 
approval:  

a. The approval of the Preliminary Plat shall be in accordance with the 
Boundary and Topographic Survey entitled ““Enclave at Miami Springs” – 
Tentative Plat” as prepared by Odalys C. Bello-Izmaga, Professional 
Surveyor and Mapper, State of Florida, License Authorization No. LS6189, 
dated April 5, 2022, consisting of one sheet, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A.” 

b. The Applicant shall make revisions to the Tentative Plat as set forth in the 
marked up version of the tentative plat in Exhibit B attached hereto and 
incorporated herein.  

c. The Applicant shall comply, prior to final plat approval, with all platting 
requirements of the City Code and Chapter 28 of the Miami-Dade County 
Code. 

Section 4. Violations. Failure to adhere to the terms of this approval shall be 
considered a violation of the City Code.  Penalties for such violation shall be as prescribed 
by the City Code, which include, but are not limited to, the revocation of the approval granted 
by this Resolution. 

Section 5. Authorization.  The City Manager, City Clerk, and City Surveyor are 
authorized to sign the face of the Tentative Plat and to execute any other required 
documents necessary for approval of the Tentative Plat consistent with and to implement 
the intent of this Resolution, subject to review by the City Attorney. 

Section 6. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately 
upon adoption. 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Dr. Victor Vazquez     
Councilman Bob Best      
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo     
Councilman Dr. Walter Fajet     
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     



Res. No. 22-   
Page 3 of 5 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of November, 2022. 

 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
      MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY



EXHIBIT A 
Tentative Plat 

 



EXHIBIT B 
Marked Up Version of Tentative Plat 

 



 

Meeting Date: 11/14/2022 

 

To: The Honorable Mayor Maria P. Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 

Via: William Alonso, City Manager/Fin. Director 

 

From: Omar L. Luna, Recreation Director 

 

Subject: Tennis Court Repairs and Re-Surfacing 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommendation by Recreation that Council select the quote of Superior Park 

Systems, Inc. for the Tennis Court Resurfacing Project (the “Project”) and authorize the execution of a 

construction contract  in an amount not to exceed $29,850.00 pursuant to Section §31.11 (C)(2) of the City 

Code. 

 

DISCUSSION: The surface of the three back courts at the Tennis Center located at 401 Westward Drive, 

Miami Springs, FL 33166, is cracking and the courts are in need of repairs and resurfacing. The Tennis Center 

courts are used on a daily basis for lessons, after-school care programs, tournaments, high school matches, 

clinics and open tennis. Accordingly, City Staff requested three quotes for the construction of the Project 

pursuant to Section §31.11 (C)(2) of the City Code, anticipating that the good faith estimate total cost of the 

Project would not exceed $100,000. Superior Park Systems, Inc. submitted the lowest quote to the City for 

construction of the Project in an amount not to exceed $29,850. City staff anticipates completing the repairs 

and resurfacing for the Project by January 2023 (weather permitting). The front two tennis courts at the Tennis 

Center will be open and available for public use while repair work is conducted. In the future, City Staff 

anticipates performing repairs and resurfacing of the two front courts at the Tennis Center during fiscal year 

2023-24.  

 

Submission Date and Time: 11/7/2022 8:48 AM 

 

Submitted by: 

 
Department:  Recreation  

 

Prepared by: Omar Luna    

Attachments:  Yes No 

Budgeted/ Funded:  Yes  No 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 

Dept. Head:   

Procurement: 

 

Asst. City Mgr.:  

City Manager:   

Funding: 

 
Dept./ Desc.: Recreation/Tennis  

Account No.: 001-5703-572-63-00 

Additional Funding:   

 
 

Amount previously approved: $ 25,000.00 

Current request: $  30,900.00 

Total vendor amount: $  30,900.00  



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, SELECTING 
SUPERIOR PARK SYSTEMS, INC. FOR THE TENNIS 
COURT RESURFACING PROJECT; AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION OF A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $29,850; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) has identified a need to resurface 

the three back courts at the City Tennis Center located at 401 Westward Drive, Miami 

Springs, Florida 33166 (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section §31-11(C)(2) of the City’s Code of 

Ordinances, the City requested three quotes for the construction of the Project, 

anticipating that the good faith estimate total cost for the Project would not exceed 

$100,000; and 

WHEREAS, Superior Park Systems, Inc. (the “Contractor”) submitted the lowest 

quote for the Project at a total cost of $29,850 (the “Quote”); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to select the Contractor to construct the 

Project and approve the execution of a Construction Contract with the Contractor in an 

amount not to exceed $29,850, in substantially the form attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Selection. That the City Council hereby selects the Contractor to 

construct the Project. 

Section 3. Authorization. That the City Council hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to enter into the Construction Contract with the Contractor in an amount not to 

exceed $29,850, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” subject to 

approval by the City Attorney as to form, content, and legal sufficiency. 



Res. No. 22-   
Page 2 of 2 

 

Section 4. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately 

upon adoption. 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Dr. Victor Vazquez     
Councilman Bob Best       
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo     
Councilman Dr. Walter Fajet     
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of November, 2022. 

 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
      MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 

 

 



                                   

QUOTE  011197

Superior Park Systems, Inc. quotes the following off the Palm 
Beach County School Board Contract # 15C-32B that the city 
may purchase (piggyback) at the same price, terms and 
conditions: 

QUOTE TO
City of Miami Springs
Parks and Recreation Dept.
1401 Westward Drive
Miami Springs, FL  33166
Attn: Omar Luna, Director

SHIP DATE

SHIP TO
City of Miami Springs
Parks and Recreation Dept.
1401 Westward Drive
Miami Springs, FL  33166
Attn: Omar Luna, Director

QUOTE NO.
DATE

EXPIRATION DATE

011197
10/24/2022

ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

Resurface
Miami Springs Racquet Club: Pressure clean the (3) courts to remove algae, 
loose paint, dirt & debris
2) Mechanically grind the courts surface to eliminate ass raised edges on the 
structural cracks
3) Fill all cracks that are wider than1/4” with a crack filler material
4) Flood the courts with water in order to identify low areas, If the courts have 
the industry
standard1” in 10” drain slope, we will patch any areas that are holding water 
deeper than 1/8” after
the courts have dried in the sun for (1) hour. If the courts do not have the 
industry standard drain
slope then we will patch as best as possible to thin outstanding water & help the 
courts dry faster.
5) Grind the courts raised to eliminate edges of the structural cracks. Filling all 
cracks that are wider
than ¼” with a crack filler material
6) Apply (3) coats of acrylic surface system to the courts to include (2) coats 
acrylic Resurfacer an
even textured new wearing surface.
7) Apply (2) coats of “sport master color” & an in depth colored finished playing 
surface. Colors will
match the existing, unless otherwise specified prior to work commencing.
8) Scrape the net posts to remove loose paint & surface rust then repaint them 
with (2) coats of rust
prohibitive green paint
9) Reinstall the owners tennis nets and center straps
10) Hand mask and hand paint the 2” white playing lines. All lines will be 
installed to the
specifications of the ASBA, ITF, and USTA.
11) Clean up constructive debris and leave the courts ready for play 24 hours 
after the nets are installed
12) Repair of court area that was cut and refilled with concrete to grade

1 29,850.00 29,850.00

CUSTOMER NAME
City of Miami Springs

LOCATION



                                   

QUOTE  011197

Superior Park Systems, Inc. quotes the following off the Palm 
Beach County School Board Contract # 15C-32B that the city 
may purchase (piggyback) at the same price, terms and 
conditions: 

DISCOUNT

SHIPPING

TOTAL $29,850.00

Miami Springs Tennis Center: 
Resurfacing of (3) Tennis Courts. Project to commence 5-8 weeks 
upon receipt of Purchase Order. 1 year warranty for materials and 
workmanship

QUOTE TOTAL $29,850.00



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 1 of 22 

CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

 THIS CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION (this “Contract”) is made this    
day of    , 2022 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the CITY OF MIAMI 
SPRINGS, FLORIDA, a Florida municipal corporation, (the “City”), and SUPERIOR PARK 
SYSTEMS, INC., a Florida corporation (the “Contractor”). 

WHEREAS, the City has identified a need to resurface the three back courts at the City 
Tennis Center located at 401 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166 (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section §31-11(C)(2) of the City’s Code of Ordinances, the 
City requested three quotes for the construction of the Project, anticipating that the good faith estimate 
total cost for the Project would not exceed $100,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor submitted the lowest quote for the performance of the Work (as 
herein defined) for the Project at a cost of $30,900, which Quote is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 
and incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor has represented to the City that it possesses the necessary 
qualifications, experience and abilities to perform the Work for the Project, and has agreed to provide 
the Work on the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the sum of TEN AND 
NO/100 DOLLARS ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows: 

1. SCOPE OF WORK 

1.1. Contractor hereby agrees to furnish all of the labor, materials, equipment, services and 
incidentals necessary to perform all of the work described in the Contract Documents (the 
“Work” or the “Project”) including, without limitation as described in the Contractor’s Quote 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and any other documents incorporated herein by reference and 
made a part of this Contract for the following Project:  

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS TENNIS COURT RESURFACING PROJECT 

2. CONTRACT TIME 

2.1. Contractor shall be instructed to commence the Work by written instructions in the form of 
a Notice to Proceed providing a commencement date and issued by the City Manager or 
designee.  The Notice to Proceed will not be issued until Contractor's submission to the City 
of all required documents and after execution of this Contract. 

2.2. Time is of the essence throughout the performance of this Contract.  The Contractor shall 
prosecute the Work with faithfulness and diligence and the Work shall be substantially 
completed within fourteen (14) consecutive calendar days from the date specified in the 
Notice to Proceed (“Contract Time”). Substantial Completion shall be defined for this 
purpose as the date on which City receives beneficial use of the Project.  The Work shall be 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 2 of 22 

fully completed in accordance with the Contract Documents within twenty-one (21) 
consecutive calendar days from the date specified in the Notice to Proceed (“Final 
Completion Time”).  The Final Completion date is defined as the date agreed to by the City 
when all Work has been completed in accordance with the Contract Documents and 
Contractor has delivered to City all documentation required herein. 

2.3. Upon failure of Contractor to complete the Contract within the Final Completion Time, 
Contractor shall pay to City the sum of Three Hundred Dollars ($300.00) for each calendar 
day after the expiration of the Final Completion Time until the Contractor achieves Final 
Completion and the Project is in a state of readiness for final payment to the Contractor. 
These amounts are not penalties but are liquidated damages payable by Contractor to City 
for the failure to provide full beneficial occupancy and use of the Project as required.  
Liquidated damages are hereby fixed and agreed upon between the parties who hereby 
acknowledge the difficulty of determining the amount of damages that will be sustained by 
City as a consequence of Contractor’s delay and failure of Contractor to complete the 
Contract on time. 

2.4. City is authorized to deduct the liquidated damages from monies due to Contractor for the 
Work under this Contract. In case the liquidated damage amount due to City by Contractor 
exceeds monies due Contractor from City, Contractor shall be liable and shall immediately 
upon demand by City pay to City the amount of said excess. 

3. CONTRACT PRICE 

3.1. City shall pay to Contractor for the performance of the Work for actual work completed in 
an amount not to exceed $30,900.00 in accordance with the Contractor’s Quote (Pricing), 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.  This sum (“Contract Price”) shall be full compensation for 
all services, labor, materials, equipment and costs, including overhead and profit, associated 
with completion of all the Work in full conformity with the Contract Documents and adjusted 
only by written change orders signed by both parties and approved as required by local law. 
The Contract Price shall include all applicable sales taxes as required by law. 

3.2. Contractor shall submit to the City application(s) for payment up to a total equal to, but 
not exceeding, the Contract Price and each such application must be certified by the City 
Manager or City Manager’s designee (“Pay Application”).  City shall make progress 
payments based on the Contractor’s Pay Application(s) in accordance with the Florida 
Prompt Payment Act. . 

3.3. Each Pay Application shall include an affidavit or partial release or waiver of lien by 
Contractor indicating that partial payments received from the City for the Work have been 
applied by Contractor to discharge in full all of Contractor’s obligations, including 
payments to subcontractors and material suppliers. 

3.4. The payment of any Pay Application by the City, including the final request for payment, 
does not constitute approval or acceptance by the City of any item of the Work reflected 
in such Pay Application, nor shall it be construed as a waiver of any of the City ’s rights 
hereunder or at law or in equity. 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 3 of 22 

3.5. Upon Final Completion of the Work by Contractor in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and acceptance by the City, City shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price 
(including Retainage) as recommended by the City’s Manager and Building Official.  
Final payment is contingent upon receipt by City from Contractor of at least one complete 
record set of plans, reflecting an accurate depiction of Contractor’s Work. 

3.6. This Contract is subject to the conditions precedent that: (i) City funds are available and 
budgeted for the Contract Price; (ii) the City secures and obtains any necessary grants or 
loans for the accomplishment of this Project pursuant to any borrowing legislation adopted 
by the City Council relative to the Project; and (iii) City Council enacts legislation which 
awards and authorizes the execution of this Contract, if such is required. 

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

4.1. The Contract Documents, which comprise the entire agreement between the City and the 
Contractor concerning the Work, consist of this Contract for Construction (including any 
change orders and amendments thereto), the Plans and Specifications, the Technical 
Specifications, any Bidding Documents or procurement documents for the Project, the 
Contractor’s Quote for the Project, the Bonds (defined herein), Insurance Certificates, the 
Notice of Award, and the Notice to Proceed, all of which are deemed incorporated into and 
made a part of this Contract by this reference and govern this Project. In the event of any 
conflict among the foregoing, the documents shall govern in the order listed herein. 
Contractor is reminded and hereby recognizes that all Work under this Contract must comply 
with all applicable federal, state and local law. Any mandatory clauses which are required by 
applicable law shall be deemed to be incorporated herein. 

4.2. This Contract incorporates and includes all prior negotiations, correspondence, 
conversations, agreements, or understandings applicable to the matters contained herein and 
the parties agree that there are no commitments, agreements, or understandings concerning 
the subject matter of these Contract Documents that are not contained herein.  Accordingly, 
it is agreed that no deviation from the terms hereof shall be predicated upon any prior 
representations or agreements, whether oral or written. 

4.3. The Contract Documents shall remain the property of the City.  The Contractor shall have 
the right to keep one record set of the Contract Documents upon completion of the Project; 
however in no circumstances shall the Contractor use, or permit to be used, any or all of such 
Contract Documents on other projects without the City's prior written authorization. 

5. INDEMNIFICATION 

5.1. Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and 
employees, from and against any and all demands, claims, losses, suits, liabilities, causes 
of action, judgment or damages, including legal fees and costs and through appeal, arising 
out of or, related to, or in any way connected with Contractor’s performance or non-
performance of this Contract or with Contractor’s obligations or the Work related to the 
Contract, including by reason of any damage to property, or bodily injury or death incurred 
or sustained by any party. Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City harmless 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 4 of 22 

from all losses, injuries or damages and wages or overtime compensation due its 
employees in rendering services pursuant to this Contract, including payment of 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs in the defense of any claim made under the Fair Labor 
Standards Act, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination in 
Employment Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act or any employment related 
litigation or worker’s compensation claims under federal or state law.  The provisions of 
this section shall survive termination of this Contract. 

6. INSURANCE AND BONDS 

6.1. Insurance 

6.1.1. Contractor shall secure and maintain throughout the duration of this Contract 
insurance of such types and in such amounts not less than those specified below as 
satisfactory to the City, naming the City as an Additional Insured, underwritten by a 
firm rated A-X or better by Bests Rating and qualified to do business in the State of 
Florida. Certificates of Insurance shall be provided to the City, reflecting the City as 
an Additional Insured, no later than ten (10) days after award of this Contract and 
prior to the execution of this Contract by City and prior to commencing any Work.  
Each certificate shall include no less than (30) thirty-day advance written notice to 
City prior to cancellation, termination, or material alteration of said policies or 
insurance. The insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to the City, 
its officials, employees, agents and volunteers naming the City as additional insured. 
Any insurance maintained by the City shall be in excess of the Contractor’s insurance 
and shall not contribute to the Contractor’s insurance.  The insurance coverages shall 
include at a minimum the amounts set forth in this Section 6.1. 

6.1.1.1. Commercial General Liability coverage with limits of liability of not less 
than a $1,000,000 per Occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage.  This Liability Insurance shall also include Completed 
Operations and Product Liability coverages and eliminate the exclusion with 
respect to property under the care, custody and control of Contractor.  The General 
Aggregate Liability limit (except for Products/Completed Operations) shall be in 
the amount of $2,000,000. 

6.1.1.2. Workers Compensation and Employer’s Liability insurance, to apply for all 
employees for statutory limits as required by applicable State and Federal laws. 
The policy(ies) must include Employer’s Liability with minimum limits of 
$1,000,000.00 each accident. No employee, subcontractor or agent of the 
Contractor shall be allowed to provide Work pursuant to this Contract who is 
not covered by Worker’s Compensation insurance. 

6.1.1.3. Business Automobile Liability with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per 
Occurrence, combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage.  
Coverage must be afforded on a form no more restrictive than the latest edition 
of the Business Automobile Liability policy, without restrictive endorsements, 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 5 of 22 

as filed by the Insurance Services Office, and must include Owned, Hired, and 
Non-Owned Vehicles. 

6.1.1.4. [Intentionally Omitted]. 

6.1.1.5. Contractor acknowledges that it shall bear the full risk of loss for any 
portion of the Work damaged, destroyed, lost or stolen until Final Completion 
has been achieved for the Project, and all such Work shall be fully restored by 
the Contractor, at its sole cost and expense, in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 

6.1.2. Certificate of Insurance.  On or before the Effective Date of this Contract, the 
Contractor shall provide the City with Certificates of Insurance for all required 
policies.  The Contractor shall be responsible for assuring that the insurance 
certificates required by this Section remain in full force and effect for the duration of 
this Contract, including any extensions or renewals that may be granted by the City. 
The Certificates of Insurance shall not only name the types of policy(ies) provided, 
but also shall refer specifically to this Contract and shall state that such insurance is 
as required by this Contract.  The City reserves the right to inspect and return a 
certified copy of such policies, upon written request by the City.  If a policy is due to 
expire prior to the completion of the Work, renewal Certificates of Insurance shall be 
furnished thirty (30) calendar days prior to the date of their policy expiration.  Each 
policy certificate shall be endorsed with a provision that not less than thirty (30) 
calendar days’ written notice shall be provided to the City before any policy or 
coverage is cancelled or restricted.  Acceptance of the Certificate(s) is subject to 
approval of the City. 

6.1.2.1. Additional Insured. The City is to be specifically included as an 
Additional Insured for the liability of the City resulting from Work performed 
by or on behalf of the Contractor in performance of this Contract.  The 
Contractor’s insurance, including that applicable to the City as an Additional 
Insured, shall apply on a primary basis and any other insurance maintained by 
the City shall be in excess of and shall not contribute to the Contractor’s 
insurance.  The Contractor’s insurance shall contain a severability of interest 
provision providing that, except with respect to the total limits of liability, the 
insurance shall apply to each Insured or Additional Insured (for applicable 
policies) in the same manner as if separate policies had been issued to each. 

6.1.2.2. Deductibles. All deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared 
to and be reasonably approved by the City. The Contractor shall be responsible 
for the payment of any deductible or self-insured retentions in the event of any 
claim. 

6.1.3. The provisions of this section shall survive termination of this Contract. 

6.2. Bonds. Not required for this Project.  

7. CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 6 of 22 

7.1. In order to induce the City to enter into this Contract, the Contractor makes the following 
representations and warranties: 

7.1.1. Contractor represents the following: 

7.1.1.1. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents and 
the other data identified in the bidding documents, including, without limitation, 
the “technical data” and plans and specifications and the Plans. 

7.1.1.2. Contractor has visited the Project site and become familiar with and is 
satisfied as to the general and local conditions and site conditions that may affect 
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work. 

7.1.1.3. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state and local 
laws, regulations and permits that may affect cost, progress, performance and 
furnishing of the Work.  Contractor agrees that it will at all times comply with 
all requirements of the foregoing laws, regulations and permits. 

7.1.1.4. Contractor has made, or caused to be made, examinations, investigations, 
tests and/or studies as necessary to determine surface and subsurface conditions 
at or on the site. Contractor acknowledges that the City does not assume 
responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of information and data shown 
or indicated in the Contract Documents with respect to underground or ground 
facilities at, contiguous or near the site or for existing improvements at or near 
the site.  Contractor has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes 
responsibility for having done so) all such additional supplementary 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies and data concerning 
conditions (surface, subsurface and underground facilities and improvements) 
at, contiguous or near to the site or otherwise which may affect cost, progress, 
performance or furnishing of the Work or which relate to any aspect of the 
means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of construction to be 
employed by Contractor and safety precautions and programs incident thereto.  
Contractor does not consider that any additional examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, studies or data are necessary for the performance and 
furnishing of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

7.1.1.5. Contractor is aware of the general nature of Work to be performed by the 
City and others at the site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract 
Documents. 

7.1.1.6. Contractor has correlated the information known to Contractor, information 
and observations obtained from visits to the site, reports and drawings identified 
in the Contract Documents and all additional examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, studies and data with the Contract Documents. 

7.1.1.7. Contractor has given City written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities 
or discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents and 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 7 of 22 

the written resolution thereof by City is acceptable to Contactor, and the 
Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey 
understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the 
Work. 

7.1.1.8. The Contractor agrees and represents that it possesses the requisite 
qualifications and skills to perform the Work and that the Work shall be executed 
in a good and workmanlike manner, free from defects, and that all materials shall 
be new and approved by or acceptable to City, except as otherwise expressly 
provided for in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall cause all materials 
and other parts of the Work to be readily available as and when required or 
needed for or in connection with the construction, furnishing and equipping of 
the Project. 

7.1.2. Contractor warrants the following: 

7.1.2.1. Anti-Discrimination:  Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against 
any employees or applicants for employment or against persons for any other 
benefit or service under this Contract because of race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin, or physical or mental handicap where the handicap does not 
affect the ability of an individual to perform in a position of employment, and 
agrees to abide by all federal and state laws regarding non-discrimination. 

7.1.2.2. Anti-Kickback:  Contractor warrants that no person has been employed or 
retained to solicit or secure this Contract upon an agreement or understanding 
for a commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee, and that no employee 
or officer of the City has any interest, financially or otherwise, in the Project.  
For breach or violation of this warranty, the City shall have the right to annul 
this Contract without liability or, in its discretion, to deduct from the Contract 
Price or consideration, the full amount of such commission, percentage, 
brokerage or contingent fee. 

7.1.2.3. Licensing and Permits:  Contractor warrants that it shall have, prior to 
commencement of Work under this Contract and at all times during said Work, 
all required licenses and permits whether federal, state, County or City.  
Contractor acknowledges that it is the obligation of Contractor to obtain all 
licenses and permits required for this Project, including City building permits. 
City building permit fees are waived for this Project. If permits are required by 
any other governing body or agency, the Contractor shall be obligated to pay the 
fees.  

8. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 

8.1. If Contractor fails to timely begin the Work, or fails to perform the Work with sufficient 
workers and equipment or with sufficient materials to insure the prompt completion of the 
Work within the Contract Time or Final Completion Time as specified in Section 2, or shall 
perform the Work unsuitably, or cause it to be rejected as defective and unsuitable, or shall 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 8 of 22 

discontinue the prosecution of the Work pursuant to the accepted schedule or if the 
Contractor shall fail to perform any material term set forth in the Contract Documents or if 
Contractor shall become insolvent or be declared bankrupt, or commit any act of bankruptcy 
or insolvency, or shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or from any other 
cause whatsoever shall not carry on the Work in an acceptable manner, City may, upon seven 
(7) days after sending Contractor a written Notice of Termination, terminate the services of 
Contractor, exclude Contractor from the Project site, provide for alternate prosecution of the 
Work, appropriate or use any or all materials and equipment on the Project site as may be 
suitable and acceptable, and may finish the Work by whatever methods it may deem 
expedient.  In such case Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until 
the Project is completed. All damages, costs and charges incurred by City, together with the 
costs of completing the Project, shall be deducted from any monies due or which may become 
due to Contractor.  In case the damages and expenses so incurred by City shall exceed monies 
due Contractor from City, Contractor shall be liable and shall pay to City the amount of said 
excess promptly upon demand therefore by City. In the event it is adjudicated that City was 
not entitled to terminate the Contract as described hereunder for default, the Contract shall 
automatically be deemed terminated by City for convenience as described below. 

8.2. This Contract may be terminated by the City for convenience upon seven (7) calendar 
days’ written notice to the Contractor. In the event of such a termination, the Contractor 
shall incur no further obligations in connection with the Project and shall, to the extent 
possible, terminate any outstanding subcontractor obligations. The Contractor shall be 
compensated for all services performed to the satisfaction of the City. In such event, the 
Contractor shall promptly submit to the City its Application for Payment for final payment 
which shall comply with the provisions of the Contract Documents. 

9. MISCELLANEOUS 

9.1. No Assignment. Neither party shall assign the Contract or any sub-contract in whole or in 
part without the written consent of the other, nor shall Contractor assign any monies due or 
to become due to it hereunder, without the previous written consent of the City Manager. 

9.2. Contractor’s Responsibility for Damages and Accidents.  

9.2.1. Contractor shall accept full responsibility for the Work against all loss or damage of 
any nature sustained until final acceptance by City and shall promptly repair any damage 
done from any cause. 

9.2.2. Contractor shall be responsible for all materials, equipment and supplies pertaining to 
the Project.  In the event any such materials, equipment and supplies are lost, stolen, 
damaged or destroyed prior to final acceptance by City, Contractor shall replace same 
without cost to City.   

9.3. Defective Work. Warranty and Guarantee. 

9.3.1. City shall have the authority to reject or disapprove Work which the City finds to be 
defective.  If required by the City, Contractor shall promptly either correct all defective 
Work or remove such defective Work and replace it with nondefective Work. Contractor 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 9 of 22 

shall bear all direct, indirect and consequential costs of such removal or corrections 
including cost of testing laboratories and personnel. 

9.3.2. Should Contractor fail or refuse to remove or correct any defective Work or to make 
any necessary repairs in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents 
within the time indicated in writing by the City or its designee, City shall have the 
authority to cause the defective Work to be removed or corrected, or make such repairs 
as may be necessary at Contractor's expense.  Any expense incurred by City in making 
such removals, corrections or repairs, shall be paid for out of any monies due or which 
may become due to Contractor.  In the event of failure of Contractor to make all 
necessary repairs promptly and fully, City may declare Contractor in default. 

9.3.3. The Contractor shall unconditionally warrant and guarantee all labor, materials and 
equipment furnished and Work performed for a period of one (1) year from the date of 
Substantial Completion. If, within one (1) year after the date of substantial completion, 
any of the Work is found to be defective or not in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, Contractor, after receipt of written notice from City, shall promptly correct 
such defective or nonconforming Work within the time specified by City without cost 
to City. Should the manufacturer of any materials and equipment furnished provide for 
a longer warranty, then the Contractor shall transfer such warranty to the City prior to 
Final Completion. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to establish a period of 
limitation with respect to any other obligation which Contractor might have under the 
Contract Documents including but not limited to any claim regarding latent defects.  
Contractor shall provide and assign to City all material and equipment warranties upon 
completion of the Work hereunder. 

9.3.4. Failure to reject any defective Work or material shall not in any way prevent later 
rejection when such defect is discovered. 

9.4. Legal Restrictions; Hours of Work; Traffic Provisions. 

9.4.1. Contractor shall conform to and obey all applicable laws, regulations, or ordinances 
with regard to labor employed, hours of Work and Contractor's general operations.  
Contractor shall conduct its operations so as not to interfere with or close any 
thoroughfare, without the written consent of the City or governing jurisdiction. Work is 
anticipated to be performed Monday through Friday in accordance with the 
requirements and limitations of applicable law including, without limitation, the City 
Code of Ordinances.  The Contractor shall not perform Work beyond the time and 
days provided above without the prior written approval of the City. 

9.5. Examination and Retention of Contractor’s Records. 

9.5.1. The City or any of its duly authorized representatives shall, until three (3) years after 
final payment under this Contract, have access to and the right to examine any of the 
Contractor’s books, ledgers, documents, papers, or other records involving transactions 
related to this Contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 10 of 22 

transcriptions. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply specifically with the 
provisions of Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. 

9.5.2. The Contractor agrees to include in any subcontractor contracts for this Project 
corresponding provisions for the benefit of City providing for retention and audit of 
records. 

9.5.3. The right to access and examination of records stated herein and in any subcontracts 
shall survive termination or expiration of this Contract and continue until disposition of 
any mediation, claims, litigation or appeals related to this Project. 

9.5.4. The City may cancel and terminate this Contract immediately for refusal by the 
Contractor to allow access by the City Manager or designees to any Records pertaining 
to work performed under this Contact that are subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, 
Florida Statutes. 

9.6. No Damages for Delay. No claim for damages or any claim, other than for an extension of 
time shall be made or asserted against City by reason of any delays.  Contractor shall not be 
entitled to an increase in the Contract Price or payment or compensation of any kind from 
City for direct, indirect, consequential, impact or other costs, expenses or damages, including 
but not limited to, costs of acceleration or inefficiency, arising because of delay, disruption, 
interference or hindrance from any cause whatsoever, whether such delay, disruption, 
interference or hindrance be reasonable or unreasonable, foreseeable or unforeseeable, or 
avoidable or unavoidable or whether or not caused by City. Contractor shall be entitled only 
to extensions of the Contract Time as the sole and exclusive remedy for such resulting delay. 
Notwithstanding the above Contractor may be granted an extension of time and suspension 
of liquidated damages for any delay beyond the control of the Contractor.  Should any delay, 
disruption, interference or hindrance be intentionally caused by the City, for a continuous 
period or cumulative period of thirty (30) days, the Contractor may terminate the Contract 
upon seven (7) days written notice to the City. 

9.7. Authorized Representative. 

9.7.1. Before commencing the Work, Contractor shall designate a skilled and competent 
authorized supervisor and representative (“Authorized Representative”) acceptable to 
City to represent and act for Contractor and shall inform City, in writing, of the name 
and address of such representative together with a clear definition of the scope of his 
authority to represent and act for Contractor. Contractor shall keep City informed of 
any subsequent changes in the foregoing. Such representative shall be present or duly 
represented at the Project site at all times when Work is actually in progress. All 
notices, determinations, instructions and other communications given to the 
authorized representatives of Contractor shall be binding upon the Contractor. 

9.7.2. The Authorized Representative, project managers, superintendents and supervisors 
for the Project are all subject to prior and continuous approval of the City. If, at any 
time during the term of this Contract, any of the personnel either functionally or 
nominally performing any of the positions named above, are, for any reasonable cause 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 11 of 22 

whatsoever, unacceptable to the City, Contractor shall replace the unacceptable 
personnel with personnel acceptable to the City. 

9.8. Taxes. Contractor shall pay all taxes, levies, duties and assessments of every nature which 
may be applicable to any Work under this Contract. The Contract Price and any agreed 
variations thereof shall include all taxes imposed by law at the time of this Contract. 
Contractor shall make any and all payroll deductions required by law.  Contractor herein 
indemnifies and holds Owner harmless from any liability on account of any and all such 
taxes, levies, duties and assessments. 

9.9. Utilities. Contractor shall, at its expense, arrange for, develop and maintain all utilities at 
the Project to perform the Work and meet the requirements of this Contract. Such utilities 
shall be furnished by Contractor at no additional cost to City. Prior to final acceptance of 
the Work, Contractor shall, at its expense, satisfactorily remove and dispose of all 
temporary utilities developed to meet the requirements of this Contract. 

9.10. Safety. Contractor shall be fully and solely responsible for safety and conducting 
all operations under this Contract at all times in such a manner as to avoid the risk of 
bodily harm to persons and damage to property. Contractor shall continually and diligently 
inspect all Work, materials and equipment to discover any conditions which might involve 
such risks and shall be solely responsible for discovery and correction of any such 
conditions. Contractor shall have sole responsibility for implementing its safety program. 
City shall not be responsible for supervising the implementation of Contractor's safety 
program, and shall not have responsibility for the safety of Contractor's or its 
subcontractor's employees. Contractor shall maintain all portions of the Project site and 
Work in a neat, clean and sanitary condition at all times. Contractor shall assure that 
subcontractors performing Work comply with the foregoing safety requirements. 

9.11. Cleaning Up. Contractor shall, at all times, at its expense, keep its Work areas in a 
neat, clean and safe condition. Upon completion of any portion of the Work, Contractor 
shall promptly remove all of its equipment, construction materials, temporary structures 
and surplus materials not to be used at or near the same location during later stages of 
Work. Upon completion of the Work and before final payment is made, Contractor shall, 
at its expense, satisfactorily dispose of all rubbish, unused materials and other equipment 
and materials belonging to it or used in the performance of the Work and Contractor shall 
leave the Project in a neat, clean and safe condition. In the event of Contractor's failure to 
comply with the foregoing, the same may be accomplished by City at Contractor's 
expense. 

9.12. Rights and Remedies. The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract 
Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder and in accordance with this 
Contract shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and 
remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. 

9.13. Public Entity Crimes Affidavit. Contractor shall comply with Section 287.133, 
Florida Statutes, and (Public Entity Crimes Statute) notification of which is hereby 
incorporated herein by reference, including execution of any required affidavit. 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 12 of 22 

9.14. Capitalized Terms. Capitalized terms shall have their plain meaning as indicated 
herein. 

9.15. Independent Contractor. The Contractor is an independent contractor under the 
Contract.  This Contract does not create any partnership nor joint venture. Services provided 
by the Contractor shall be by employees of the Contractor and subject to supervision by the 
Contractor, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the City.  Personnel policies, tax 
responsibilities, social security and health insurance, employee benefits, purchasing policies 
and other similar administrative procedures, applicable to services rendered under the 
Contract shall be those of the Contractor. 

9.16. Payment to Sub-Contractors; Certification of Payment to Subcontractors: The 
term “subcontractor”, as used herein, includes persons or firms furnishing labor, materials or 
equipment incorporated into or to be incorporated into the Work or Project.  The Contractor 
is required to pay all subcontractors for satisfactory performance of their contracts as a 
condition precedent to payment to Contractor by the City.  

9.17. Liens. Contractor shall not permit any mechanic’s, laborer’s or materialmen’s lien to 
be filed against the Project site or any part thereof by reason of any Work, labor, services or 
materials supplied or claimed to have been supplied to the Project.  In the event such a lien 
is found or claimed against the Project, Contractor shall within ten (10) days after notice 
of the lien discharge the lien or liens and cause a satisfaction of such lien to be recorded 
in the public records of Miami-Dade County, Florida, or cause such lien to be transferred 
to a bond, or post a bond sufficient to cause the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Miami-Dade 
County, Florida, to discharge such lien pursuant to Chapter 713.24, F.S.  In the event 
Contractor fails to so discharge or bond the lien or liens within such period as required 
above, City shall thereafter have the right, but not the obligation, to discharge or bond the 
lien or liens.  Additionally, City shall thereafter have the right, but not the obligation, to 
retain out of any payment then due or to become due Contractor, one hundred fifty percent 
(150%) of the amount of the lien and to pay City ’s reasonable attorneys' fees and costs 
incurred in connection therewith. 

9.18. Governing Law. This Contract shall be construed in accordance with and governed 
by the laws of the State of Florida.  Venue for any litigation arising out of this Contract 
shall be proper exclusively in Miami-Dade County, Florida. 

9.19. Waiver of Jury Trial. CITY AND CONTRACTOR KNOWINGLY, 
IRREVOCABLY, VOLUNTARILY AND INTENTIONALLY WAIVE ANY RIGHT 
EITHER MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN STATE AND OR FEDERAL COURT 
PROCEEDINGS IN RESPECT TO ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING, LAWSUIT OR 
COUNTERCLAIM BASED UPON THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION, 
ARISING OUT OF, UNDER, OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE CONSTRUCTION 
OF THE WORK, OR ANY COURSE OF CONDUCT, COURSE OF DEALING, 
STATEMENTS OR ACTIONS OR INACTIONS OF ANY PARTY. 

9.20. Notices/Authorized Representatives. Any notices required by this Contract shall 
be in writing and shall be deemed to have been properly given if transmitted by hand-



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 13 of 22 

delivery, by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid return receipt requested, or 
by a private postal service, addressed to the parties (or their successors) at the addresses 
listed on the signature page of this Contract or such other address as the party may have 
designated by proper notice. 

9.21. Prevailing Party; Attorneys’ Fees. In the event of any controversy, claim, dispute 
or litigation between the parties arising from or relating to this Contract (including, but 
not limited to, the enforcement of any indemnity provisions), the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party all reasonable costs, expenses, 
paralegals’ fees, experts’ fees and attorneys' fees including, but not limited to, court costs 
and other expenses through all appellate levels. 

9.22. Ownership and Access to Records and Audits.  

9.22.1. Contractor acknowledges that all inventions, innovations, improvements, 
developments, methods, designs, analyses, drawings, reports, compiled information, 
and all similar or related information (whether patentable or not) which relate to 
Services to the City which are conceived, developed or made by Contractor during 
the term of this Contract (“Work Product”) belong to the City. Contractor shall 
promptly disclose such Work Product to the City and perform all actions reasonably 
requested by the City (whether during or after the term of this Contract) to establish 
and confirm such ownership (including, without limitation, assignments, powers of 
attorney and other instruments).  

9.22.2. Contractor agrees to keep and maintain public records in Contractor’s possession 
or control in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract. The City 
Manager or her designee shall, during the term of this Contract and for a period of 
three (3) years from the date of termination of this Contract, have access to and the 
right to examine and audit any records of the Contractor involving transactions related 
to this Contract.   Contractor additionally agrees to comply specifically with the 
provisions of Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes.  Contractor shall ensure that public 
records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements are not disclosed, except as authorized by law, for the duration of the 
Contract, and following completion of the Contract until the records are transferred 
to the City. 

9.22.3. Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records, Contractor shall provide 
the City with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or 
copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided by 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.  

9.22.4. Unless otherwise provided by law, any and all records, including but not limited to 
reports, surveys, and other data and documents provided or created in connection with 
this Contract are and shall remain the property of the City.  

9.22.5. Upon completion of this Contract or in the event of termination by either party, any 
and all public records relating to the Contract in the possession of the Contractor shall 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 14 of 22 

be delivered by the Contractor to the City Manager, at no cost to the City, within 
seven (7) days.  All such records stored electronically by Contractor shall be delivered 
to the City in a format that is compatible with the City’s information technology 
systems.  Once the public records have been delivered upon completion or termination 
of this Contract, the Contractor shall destroy any and all duplicate public records that 
are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. 

9.22.6. Any compensation due to Contractor shall be withheld until all records are received 
as provided herein.   

9.22.7. Contractor’s failure or refusal to comply with the provisions of this section shall 
result in the immediate termination of this Contract by the City. 

9.22.8. Notice Pursuant to Section 119.0701(2)(a), Florida Statutes. 
IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS: ERIKA GONZALEZ, 
MMC, CITY CLERK, 201 WESTWARD DRIVE, MIAMI 
SPRINGS, FL 33166, 305-805-5006, gonzaleze@miamisprings-
fl.gov. 

10. SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

10.1. The following provisions in this Section 10 supersede any other provisions 
contained in this Contract only to the extent of any conflict with same. These provisions 
are particular to a given transaction and are transaction specific: 

10.2. Preliminary Steps. [Intentionally Omitted] 

10.3. Project Schedule. [Intentionally Omitted] 

10.4. Schedule of Values. [Intentionally Omitted] 

10.5. Construction Photographs. Prior to commencement of the Work the Contractor 
must take digital photographs and color audio-video recording to document existing 
conditions and submit copies in an acceptable format to the City prior to commencement of 
the Work. Contractor must submit with each application for payment photographs that 
accurately reflect the progress of all aspects of the Work. The number of photographs to be 
taken will be based on the magnitude of the Work being performed. Contractor must submit 
one copy of each photograph digitally. Each photograph must be imprinted on its face with 
the title of the Project, the date, and time the picture was taken. Digital photographs must be 
taken using .jpeg format and will be submitted through a file-sharing site (such as Dropbox) 
or on a CD-ROM or flash drive clearly identifying the name of the Project, the name of the 
Contractor, and the timeframe in which the pictures were taken.  



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 15 of 22 

10.6. Staging Site. 

10.6.1. The Contractor is solely responsible for making all arrangements for any staging 
site(s) that may be necessary for the performance of the Work and the Contractor is 
responsible for all site security, including any fencing of the site, and any loss, damage 
or theft to its equipment and materials.  Any fencing of the Staging Site is subject to the 
prior written approval of the City. 

10.6.2. The City at its sole discretion may make a staging site available for use by the 
Contractor.  If such site is made available by the City, the City assumes no responsibility 
or liability for the equipment or materials stored on the site, and the Contractor will be 
solely responsible for any loss, damage or theft to its equipment and materials.  The 
Contractor must restore the site to its pre-existing condition prior to the Contractor’s use 
of the site. 

10.6.3. Parking. [Intentionally Omitted]. 

10.7. Project Signage. [Intentionally Omitted]. 

10.8. Royalties and Patents. All fees, royalties, and claims for any invention, or pretended 
inventions, or patent of any article, material, arrangement, appliance, or method that may be 
used upon or in any manner be connected with the Work or appurtenances, are hereby 
included in the prices stipulated in the Contract for said Work. 

10.9. Purchase and Delivery, Storage and Installation. All materials must be F.O.B. 
delivered and included in the cost of the Work. The Contractor is solely responsible for the 
purchase, delivery, off-loading and installation of all equipment and material(s).  Contractor 
must make all arrangement for delivery.  Contractor is liable for replacing any damaged 
equipment or material(s) and filing any and all claims with suppliers.  All transportation must 
comply with all federal, state (including FDOT), Miami-Dade County, and City laws, rules 
and regulations. No materials will be stored on-site without the prior written approval of the 
City. 

10.10. Substitutions. Substitution of any specified material or equipment requires the prior 
written acceptance of the Manager and/or Building Official.  It is the sole responsibility of 
the Contractor to provide sufficient information and documentation to the Manager and/or 
Building Official to allow for a thorough review and determination on the acceptability of 
the substitution.  Approval of a substitution does not waive or mitigate the Contractor’s 
responsibility to meet the requirements of the Contract Documents.  The City may require an 
adjustment in price based on any proposed substitution. 

10.11. Unsatisfactory Personnel. 

10.11.1. Contractor must at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among its 
employees and subcontractors at the Project(s) site(s) and must not employ on any Work 
any unfit person or anyone not skilled in the Work to which they are assigned. 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 16 of 22 

10.11.2. The City may make written request to the Contractor for the prompt removal 
and replacement of any personnel employed or retained by the Contractor, or any or 
Subcontractor engaged by the Contractor to provide and perform services or Work 
pursuant to the requirements of the Contract Documents.  The Contractor must respond 
to the City within five (5) calendar days of receipt of such request with either the removal 
and replacement of such personnel or written justification as to why that may not occur.   
The City will make the final determination as to the removal of unsatisfactory personnel 
from the Work. The Contractor agrees that the removal of any of such individual(s) does 
not require the termination or demotion of said individual(s). 

10.12. Contract Modification. 

10.12.1. Change Orders. 

10.12.1.1. Without invalidating the Contract Documents, and without notice to any 
Surety, the City reserves the right to make increases, decreases or other changes in 
the character or quantity of the Work under the Contract Documents as may be 
considered necessary or desirable to complete the Work in a manner satisfactory 
to the City.  The City reserves the right to order changes, which may result in 
additions to or reductions from the amount, type or value of the Work shown in the 
Contract, and which are within the general scope of the Contract Documents, and 
all such changes will be authorized only by a change order (“CO”) approved in 
advance, and issued in accordance with provisions of the Contract Documents. 

10.12.1.2. For Contractor initiated change orders, the Contractor is required to provide 
the Manager and/or Building Official with a detailed Request for Change Order 
(“RCO”) in a form approved by the City, which must include the requested 
revisions to the Contract, including, but not limited to, adjustments in the Contract 
Price and/or Contract Time. The Contractor must provide sufficient supporting 
documentation to demonstrate the reasonableness of the RCO. The City may 
require Contractor to provide additional data including, but not limited to, a cost 
breakdown of material costs, labor costs, labor rates by trade, work classifications, 
and overhead rates to support the RCO. If applicable, the RCO must include any 
schedule revisions accompanied by an explanation of the cost impact of the 
proposed change. Failure to include schedule revisions in an RCO will be deemed 
as the Contractor’s acknowledgement that the changes included in an RCO will 
not affect the project schedule. 

10.12.1.3. Any modifications to the Contract Work, Contract Time, or Contract Price, 
must be effectuated through a written CO executed by both parties. 

10.12.1.4. In the event a satisfactory adjustment cannot be reached, and a CO has not 
been issued, given that time is of the essence, the City reserves the right, at its sole 
option, to direct the Contractor to proceed on a time and materials basis or make 
such arrangements as may be deemed necessary to complete the proposed 
additional Work at the unit prices provided in the Contract Documents. Where the 
City directs the Contractor to proceed on a time and materials basis, the Contractor 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 17 of 22 

must maintain detailed records of all labor and material costs including but not 
limited to payroll records and material receipts. Contractor must demonstrate its 
costs with sufficient evidence to be entitled to compensation from the City. 

10.12.2. Extension of Contract Time. 

10.12.2.1. If the Contractor is delayed at any time during the progress of the Work 
beyond the time frame provided for Final Completion by a delay beyond the 
reasonable control of the Contractor, then the Contract Time shall be extended 
subject to the following conditions: 

10.12.2.1.1. The Contractor submits an RCO requesting the additional Contract 
Time within five (5) calendar days after the Contractor knew or should have 
known about the delay; 

10.12.2.1.2. The cause of the delay arose after the issuance of the NTP and could 
not have been anticipated by the Contractor through reasonable investigation 
before proceeding with the Work; 

10.12.2.1.3. The Contractor demonstrates that the completion of the Work will 
actually be affected by the cause of the delay; 

10.12.2.1.4. The delay cannot be avoided or mitigated by the exercise of all 
reasonable precautions, efforts, and measures of the Contractor. 

10.12.3. Continuing the Work 

10.12.3.1. Contractor must continue to perform all Work under the Contract Documents 
during all disputes or disagreements with City, including disputes or disagreements 
concerning an RCO. Contractor shall not delay any Work pending resolution of 
any disputes or disagreements. 

10.13. As-Built Drawings. [Intentionally Omitted] 

10.14. Record Set. Contractor must maintain in a safe place one record copy and one permit 
set of the Contract Documents, including, but not limited to, all Drawings, Specifications, 
amendments, COs, RFIs, and field directives, as well as all written interpretations and 
clarifications issued by the Manager and/or Building Official, in good order and annotated to 
show all changes made during construction. The record documents must be continuously 
updated by Contractor throughout the prosecution of the Work to accurately reflect all field 
changes that are made to adapt the Work to field conditions, changes resulting from COs 
and/or field directives as well as all written interpretations and clarifications, and all 
concealed and buried installations of piping, conduit and utility services. Contractor must 
certify the accuracy of the updated record documents. The record documents must be clean, 
and all changes, corrections and dimensions must be given in a neat and legible manner in 
red. Upon Final Completion and as a condition precedent to Contractor’s entitlement to final 
payment, the Record Set must be delivered to the Manager and/or Building Official by the 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 18 of 22 

Contractor.  The Record Set of Drawing must be submitted in the form required by the 
Manager and/or Building Official. 

10.15. Maintenance of Traffic. If required during the Project, Maintenance of Traffic 
(“MOT”) must be performed in accordance with the applicable FDOT Index Numbers (600 
Series) and as further stated herein.  The manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devises for 
Streets and Highways (U.S. Department of Transportation, FHWA), must be followed in the 
design, application, installation, maintenance and removal of all traffic control devices, 
warning devices and barriers necessary to protect the public and workmen from hazards with 
the Project limits.  Pedestrian and vehicular traffic must be maintained and protected at all 
times. Prior to commencement of the Work, Contractor must provide the City with a 
proposed MOT plan for review.  The City may require revisions to the proposed MOT plan.  
Failure to provide an MOT plan may result in the issuance of a stop work order. The 
Contractor will not be entitled to additional Contract Time for delays resulting from its failure 
to provide the required MOT plan. 

10.16. Hurricane Preparedness. During such periods of time as are designated by the 
United States Weather Bureau or Miami-Dade County as being a severe weather event, 
including a hurricane watch or warning, the Contractor, at no cost to the City, must take all 
precautions necessary to secure any Work in response to all threatened storm events, 
regardless of whether the Contractor has been given notice of same, in accordance with the 
Miami-Dade County Code. Compliance with any specific severe weather event or alert 
precautions will not constitute additional work. Suspension of the Work caused by a 
threatened or actual storm event, regardless of whether the City has directed such suspension, 
will entitle the Contractor to additional Contract Time as non-compensable, excusable delay. 

 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank. Signature pages follow.] 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 19 of 22 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be executed the day and year as first stated 
above. 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS  
 
 
 
By:        
William Alonso, CPA, CGFO 
City Manager 
 
Attest:  
 
 
By:        
Erika Gonzalez, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form and legal sufficiency:  
 
 
By:        
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
City Attorney 
 
Addresses for Notice:  
City of Miami Springs 
Attn: City Manager 
201 Westward Drive 

Miami Springs, FL 33166 
305-805-5011 (telephone) 
alonsow@miamisprings-fl.gov (email) 
 
With a copy to:  
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
Attn: Haydee Sera, Esq.  
City of Miami Springs City Attorney 
2800 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, Suite 1200 
Coral Gables, FL 33134 
hsera@wsh-law.com (email) 

CONTRACTOR 
 
 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
Title:        
 
Entity: SUPERIOR PARK SYSTEMS, INC. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Addresses for Notice:  
Superior Park Systems, Inc. 
Attn: Mitchell Leitner 
1418 Scott Street 
Hollywood, FL 33020 
954-445-7000 (telephone) 
mitch@superiorparksystems.com (email) 
 
With a copy to:  
Superior Park Systems, Inc. 
Attn: Michael Schwartz, Registered Agent 
200 South Park Road, #150 
Hollywood, FL 33021 
 
 



 

City of Miami Springs, FL   Notice to Proceed Form 

NOTICE TO PROCEED 
 

Dated:     , 20  
 
To:   Superior Park Systems, Inc. 

Attn: Mitchell Leitner 
1418 Scott Street 
Hollywood, FL 33020 
mitch@superiorparksystems.com (email) 

 
Project Name:  CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS TENNIS COURT RESURFACING PROJECT 
 
You are hereby notified that the Contract Times under the above Contract will commence to run on 
___________, 20____.  By that date, you are to start performing your obligations under the Contract 
Documents.  In accordance with Article 2 of the Contract, the dates of Substantial Completion and 
completion and readiness for final payment are ________________, 20____ and __________________, 
20____, ____/____ days respectively. 
 
Before you may start any Work at the site, Article 6 provides that you must deliver to the City (  check 
here if applicable, with copies to     and other identified additional insureds) 
Certificates of Insurance in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 
In addition, before you may start any Work at the site, you must: (add any additional requirements) 
             
              
 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS  
 
 
 
By:        
William Alonso, CPA, CGFO 
City Manager 

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE TO PROCEED 
 

SUPERIOR PARK SYSTEMS, INC. 
 
 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
Title:        
 
Date:        



Meeting Date: November 14th, 2022  

 

To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria Puentes Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 

Via:   William Alonso, City Manager/ Finance Director 

    

From:   Tammy Romero, Assistant City Manager 

    

Subject: Authorize the execution of an agreement with the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection (FDEP) 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommendation by Staff that Council accept the State Appropriation for Statewide 

Surface Restoration and Wastewater funding in the amount of $750,000.00 and authorize the City Manager to 

execute the attached Grant Agreement with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), relating 

to the Hook Square Pump House Replacement Project, on a cost reimbursement basis with no cost sharing 

requirement from the City.  

 

DISCUSSION: This grant award provides funding to the City, to replace the old and failing stormwater pump 

and generator at the Hook Square Pump Station near the outgoing bridge, along the C-6 canal. This pump station 

currently provides flood control to local residents and businesses located in the immediate area, as well as along 

South Royal Poinciana Blvd.  The existing pump is performing below capacity and parts have become obsolete 

for the pump and generator due to their ages from the 1930’s. The new pump and generator will help ensure that 

the City’s stormwater system remains capable of mitigating flooding and will also improve stormwater runoff 

water quality that is discharged into the C-6 canal.  

 

Additionally, this project is part of an ongoing City plan to alleviate flooding and address environmental issues 

associated with stormwater.  The project has been designed to meet environmental pollution requirements and 

protect the pristine environment of Biscayne Bay through treatment of storm water prior to its final disposal. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: None, as this Agreement does not require a match on the part of the City.   



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, ACCEPTING A 
STATEWIDE SURFACE RESTORATION AND 
WASTEWATER PROJECTS STATE APPROPRIATION 
GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $750,000; APPROVING A 
STATE-FUNDED GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION (FDEP) RELATING TO THE HOOK SQUARE 
PUMP HOUSE REPLACEMENT PROJECT; PROVIDING 
FOR AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) has been awarded a Statewide 

Surface Restoration and Wastewater Projects State Appropriation (the “Grant”) in the 

amount of $750,000 by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (“FDEP”) for 

the Hook Square Pump House Replacement Project (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, to secure the Grant, the City must enter into a State-Funded Grant 

Agreement (the “Agreement”) with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 

(“FDEP”) in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to accept the Grant, approve the Agreement, 

and authorize the City Manager to execute the Agreement in substantially the form 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Acceptance. That the City Council hereby accepts the Grant. 

Section 3. Approval. That the City Council hereby approves the Agreement 

with FDEP relating to the Grant for the Project.  

Section 4. Authorization. That the City Council hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to execute the Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 

“A,” subject to the City Attorney’s approval as to form, content, and legal sufficiency.  



Res. No. 22-   
Page 2 of 2 

 

Section 5. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Dr. Victor Vazquez     
Councilman Bob Best       
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo     
Councilman Dr. Walter Fajet     
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of November, 2022. 

 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
ATTEST:     MAYOR 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 



DEP Agreement No. Rev. / 0/18

STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Standard Grant Agreement
This Agreement is entered into between the Parties named below, pursuant to Section 215.971, Florida Statutes:

1. Project Title (Project): Agreement Number:

2. Parties State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection,
3900 Commonwealth Boulevard  
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000

(Department)

Grantee Name: Entity Type:

Grantee Address: FEID:
(Grantee)

3. Agreement Begin Date: Date of Expiration:

4. Project Number:
(If different from Agreement Number)

Project Location(s):

Project Description:

5. Total Amount of Funding: Funding Source? Award #s or Line Item Appropriations: Amount per Source(s):
State Federal
State Federal
Grantee Match

Total Amount of Funding + Grantee Match, if any:

6. Department’s Grant Manager Grantee’s Grant Manager
Name: Name:

or successor or successor
Address: Address:

Phone: Phone:

Email: Email:

7. The Parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following attachments and exhibits which are hereby
incorporated by reference:

Attachment 1: Standard Terms and Conditions Applicable to All Grants Agreements

Attachment 2: Special Terms and Conditions

Attachment 3:

Attachment 4: Public Records Requirements

Attachment 5: Special Audit Requirements

Attachment 6: Program-Specific Requirements

Attachment 7: Grant Award Terms (Federal) *Copy available at https://facts.fldfs.com, in accordance with §215.985, F.S.

Attachment 8: Federal Regulations and Terms (Federal)

Additional Attachments (if necessary):

Exhibit A: Progress Report Form

Exhibit B: Property Reporting Form

Exhibit C: Payment Request Summary Form

Exhibit D:

Exhibit E: Advance Payment Terms and Interest Earned Memo

Additional Exhibits (if necessary):

LP, GAA LI 1665A, FY 22-23, GR

Mary Clare Swanson

3900 Commonwealth Blvd., MS 3570 201 Westward Drive

Miami Springs, FL 33166

850-245-2984 305-805-5035

Hook Square Pump House Replacement LPA0336

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, FL 33166

Local Government

59-6000374

Upon Execution March 31, 2024

$750,000.00 $750,000.00

$750,000.00

Tammy Romero

MaryClare.Swanson@FloridaDEP.gov romerot@miamisprings-fl.gov

City of Miami Springs

Replacement of pump station and culvert improvements for manatee protection, flood risk mitigation, and water 

quality.

Lat/Long (25.8202, -80.2808)

Tallahassee, FL 32399-3000



DEP Agreement No. 
Rev. 6/20/18

8. The following information applies to Federal Grants only and is identified in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331(a)(1):
Federal Award Identification Number(s) (FAIN): 
Federal Award Date to Department: 
Total Federal Funds Obligated by this Agreement: 
Federal Awarding Agency: 
Award R&D? ☐ Yes  ☐N/A

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement shall be effective on the date indicated by the Agreement Begin Date above or the 
last date signed below, whichever is later. 

GRANTEE 
Grantee Name 

By 
(Authorized Signature) Date Signed 

Print Name and Title of Person Signing 

State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection DEPARTMENT 

By 
Secretary or Designee Date Signed 

Print Name and Title of Person Signing 

☐ Additional signatures attached on separate page.



DWRA Additional Signatures 

______________________________________________ 
Mary Clare Swanson, DEP Grant Manager

_______________________________________________ 
Amanda Peck, DEP QC Reviewer 



Attachment 1 
1 of 12 

Rev. 10/3/2022 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
APPLICABLE TO GRANT AGREEMENTS 

 
ATTACHMENT 1 

 
1. Entire Agreement.   
This Grant Agreement, including any Attachments and Exhibits referred to herein and/or attached hereto (Agreement), 
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior 
agreements, whether written or oral, with respect to such subject matter.  Any terms and conditions included on 
Grantee’s forms or invoices shall be null and void. 
2. Grant Administration. 
a. Order of Precedence.  If there are conflicting provisions among the documents that make up the Agreement, the 

order of precedence for interpretation of the Agreement is as follows: 
i. Standard Grant Agreement 

ii. Attachments other than Attachment 1, in numerical order as designated in the Standard Grant 
Agreement 

iii. Attachment 1, Standard Terms and Conditions 
iv. The Exhibits in the order designated in the Standard Grant Agreement 

b. All approvals, written or verbal, and other written communication among the parties, including all notices, shall 
be obtained by or sent to the parties’ Grant Managers.  All written communication shall be by electronic mail, 
U.S. Mail, a courier delivery service, or delivered in person.  Notices shall be considered delivered when reflected 
by an electronic mail read receipt, a courier service delivery receipt, other mail service delivery receipt, or when 
receipt is acknowledged by recipient. If the notice is delivered in multiple ways, the notice will be considered 
delivered at the earliest delivery time.   

c. If a different Grant Manager is designated by either party after execution of this Agreement, notice of the name 
and contact information of the new Grant Manager will be submitted in writing to the other party and maintained 
in the respective parties’ records. A change of Grant Manager does not require a formal amendment or change 
order to the Agreement. 

d. This Agreement may be amended, through a formal amendment or a change order, only by a written agreement 
between both parties. A formal amendment to this Agreement is required for changes which cause any of the 
following:   
(1) an increase or decrease in the Agreement funding amount;  
(2) a change in Grantee’s match requirements;  
(3) a change in the expiration date of the Agreement; and/or  
(4) changes to the cumulative amount of funding transfers between approved budget categories, as defined in 
Attachment 3, Grant Work Plan, that exceeds or is expected to exceed twenty percent (20%) of the total budget 
as last approved by Department.  
A change order to this Agreement may be used when:  
(1) task timelines within the current authorized Agreement period change;  
(2) the cumulative transfer of funds between approved budget categories, as defined in Attachment 3, Grant Work 
Plan, are less than twenty percent (20%) of the total budget as last approved by Department;  
(3) changing the current funding source as stated in the Standard Grant Agreement; and/or  
(4) fund transfers between budget categories for the purposes of meeting match requirements.   
This Agreement may be amended to provide for additional services if additional funding is made available by the 
Legislature. 

e. All days in this Agreement are calendar days unless otherwise specified. 
3. Agreement Duration. 
The term of the Agreement shall begin and end on the dates indicated in the Standard Grant Agreement, unless 
extended or terminated earlier in accordance with the applicable terms and conditions. The Grantee shall be eligible 
for reimbursement for work performed on or after the date of execution through the expiration date of this Agreement, 
unless otherwise specified in Attachment 2, Special Terms and Conditions. However, work performed prior to the 
execution of this Agreement may be reimbursable or used for match purposes if permitted by the Special Terms and 
Conditions. 
 



Attachment 1 
2 of 12 

Rev. 10/3/2022 

4. Deliverables. 
The Grantee agrees to render the services or other units of deliverables as set forth in Attachment 3, Grant Work Plan. 
The services or other units of deliverables shall be delivered in accordance with the schedule and at the pricing outlined 
in the Grant Work Plan. Deliverables may be comprised of activities that must be completed prior to Department 
making payment on that deliverable. The Grantee agrees to perform in accordance with the terms and conditions set 
forth in this Agreement and all attachments and exhibits incorporated by the Standard Grant Agreement. 
5. Performance Measures. 
The Grantee warrants that: (1) the services will be performed by qualified personnel; (2) the services will be of the 
kind and quality described in the Grant Work Plan; (3) the services will be performed in a professional and 
workmanlike manner in accordance with industry standards and practices; (4) the services shall not and do not 
knowingly infringe upon the intellectual property rights, or any other proprietary rights, of any third party; and (5) its 
employees, subcontractors, and/or subgrantees shall comply with any security and safety requirements and processes, 
if provided by Department, for work done at the Project Location(s). The Department reserves the right to investigate 
or inspect at any time to determine whether the services or qualifications offered by Grantee meet the Agreement 
requirements. Notwithstanding any provisions herein to the contrary, written acceptance of a particular deliverable 
does not foreclose Department’s remedies in the event deficiencies in the deliverable cannot be readily measured at 
the time of delivery. 
6. Acceptance of Deliverables. 
a. Acceptance Process.  All deliverables must be received and accepted in writing by Department’s Grant Manager 

before payment. The Grantee shall work diligently to correct all deficiencies in the deliverable that remain 
outstanding, within a reasonable time at Grantee’s expense. If Department’s Grant Manager does not accept the 
deliverables within 30 days of receipt, they will be deemed rejected. 

b. Rejection of Deliverables.  The Department reserves the right to reject deliverables, as outlined in the Grant 
Work Plan, as incomplete, inadequate, or unacceptable due, in whole or in part, to Grantee’s lack of satisfactory 
performance under the terms of this Agreement. The Grantee’s efforts to correct the rejected deliverables will 
be at Grantee’s sole expense. Failure to fulfill the applicable technical requirements or complete all tasks or 
activities in accordance with the Grant Work Plan will result in rejection of the deliverable and the associated 
invoice.  Payment for the rejected deliverable will not be issued unless the rejected deliverable is made 
acceptable to Department in accordance with the Agreement requirements.  The Department, at its option, may 
allow additional time within which Grantee may remedy the objections noted by Department. The Grantee’s 
failure to make adequate or acceptable deliverables after a reasonable opportunity to do so shall constitute an 
event of default. 

7. Financial Consequences for Nonperformance. 
a. Withholding Payment.  In addition to the specific consequences explained in the Grant Work Plan and/or 

Special Terms and Conditions, the State of Florida (State) reserves the right to withhold payment when the 
Grantee has failed to perform/comply with provisions of this Agreement. None of the financial consequences 
for nonperformance in this Agreement as more fully described in the Grant Work Plan shall be considered 
penalties. 

b. Invoice reduction  
If Grantee does not meet a deadline for any deliverable, the Department with reduce the invoice by 1% for each 
day the deadline is missed, unless an extension is approved in writing by the Department.   

c. Corrective Action Plan.  If Grantee fails to correct all the deficiencies in a rejected deliverable within the specified 
timeframe, Department may, in its sole discretion, request that a proposed Corrective Action Plan (CAP) be 
submitted by Grantee to Department.  The Department requests that Grantee specify the outstanding deficiencies 
in the CAP.  All CAPs must be able to be implemented and performed in no more than sixty (60) calendar days. 

i. The Grantee shall submit a CAP within ten (10) days of the date of the written request from 
Department. The CAP shall be sent to the Department’s Grant Manager for review and approval. 
Within ten (10) days of receipt of a CAP, Department shall notify Grantee in writing whether the 
CAP proposed has been accepted.  If the CAP is not accepted, Grantee shall have ten (10) days from 
receipt of Department letter rejecting the proposal to submit a revised proposed CAP.  Failure to 
obtain Department approval of a CAP as specified above may result in Department’s termination of 
this Agreement for cause as authorized in this Agreement. 

ii. Upon Department’s notice of acceptance of a proposed CAP, Grantee shall have ten (10) days to 
commence implementation of the accepted plan.  Acceptance of the proposed CAP by Department 
does not relieve Grantee of any of its obligations under the Agreement. In the event the CAP fails 
to correct or eliminate performance deficiencies by Grantee, Department shall retain the right to 



Attachment 1 
3 of 12 

Rev. 10/3/2022 

require additional or further remedial steps, or to terminate this Agreement for failure to perform.  
No actions approved by Department or steps taken by Grantee shall preclude Department from 
subsequently asserting any deficiencies in performance.  The Grantee shall continue to implement 
the CAP until all deficiencies are corrected.  Reports on the progress of the CAP will be made to 
Department as requested by Department’s Grant Manager. 

iii. Failure to respond to a Department request for a CAP or failure to correct a deficiency in the 
performance of the Agreement as specified by Department may result in termination of the 
Agreement.  

8. Payment. 
a. Payment Process. Subject to the terms and conditions established by the Agreement, the pricing per deliverable 

established by the Grant Work Plan, and the billing procedures established by Department, Department agrees 
to pay Grantee for services rendered in accordance with Section 215.422, Florida Statutes (F.S.).  

b. Taxes. The Department is exempted from payment of State sales, use taxes and Federal excise taxes. The Grantee, 
however, shall not be exempted from paying any taxes that it is subject to, including State sales and use taxes, or 
for payment by Grantee to suppliers for taxes on materials used to fulfill its contractual obligations with 
Department. The Grantee shall not use Department's exemption number in securing such materials. The Grantee 
shall be responsible and liable for the payment of all its FICA/Social Security and other taxes resulting from this 
Agreement.  

c. Maximum Amount of Agreement. The maximum amount of compensation under this Agreement, without an 
amendment, is described in the Standard Grant Agreement. Any additional funds necessary for the completion of 
this Project are the responsibility of Grantee. 

d. Reimbursement for Costs. The Grantee shall be paid on a cost reimbursement basis for all eligible Project costs 
upon the completion, submittal, and approval of each deliverable identified in the Grant Work Plan.  
Reimbursement shall be requested on Exhibit C, Payment Request Summary Form. To be eligible for 
reimbursement, costs must be in compliance with laws, rules, and regulations applicable to expenditures of State 
funds, including, but not limited to, the Reference Guide for State Expenditures, which can be accessed at the 
following web address:  
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf. 

e. Invoice Detail.  All charges for services rendered or for reimbursement of expenses authorized by Department 
pursuant to the Grant Work Plan shall be submitted to Department in sufficient detail for a proper pre-audit and 
post-audit to be performed. The Grantee shall only invoice Department for deliverables that are completed in 
accordance with the Grant Work Plan. 

f. Interim Payments. Interim payments may be made by Department, at its discretion, if the completion of 
deliverables to date have first been accepted in writing by Department's Grant Manager.  

g. Final Payment Request. A final payment request should be submitted to Department no later than sixty (60) days 
following the expiration date of the Agreement to ensure the availability of funds for payment.  However, all 
work performed pursuant to the Grant Work Plan must be performed on or before the expiration date of the 
Agreement. 

h. Annual Appropriation Contingency. The State’s performance and obligation to pay under this Agreement is 
contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature. This Agreement is not a commitment of future 
appropriations. Authorization for continuation and completion of work and any associated payments may be 
rescinded, with proper notice, at the discretion of Department if the Legislature reduces or eliminates 
appropriations. 

i. Interest Rates. All interest rates charged under the Agreement shall be calculated on the prevailing rate used by 
the State Board of Administration. To obtain the applicable interest rate, please refer to: 
www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Vendors/default.htm. 

j. Refund of Payments to the Department. Any balance of unobligated funds that have been advanced or paid must 
be refunded to Department. Any funds paid in excess of the amount to which Grantee or subgrantee is entitled 
under the terms of the Agreement must be refunded to Department. If this Agreement is funded with federal funds 
and the Department is required to refund the federal government, the Grantee shall refund the Department its 
share of those funds. 

9. Documentation Required for Cost Reimbursement Grant Agreements and Match. 
If Cost Reimbursement or Match is authorized in Attachment 2, Special Terms and Conditions, the following 
conditions apply. Supporting documentation must be provided to substantiate cost reimbursement or match 
requirements for the following budget categories: 

https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf
file://FLDEP1/OGC/OGC_ALL/CONTRACTS/Grant%20Templates/Word%20Versions%20of%20PDFs/www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Vendors/default.htm


Attachment 1 
4 of 12 

Rev. 10/3/2022 

a. Salary/Wages. Grantee shall list personnel involved, position classification, direct salary rates, and hours spent 
on the Project in accordance with Attachment 3, Grant Work Plan in their documentation for reimbursement or 
match requirements. 

b. Overhead/Indirect/General and Administrative Costs. If Grantee is being reimbursed for or claiming match for 
multipliers, all multipliers used (i.e., fringe benefits, overhead, indirect, and/or general and administrative rates) 
shall be supported by audit. If Department determines that multipliers charged by Grantee exceeded the rates 
supported by audit, Grantee shall be required to reimburse such funds to Department within thirty (30) days of 
written notification. Interest shall be charged on the excessive rate.  

c. Contractual Costs (Subcontractors). Match or reimbursement requests for payments to subcontractors must be 
substantiated by copies of invoices with backup documentation identical to that required from Grantee.  
Subcontracts which involve payments for direct salaries shall clearly identify the personnel involved, salary rate 
per hour, and hours spent on the Project. All eligible multipliers used (i.e., fringe benefits, overhead, indirect, 
and/or general and administrative rates) shall be supported by audit.  If Department determines that multipliers 
charged by any subcontractor exceeded the rates supported by audit, Grantee shall be required to reimburse such 
funds to Department within thirty (30) days of written notification.  Interest shall be charged on the excessive 
rate.  Nonconsumable and/or nonexpendable personal property or equipment costing $5,000 or more purchased 
for the Project under a subcontract is subject to the requirements set forth in Chapters 273 and/or 274, F.S., and 
Chapter 69I-72, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) and/or Chapter 69I-73, F.A.C., as applicable. The Grantee 
shall be responsible for maintaining appropriate property records for any subcontracts that include the purchase 
of equipment as part of the delivery of services. The Grantee shall comply with this requirement and ensure its 
subcontracts issued under this Agreement, if any, impose this requirement, in writing, on its subcontractors. 

i. For fixed-price (vendor) subcontracts, the following provisions shall apply:  The Grantee may 
award, on a competitive basis, fixed-price subcontracts to consultants/contractors in performing the 
work described in Attachment 3, Grant Work Plan. Invoices submitted to Department for fixed-
price subcontracted activities shall be supported with a copy of the subcontractor’s invoice and a 
copy of the tabulation form for the competitive procurement process (e.g., Invitation to Bid, Request 
for Proposals, or other similar competitive procurement document) resulting in the fixed-price 
subcontract. The Grantee may request approval from Department to award a fixed-price subcontract 
resulting from procurement methods other than those identified above. In this instance, Grantee shall 
request the advance written approval from Department’s Grant Manager of the fixed price 
negotiated by Grantee. The letter of request shall be supported by a detailed budget and Scope of 
Services to be performed by the subcontractor. Upon receipt of Department Grant Manager’s 
approval of the fixed-price amount, Grantee may proceed in finalizing the fixed-price subcontract. 

ii. If the procurement is subject to the Consultant’s Competitive Negotiation Act under section 
287.055, F.S. or the Brooks Act, Grantee must provide documentation clearly evidencing it has 
complied with the statutory or federal requirements. 

d. Travel.  All requests for match or reimbursement of travel expenses shall be in accordance with Section 112.061, 
F.S. 

e. Direct Purchase Equipment. For the purposes of this Agreement, Equipment is defined as capital outlay costing 
$5,000 or more.  Match or reimbursement for Grantee’s direct purchase of equipment is subject to specific 
approval of Department, and does not include any equipment purchased under the delivery of services to be 
completed by a subcontractor.  Include copies of invoices or receipts to document purchases, and a properly 
completed Exhibit B, Property Reporting Form.  

f. Rental/Lease of Equipment. Match or reimbursement requests for rental/lease of equipment must include copies 
of invoices or receipts to document charges. 

g. Miscellaneous/Other Expenses. If miscellaneous or other expenses, such as materials, supplies, non-excluded 
phone expenses, reproduction, or mailing, are reimbursable or available for match or reimbursement under the 
terms of this Agreement, the documentation supporting these expenses must be itemized and include copies of 
receipts or invoices. Additionally, independent of Grantee’s contract obligations to its subcontractor, Department 
shall not reimburse any of the following types of charges: cell phone usage; attorney’s fees or court costs; civil 
or administrative penalties; or handling fees, such as set percent overages associated with purchasing supplies or 
equipment. 

h. Land Acquisition. Reimbursement for the costs associated with acquiring interest and/or rights to real property 
(including access rights through ingress/egress easements, leases, license agreements, or other site access 
agreements; and/or obtaining record title ownership of real property through purchase) must be supported by the 
following, as applicable:  Copies of Property Appraisals, Environmental Site Assessments, Surveys and Legal 



Attachment 1 
5 of 12 

Rev. 10/3/2022 

Descriptions, Boundary Maps, Acreage Certification, Title Search Reports, Title Insurance, Closing 
Statements/Documents, Deeds, Leases, Easements, License Agreements, or other legal instrument documenting 
acquired property interest and/or rights.  If land acquisition costs are used to meet match requirements, Grantee 
agrees that those funds shall not be used as match for any other Agreement supported by State or Federal funds. 

10. Status Reports. 
The Grantee shall submit status reports quarterly, unless otherwise specified in the Attachments, on Exhibit A, 
Progress Report Form, to Department’s Grant Manager describing the work performed during the reporting 
period, problems encountered, problem resolutions, scheduled updates, and proposed work for the next reporting 
period.  Quarterly status reports are due no later than twenty (20) days following the completion of the quarterly 
reporting period.  For the purposes of this reporting requirement, the quarterly reporting periods end on March 
31, June 30, September 30 and December 31. The Department will review the required reports submitted by 
Grantee within thirty (30) days.   

11. Retainage. 
The following provisions apply if Department withholds retainage under this Agreement: 
a. The Department reserves the right to establish the amount and application of retainage on the work performed 

under this Agreement up to the maximum percentage described in Attachment 2, Special Terms and Conditions. 
Retainage may be withheld from each payment to Grantee pending satisfactory completion of work and approval 
of all deliverables.  

b. If Grantee fails to perform the requested work, or fails to perform the work in a satisfactory manner, Grantee shall 
forfeit its right to payment of the retainage associated with the work.  Failure to perform includes, but is not 
limited to, failure to submit the required deliverables or failure to provide adequate documentation that the work 
was actually performed. The Department shall provide written notification to Grantee of the failure to perform 
that shall result in retainage forfeiture. If the Grantee does not correct the failure to perform within the timeframe 
stated in Department’s notice, the retainage will be forfeited to Department. 

c. No retainage shall be released or paid for incomplete work while this Agreement is suspended. 
d. Except as otherwise provided above, Grantee shall be paid the retainage associated with the work, provided 

Grantee has completed the work and submits an invoice for retainage held in accordance with the invoicing 
procedures under this Agreement. 

12. Insurance.  
a. Insurance Requirements for Sub-Grantees and/or Subcontractors.  The Grantee shall require its sub-grantees 

and/or subcontractors, if any, to maintain insurance coverage of such types and with such terms and limits as 
described in this Agreement.  The Grantee shall require all its sub-grantees and/or subcontractors, if any, to 
make compliance with the insurance requirements of this Agreement a condition of all contracts that are related 
to this Agreement.  Sub-grantees and/or subcontractors must provide proof of insurance upon request. 

b. Deductibles.  The Department shall be exempt from, and in no way liable for, any sums of money representing a 
deductible in any insurance policy.  The payment of such deductible shall be the sole responsibility of the 
Grantee providing such insurance. 

c. Proof of Insurance.  Upon execution of this Agreement, Grantee shall provide Department documentation 
demonstrating the existence and amount for each type of applicable insurance coverage prior to performance of 
any work under this Agreement.  Upon receipt of written request from Department, Grantee shall furnish 
Department with proof of applicable insurance coverage by standard form certificates of insurance, a self-
insured authorization, or other certification of self-insurance.   

d. Duty to Maintain Coverage.  In the event that any applicable coverage is cancelled by the insurer for any 
reason, or if Grantee cannot get adequate coverage, Grantee shall immediately notify Department of such 
cancellation and shall obtain adequate replacement coverage conforming to the requirements herein and provide 
proof of such replacement coverage within ten (10) days after the cancellation of coverage.   

e. Insurance Trust. If the Grantee’s insurance is provided through an insurance trust, the Grantee shall instead add 
the Department of Environmental Protection, its employees, and officers as an additional covered party 
everywhere the Agreement requires them to be added as an additional insured. 

13. Termination.   
a. Termination for Convenience. When it is in the State’s best interest, Department may, at its sole discretion, 

terminate the Agreement in whole or in part by giving 30 days’ written notice to Grantee.  The Department shall 
notify Grantee of the termination for convenience with instructions as to the effective date of termination or the 
specific stage of work at which the Agreement is to be terminated. The Grantee must submit all invoices for 
work to be paid under this Agreement within thirty (30) days of the effective date of termination.  The 
Department shall not pay any invoices received after thirty (30) days of the effective date of termination. 



Attachment 1 
6 of 12 

Rev. 10/3/2022 

b. Termination for Cause. The Department may terminate this Agreement if any of the events of default described 
in the Events of Default provisions below occur or in the event that Grantee fails to fulfill any of its other 
obligations under this Agreement. If, after termination, it is determined that Grantee was not in default, or that 
the default was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had 
been issued for the convenience of Department. The rights and remedies of Department in this clause are in 
addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement. 

c. Grantee Obligations upon Notice of Termination. After receipt of a notice of termination or partial termination 
unless as otherwise directed by Department, Grantee shall not furnish any service or deliverable on the date, and 
to the extent specified, in the notice.  However, Grantee shall continue work on any portion of the Agreement 
not terminated.  If the Agreement is terminated before performance is completed, Grantee shall be paid only for 
that work satisfactorily performed for which costs can be substantiated.  The Grantee shall not be entitled to 
recover any cancellation charges or lost profits.   

d. Continuation of Prepaid Services. If Department has paid for any services prior to the expiration, cancellation, 
or termination of the Agreement, Grantee shall continue to provide Department with those services for which it 
has already been paid or, at Department’s discretion, Grantee shall provide a refund for services that have been 
paid for but not rendered. 

e. Transition of Services Upon Termination, Expiration, or Cancellation of the Agreement. If services provided 
under the Agreement are being transitioned to another provider(s), Grantee  shall assist in the smooth transition 
of Agreement services to the subsequent provider(s).  This requirement is at a minimum an affirmative 
obligation to cooperate with the new provider(s), however additional requirements may be outlined in the Grant 
Work Plan.  The Grantee shall not perform any services after Agreement expiration or termination, except as 
necessary to complete the transition or continued portion of the Agreement, if any. 

14. Notice of Default. 
If Grantee defaults in the performance of any covenant or obligation contained in the Agreement, including, any of 
the events of default, Department shall provide notice to Grantee and an opportunity to cure that is reasonable under 
the circumstances. This notice shall state the nature of the failure to perform and provide a time certain for correcting 
the failure. The notice will also provide that, should the Grantee fail to perform within the time provided, Grantee will 
be found in default, and Department may terminate the Agreement effective as of the date of receipt of the default 
notice.   
15. Events of Default.   
Provided such failure is not the fault of Department or outside the reasonable control of Grantee, the following non-
exclusive list of events, acts, or omissions, shall constitute events of default: 
a. The commitment of any material breach of this Agreement by Grantee, including failure to timely deliver a 

material deliverable, failure to perform the minimal level of services required for a deliverable, discontinuance of 
the performance of the work, failure to resume work that has been discontinued within a reasonable time after 
notice to do so, or abandonment of the Agreement; 

b. The commitment of any material misrepresentation or omission in any materials, or discovery by the Department 
of such, made by the Grantee in this Agreement or in its application for funding; 

c. Failure to submit any of the reports required by this Agreement or having submitted any report with incorrect, 
incomplete, or insufficient information; 

d. Failure to honor any term of the Agreement; 
e. Failure to abide by any statutory, regulatory, or licensing requirement, including an entry of an order revoking 

the certificate of authority granted to the Grantee by a state or other licensing authority; 
f. Failure to pay any and all entities, individuals, and furnishing labor or materials, or failure to make payment to 

any other entities as required by this Agreement; 
g. Employment of an unauthorized alien in the performance of the work, in violation of Section 274 (A) of the 

Immigration and Nationality Act; 
h. Failure to maintain the insurance required by this Agreement;  
i. One or more of the following circumstances, uncorrected for more than thirty (30) days unless, within the 

specified 30-day period, Grantee (including its receiver or trustee in bankruptcy) provides to Department adequate 
assurances, reasonably acceptable to Department, of its continuing ability and willingness to fulfill its obligations 
under the Agreement: 

i. Entry of an order for relief under Title 11 of the United States Code; 
ii. The making by Grantee of a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; 

iii. The appointment of a general receiver or trustee in bankruptcy of Grantee’s business or property; 
and/or 



Attachment 1 
7 of 12 

Rev. 10/3/2022 

iv. An action by Grantee under any state insolvency or similar law for the purpose of its bankruptcy, 
reorganization, or liquidation.  

16. Suspension of Work. 
The Department may, in its sole discretion, suspend any or all activities under the Agreement, at any time, when it is 
in the best interest of the State to do so. The Department shall provide Grantee written notice outlining the particulars 
of suspension. Examples of reasons for suspension include, but are not limited to, budgetary constraints, declaration 
of emergency, or other such circumstances.  After receiving a suspension notice, Grantee shall comply with the notice. 
Within 90 days, or any longer period agreed to by the parties, Department shall either: (1) issue a notice authorizing 
resumption of work, at which time activity shall resume; or (2) terminate the Agreement. If the Agreement is 
terminated after 30 days of suspension, the notice of suspension shall be deemed to satisfy the thirty (30) days’ notice 
required for a notice of termination for convenience. Suspension of work shall not entitle Grantee to any additional 
compensation. 
17. Force Majeure. 
The Grantee shall not be responsible for delay resulting from its failure to perform if neither the fault nor the negligence 
of Grantee or its employees or agents contributed to the delay and the delay is due directly to acts of God, wars, acts 
of public enemies, strikes, fires, floods, or other similar cause wholly beyond Grantee’s control, or for any of the 
foregoing that affect subcontractors or suppliers if no alternate source of supply is available to Grantee.  In case of 
any delay Grantee believes is excusable, Grantee shall notify Department in writing of the delay or potential delay 
and describe the cause of the delay either (1) within ten days after the cause that creates or will create the delay first 
arose, if Grantee could reasonably foresee that a delay could occur as a result; or (2) if delay is not reasonably 
foreseeable, within five days after the date Grantee first had reason to believe that a delay could result. THE 
FOREGOING SHALL CONSTITUTE THE GRANTEE’S SOLE REMEDY OR EXCUSE WITH RESPECT 
TO DELAY. Providing notice in strict accordance with this paragraph is a condition precedent to such remedy.  No 
claim for damages, other than for an extension of time, shall be asserted against Department. The Grantee shall not be 
entitled to an increase in the Agreement price or payment of any kind from Department for direct, indirect, 
consequential, impact or other costs, expenses or damages, including but not limited to costs of acceleration or 
inefficiency, arising because of delay, disruption, interference, or hindrance from any cause whatsoever. If 
performance is suspended or delayed, in whole or in part, due to any of the causes described in this paragraph, after 
the causes have ceased to exist Grantee shall perform at no increased cost, unless Department determines, in its sole 
discretion, that the delay will significantly impair the value of the Agreement to Department, in which case Department 
may: (1) accept allocated performance or deliveries from Grantee, provided that Grantee grants preferential treatment 
to Department with respect to products subjected to allocation; (2) contract with other sources (without recourse to 
and by Grantee for the related costs and expenses) to replace all or part of the products or services that are the subject 
of the delay, which purchases may be deducted from the Agreement quantity; or (3) terminate Agreement in whole or 
in part. 
18. Indemnification. 
a. The Grantee shall be fully liable for the actions of its agents, employees, partners, or subcontractors and shall 

fully indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Department and its officers, agents, and employees, from suits, 
actions, damages, and costs of every name and description arising from or relating to: 

i. personal injury and damage to real or personal tangible property alleged to be caused in whole or in 
part by Grantee, its agents, employees, partners, or subcontractors; provided, however, that Grantee 
shall not indemnify for that portion of any loss or damages proximately caused by the negligent act 
or omission of Department; 

ii. the Grantee’s breach of this Agreement or the negligent acts or omissions of Grantee. 
b. The Grantee’s obligations under the preceding paragraph with respect to any legal action are contingent upon 

Department giving Grantee: (1) written notice of any action or threatened action; (2) the opportunity to take over 
and settle or defend any such action at Grantee’s sole expense; and (3) assistance in defending the action at 
Grantee’s sole expense. The Grantee shall not be liable for any cost, expense, or compromise incurred or made 
by Department in any legal action without Grantee’s prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. 

c. Notwithstanding sections a. and b. above, the following is the sole indemnification provision that applies to 
Grantees that are governmental entities:  Each party hereto agrees that it shall be solely responsible for the 
negligent or wrongful acts of its employees and agents.  However, nothing contained herein shall constitute a 
waiver by either party of its sovereign immunity or the provisions of Section 768.28, F.S. Further, nothing herein 
shall be construed as consent by a state agency or subdivision of the State to be sued by third parties in any matter 
arising out of any contract or this Agreement. 



Attachment 1 
8 of 12 

Rev. 10/3/2022 

d. No provision in this Agreement shall require Department to hold harmless or indemnify Grantee, insure or assume 
liability for Grantee’s negligence, waive Department’s sovereign immunity under the laws of Florida, or 
otherwise impose liability on Department for which it would not otherwise be responsible.  Any provision, 
implication or suggestion to the contrary is null and void.   

19. Limitation of Liability.   
The Department’s liability for any claim arising from this Agreement is limited to compensatory damages in an amount 
no greater than the sum of the unpaid balance of compensation due for goods or services rendered pursuant to and in 
compliance with the terms of the Agreement. Such liability is further limited to a cap of $100,000. 
20. Remedies.   
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to make Grantee liable for force majeure events. Nothing in this 
Agreement, including financial consequences for nonperformance, shall limit Department’s right to pursue its 
remedies for other types of damages under the Agreement, at law or in equity. The Department may, in addition to 
other remedies available to it, at law or in equity and upon notice to Grantee, retain such monies from amounts due 
Grantee as may be necessary to satisfy any claim for damages, penalties, costs and the like asserted by or against it.  
21. Waiver.   
The delay or failure by Department to exercise or enforce any of its rights under this Agreement shall not constitute 
or be deemed a waiver of Department’s right thereafter to enforce those rights, nor shall any single or partial exercise 
of any such right preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right. 
22. Statutory Notices Relating to Unauthorized Employment and Subcontracts.   
a. The Department shall consider the employment by any Grantee of unauthorized aliens a violation of Section 

274A(e) of the Immigration and Nationality Act.  If Grantee/subcontractor knowingly employs unauthorized 
aliens, such violation shall be cause for unilateral cancellation of this Agreement. The Grantee shall be responsible 
for including this provision in all subcontracts with private organizations issued as a result of this Agreement.   

b. Pursuant to Sections 287.133, 287.134, and 287.137 F.S., the following restrictions apply to persons placed on 
the convicted vendor list, discriminatory vendor list, or the antitrust violator vendor list: 

i. Public Entity Crime.  A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list 
following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract 
to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a 
contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work; may 
not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded 
or perform work as a Grantee, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public 
entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount 
provided in Section 287.017, F.S., for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months following the 
date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 

ii. Discriminatory Vendors.  An entity or affiliate who has been placed on the discriminatory vendor 
list may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a 
public entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the 
construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies 
on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, 
supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and may not transact 
business with any public entity.   

iii. Antitrust Violator Vendors. A person or an affiliate who has been placed on the antitrust violator 
vendor list following a conviction or being held civilly liable for an antitrust violation may not 
submit a bid, proposal, or reply on any contract to provide any good or services to a public entity; 
may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on any contract with a public entity for the construction or 
repair of a public building or public work; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on leases of real 
property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a Grantee, supplier, 
subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with a public entity; and may not transact new business 
with a public entity.  

iv. Notification.  The Grantee shall notify Department if it or any of its suppliers, subcontractors, or 
consultants have been placed on the convicted vendor list, the discriminatory vendor list, or antitrust 
violator vendor list during the life of the Agreement. The Florida Department of Management 
Services is responsible for maintaining the discriminatory vendor list and the antitrust violator 
vendor list and posts the list on its website. Questions regarding the discriminatory vendor list or 
antitrust violator vendor list may be directed to the Florida Department of Management Services, 
Office of Supplier Diversity, at (850) 487-0915. 



Attachment 1 
9 of 12 

Rev. 10/3/2022 

 
 

23. Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws.   
a. The Grantee and all its agents shall comply with all federal, state and local regulations, including, but not limited 

to, nondiscrimination, wages, social security, workers’ compensation, licenses, and registration requirements.  
The Grantee shall include this provision in all subcontracts issued as a result of this Agreement. 

b. No person, on the grounds of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, age, gender, or disability, shall be 
excluded from participation in; be denied the proceeds or benefits of; or be otherwise subjected to discrimination 
in performance of this Agreement. 

c. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.  
d. Any dispute concerning performance of the Agreement shall be processed as described herein. Jurisdiction for 

any damages arising under the terms of the Agreement will be in the courts of the State, and venue will be in the 
Second Judicial Circuit, in and for Leon County.  Except as otherwise provided by law, the parties agree to be 
responsible for their own attorney fees incurred in connection with disputes arising under the terms of this 
Agreement.   

24. Build America, Buy America Act (BABA). 
Recipients or Subrecipients of an award of Federal financial assistance from a program for infrastructure are 
required to comply with the Build America, Buy America Act (BABA), including the following provisions: 

a. All iron and steel used in the project are produced in the United States--this means all manufacturing processes, 
from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States; 

b. All manufactured products used in the project are produced in the United States-this means the manufactured 
product was manufactured in the United States; and the cost of the components of the manufactured product 
that are mined, produced, or manufactured in the United States is greater than 55 percent of the total cost of all 
components of the manufactured product, unless another standard for determining the minimum amount of 
domestic content of the manufactured product has been established under applicable law or regulation; and 

c. All construction materials are manufactured in the United States-this means that all manufacturing processes for 
the construction material occurred in the United States. 
The Buy America preference only applies to articles, materials, and supplies that are consumed in, incorporated 
into, or affixed to an infrastructure project. As such, it does not apply to tools, equipment, and supplies, such as 
temporary scaffolding, brought to the construction site and removed at or before the completion of the 
infrastructure project. Nor does a Buy America preference apply to equipment and furnishings, such as movable 
chairs, desks, and portable computer equipment, that are used at or within the finished infrastructure project but 
are not an integral part of the structure or permanently affixed to the infrastructure project. 

25. Scrutinized Companies. 
a. Grantee certifies that it is not on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or engaged in a boycott of 

Israel.  Pursuant to Section 287.135, F.S., the Department may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole 
option if the Grantee is found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Grantee is placed on the Scrutinized 
Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term of the Agreement.   

b. If this Agreement is for more than one million dollars, the Grantee certifies that it is also not on the  Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in Sudan, Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector 
List, or engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, F.S. Pursuant to 
Section 287.135, F.S., the Department may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the Grantee 
is found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Grantee is placed on the Scrutinized Companies with 
Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or 
engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of the Agreement. 

c. As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), F.S., if federal law ceases to authorize these contracting prohibitions then 
they shall become inoperative. 

26. Lobbying and Integrity. 
The Grantee agrees that no funds received by it under this Agreement will be expended for the purpose of lobbying 
the Legislature or a State agency pursuant to Section 216.347, F.S., except that pursuant to the requirements of Section 
287.058(6), F.S., during the term of any executed agreement between Grantee and the State, Grantee may lobby the 
executive or legislative branch concerning the scope of services, performance, term, or compensation regarding that 
agreement. The Grantee shall comply with Sections 11.062 and 216.347, F.S. 
27. Record Keeping. 



Attachment 1 
10 of 12 

Rev. 10/3/2022 

The Grantee shall maintain books, records and documents directly pertinent to performance under this Agreement in 
accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP) consistently applied.  The 
Department, the State, or their authorized representatives shall have access to such records for audit purposes during 
the term of this Agreement and for five (5) years following the completion date or termination of the Agreement.  In 
the event that any work is subcontracted, Grantee shall similarly require each subcontractor to maintain and allow 
access to such records for audit purposes.  Upon request of Department’s Inspector General, or other authorized 
State official, Grantee shall provide any type of information the Inspector General deems relevant to Grantee’s 
integrity or responsibility. Such information may include, but shall not be limited to, Grantee’s business or financial 
records, documents, or files of any type or form that refer to or relate to Agreement. The Grantee shall retain such 
records for the longer of: (1) three years after the expiration of the Agreement; or (2) the period required by the 
General Records Schedules maintained by the Florida Department of State (available at: 
http://dos.myflorida.com/library-archives/records-management/general-records-schedules/). 
28. Audits. 
a. Inspector General.  The Grantee understands its duty, pursuant to Section 20.055(5), F.S., to cooperate with the 

inspector general in any investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing. The Grantee will comply with this 
duty and ensure that its sub-grantees and/or subcontractors issued under this Agreement, if any, impose this 
requirement, in writing, on its sub-grantees and/or subcontractors, respectively.  

b. Physical Access and Inspection.  Department personnel shall be given access to and may observe and inspect 
work being performed under this Agreement, with reasonable notice and during normal business hours, including 
by any of the following methods: 

i. Grantee shall provide access to any location or facility on which Grantee is performing work, or 
storing or staging equipment, materials or documents; 

ii. Grantee shall permit inspection of any facility, equipment, practices, or operations required in 
performance of any work pursuant to this Agreement; and, 

iii. Grantee shall allow and facilitate sampling and monitoring of any substances, soils, materials or 
parameters at any location reasonable or necessary to assure compliance with any work or legal 
requirements pursuant to this Agreement. 

c. Special Audit Requirements.  The Grantee shall comply with the applicable provisions contained in Attachment 
5, Special Audit Requirements.  Each amendment that authorizes a funding increase or decrease shall include an 
updated copy of Exhibit 1, to Attachment 5.  If Department fails to provide an updated copy of Exhibit 1 to include 
in each amendment that authorizes a funding increase or decrease, Grantee shall request one from the 
Department’s Grants Manager.  The Grantee shall consider the type of financial assistance (federal and/or state) 
identified in Attachment 5, Exhibit 1 and determine whether the terms of Federal and/or Florida Single Audit Act 
Requirements may further apply to lower tier transactions that may be a result of this Agreement. For federal 
financial assistance, Grantee shall utilize the guidance provided under 2 CFR §200.331 for determining whether 
the relationship represents that of a subrecipient or vendor. For State financial assistance, Grantee shall utilize the 
form entitled “Checklist for Nonstate Organizations Recipient/Subrecipient vs Vendor Determination” (form 
number DFS-A2-NS) that can be found under the “Links/Forms” section appearing at the following website: 
https:\\apps.fldfs.com\fsaa. 

d. Proof of Transactions.  In addition to documentation provided to support cost reimbursement as described herein, 
Department may periodically request additional proof of a transaction to evaluate the appropriateness of costs to 
the Agreement pursuant to State guidelines (including cost allocation guidelines) and federal, if applicable. 
Allowable costs and uniform administrative requirements for federal programs can be found under 2 CFR 
200.  The Department may also request a cost allocation plan in support of its multipliers (overhead, indirect, 
general administrative costs, and fringe benefits). The Grantee must provide the additional proof within thirty 
(30) days of such request.  

e. No Commingling of Funds. The accounting systems for all Grantees must ensure that these funds are not 
commingled with funds from other agencies.  Funds from each agency must be accounted for separately.  Grantees 
are prohibited from commingling funds on either a program-by-program or a project-by-project basis. Funds 
specifically budgeted and/or received for one project may not be used to support another project. Where a 
Grantee's, or subrecipient's, accounting system cannot comply with this requirement, Grantee, or subrecipient, 
shall establish a system to provide adequate fund accountability for each project it has been awarded. 

i. If Department finds that these funds have been commingled, Department shall have the right to 
demand a refund, either in whole or in part, of the funds provided to Grantee under this Agreement 
for non-compliance with the material terms of this Agreement.  The Grantee, upon such written 
notification from Department shall refund, and shall forthwith pay to Department, the amount of 

http://dos.myflorida.com/library-archives/records-management/general-records-schedules/
https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa


Attachment 1 
11 of 12 

Rev. 10/3/2022 

money demanded by Department.  Interest on any refund shall be calculated based on the prevailing 
rate used by the State Board of Administration.  Interest shall be calculated from the date(s) the 
original payment(s) are received from Department by Grantee to the date repayment is made by 
Grantee to Department. 

ii. In the event that the Grantee recovers costs, incurred under this Agreement and reimbursed by 
Department, from another source(s), Grantee shall reimburse Department for all recovered funds 
originally provided under this Agreement and interest shall be charged for those recovered costs as 
calculated on from the date(s) the payment(s) are recovered by Grantee to the date repayment is 
made to Department. 

iii. Notwithstanding the requirements of this section, the above restrictions on commingling funds do 
not apply to agreements where payments are made purely on a cost reimbursement basis. 

29. Conflict of Interest. 
The Grantee covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest which would conflict in any 
manner or degree with the performance of services required. 
30. Independent Contractor.  
The Grantee is an independent contractor and is not an employee or agent of Department. 
31. Subcontracting.  
a. Unless otherwise specified in the Special Terms and Conditions, all services contracted for are to be performed 

solely by Grantee. 
b. The Department may, for cause, require the replacement of any Grantee employee, subcontractor, or agent.  For 

cause, includes, but is not limited to, technical or training qualifications, quality of work, change in security status, 
or non-compliance with an applicable Department policy or other requirement.    

c. The Department may, for cause, deny access to Department’s secure information or any facility by any Grantee 
employee, subcontractor, or agent.   

d. The Department’s actions under paragraphs b. or c. shall not relieve Grantee of its obligation to perform all work 
in compliance with the Agreement. The Grantee shall be responsible for the payment of all monies due under any 
subcontract. The Department shall not be liable to any subcontractor for any expenses or liabilities incurred under 
any subcontract and Grantee shall be solely liable to the subcontractor for all expenses and liabilities incurred 
under any subcontract.     

e. The Department will not deny Grantee’s employees, subcontractors, or agents access to meetings within the 
Department’s facilities, unless the basis of Department’s denial is safety or security considerations. 

f. The Department supports diversity in its procurement program and requests that all subcontracting opportunities 
afforded by this Agreement embrace diversity enthusiastically.  The award of subcontracts should reflect the full 
diversity of the citizens of the State.  A list of minority-owned firms that could be offered subcontracting 
opportunities may be obtained by contacting the Office of Supplier Diversity at (850) 487-0915. 

g. The Grantee shall not be liable for any excess costs for a failure to perform, if the failure to perform is caused by 
the default of a subcontractor at any tier, and if the cause of the default is completely beyond the control of both 
Grantee and the subcontractor(s), and without the fault or negligence of either, unless the subcontracted products 
or services were obtainable from other sources in sufficient time for Grantee to meet the required delivery 
schedule.   

32. Guarantee of Parent Company.   
If Grantee is a subsidiary of another corporation or other business entity, Grantee asserts that its parent company will 
guarantee all of the obligations of Grantee for purposes of fulfilling the obligations of Agreement.  In the event Grantee 
is sold during the period the Agreement is in effect, Grantee agrees that it will be a requirement of sale that the new 
parent company guarantee all of the obligations of Grantee.  
33. Survival. 
The respective obligations of the parties, which by their nature would continue beyond the termination or expiration 
of this Agreement, including without limitation, the obligations regarding confidentiality, proprietary interests, and 
public records, shall survive termination, cancellation, or expiration of this Agreement. 
34. Third Parties.  
The Department shall not be deemed to assume any liability for the acts, failures to act or negligence of Grantee, its 
agents, servants, and employees, nor shall Grantee disclaim its own negligence to Department or any third party.  This 
Agreement does not and is not intended to confer any rights or remedies upon any person other than the parties. If 
Department consents to a subcontract, Grantee will specifically disclose that this Agreement does not create any third-
party rights. Further, no third parties shall rely upon any of the rights and obligations created under this Agreement.   
35. Severability. 



Attachment 1 
12 of 12 

Rev. 10/3/2022 

If a court of competent jurisdiction deems any term or condition herein void or unenforceable, the other provisions 
are severable to that void provision, and shall remain in full force and effect. 
36. Grantee’s Employees, Subcontractors and Agents. 
All Grantee employees, subcontractors, or agents performing work under the Agreement shall be properly trained 
technicians who meet or exceed any specified training qualifications. Upon request, Grantee shall furnish a copy of 
technical certification or other proof of qualification. All employees, subcontractors, or agents performing work under 
Agreement must comply with all security and administrative requirements of Department and shall comply with all 
controlling laws and regulations relevant to the services they are providing under the Agreement.  
37. Assignment. 
The Grantee shall not sell, assign, or transfer any of its rights, duties, or obligations under the Agreement, or under 
any purchase order issued pursuant to the Agreement, without the prior written consent of Department. In the event 
of any assignment, Grantee remains secondarily liable for performance of the Agreement, unless Department expressly 
waives such secondary liability. The Department may assign the Agreement with prior written notice to Grantee of its 
intent to do so. 
38. Compensation Report. 
If this Agreement is a sole-source, public-private agreement or if the Grantee, through this agreement with the State, 
annually receive 50% or more of their budget from the State or from a combination of State and Federal funds, the 
Grantee shall provide an annual report, including the most recent IRS Form 990, detailing the total compensation for 
the entities' executive leadership teams. Total compensation shall include salary, bonuses, cashed-in leave, cash 
equivalents, severance pay, retirement benefits, deferred compensation, real-property gifts, and any other payout. 
The Grantee must also inform the Department of any changes in total executive compensation between the annual 
reports. All compensation reports must indicate what percent of compensation comes directly from the State or 
Federal allocations to the Grantee. 
39. Execution in Counterparts and Authority to Sign.  
This Agreement, any amendments, and/or change orders related to the Agreement, may be executed in counterparts, 
each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute the same instrument.  In accordance with the 
Electronic Signature Act of 1996, electronic signatures, including facsimile transmissions, may be used and shall have 
the same force and effect as a written signature.  Each person signing this Agreement warrants that he or she is duly 
authorized to do so and to bind the respective party to the Agreement.  



Attachment 2 
1 of 3 

Rev. 10/6/2022 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

Special Terms and Conditions 
AGREEMENT NO. LPA0336 

 
ATTACHMENT 2 

 
These Special Terms and Conditions shall be read together with general terms outlined in the Standard Terms and 
Conditions, Attachment 1. Where in conflict, these more specific terms shall apply.  
 
1. Scope of Work.  
The Project funded under this Agreement is Miami Springs Hook Square Pump House Replacement. The Project is 
defined in more detail in Attachment 3, Grant Work Plan.  
 
2. Duration. 
a. Reimbursement Period. The reimbursement period for this Agreement begins on July 1, 2022 and ends at the 

expiration of the Agreement. 
b. Extensions. There are extensions available for this Project. 
c. Service Periods. Additional service periods are not authorized under this Agreement. 
 
3. Payment Provisions. 
a. Compensation. This is a cost reimbursement Agreement. The Grantee shall be compensated under this 

Agreement as described in Attachment 3. 
b. Invoicing. Invoicing will occur as indicated in Attachment 3. 
c. Advance Pay. Advance Pay is not authorized under this Agreement. 
 
4. Cost Eligible for Reimbursement or Matching Requirements.  
Reimbursement for costs or availability for costs to meet matching requirements shall be limited to the following 
budget categories, as defined in the Reference Guide for State Expenditures, as indicated: 
 

Reimbursement Match Category 
☐ ☐ Salaries/Wages 

  Overhead/Indirect/General and Administrative Costs: 
☐ ☐ a. Fringe Benefits, N/A. 
☐ ☐ b. Indirect Costs, N/A.  
☒ ☐ Contractual (Subcontractors) 
☐ ☐ Travel, in accordance with Section 112, F.S. 
☐ ☐ Equipment 
☐ ☐ Rental/Lease of Equipment   
☐ ☐ Miscellaneous/Other Expenses 
☐ ☐ Land Acquisition 

 
 
5. Equipment Purchase. 
No Equipment purchases shall be funded under this Agreement. 
 
6. Land Acquisition. 
There will be no Land Acquisitions funded under this Agreement. 
 
7. Match Requirements 
There is no match required on the part of the Grantee under this Agreement. 
 
8. Insurance Requirements 



Attachment 2 
2 of 3 

Rev. 10/6/2022 

Required Coverage.  At all times during the Agreement the Grantee, at its sole expense, shall maintain insurance 
coverage of such types and with such terms and limits described below.  The limits of coverage under each policy 
maintained by the Grantee shall not be interpreted as limiting the Grantee’s liability and obligations under the 
Agreement.  All insurance policies shall be through insurers licensed and authorized to issue policies in Florida, or 
alternatively, Grantee may provide coverage through a self-insurance program established and operating under the 
laws of Florida. Additional insurance requirements for this Agreement may be required elsewhere in this 
Agreement, however the minimum insurance requirements applicable to this Agreement are: 

a. Commercial General Liability Insurance. 
The Grantee shall provide adequate commercial general liability insurance coverage and hold such liability 
insurance at all times during the Agreement.  The Department, its employees, and officers shall be named 
as an additional insured on any general liability policies.  The minimum limits shall be $250,000 for each 
occurrence and $500,000 policy aggregate. 

b. Commercial Automobile Insurance. 
If the Grantee’s duties include the use of a commercial vehicle, the Grantee shall maintain automobile 
liability, bodily injury, and property damage coverage.  Insuring clauses for both bodily injury and property 
damage shall provide coverage on an occurrence basis. The Department, its employees, and officers shall 
be named as an additional insured on any automobile insurance policy.  The minimum limits shall be as 
follows: 

$200,000/300,000 Automobile Liability for Company-Owned Vehicles, if applicable 
$200,000/300,000 Hired and Non-owned Automobile Liability Coverage 

c. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Coverage. 
The Grantee shall provide workers’ compensation, in accordance with Chapter 440, F.S. and employer 
liability coverage with minimum limits of $100,000 per accident, $100,000 per person, and $500,000 
policy aggregate.  Such policies shall cover all employees engaged in any work under the Grant. 

d. Other Insurance. None. 
 
9. Quality Assurance Requirements.  
There are no special Quality Assurance requirements under this Agreement. 
 
10. Retainage. 
Retainage is permitted under this Agreement.  Retainage may be up to a maximum of 10% of the total amount of the 
Agreement. 
 
11. Subcontracting.  
The Grantee may subcontract work under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Department’s 
Grant Manager except for certain fixed-price subcontracts pursuant to this Agreement, which require prior approval. 
The Grantee shall submit a copy of the executed subcontract to the Department prior to submitting any invoices for 
subcontracted work.  Regardless of any subcontract, the Grantee is ultimately responsible for all work to be 
performed under this Agreement. 
 
12. State-owned Land. 
The work will not be performed on State-owned land. 
 
13. Office of Policy and Budget Reporting. 
 The Grantee will identify the expected return on investment for this project and provide this information to the 
Governor’s Office of Policy and Budget (OPB) within three months of execution of this Agreement. For each full 
calendar quarter thereafter, the Grantee will provide quarterly update reports directly to OPB, no later than 20 days 
after the end of each quarter, documenting the positive return on investment to the state that results from the 
Grantee’s project and its use of funds provided under this Agreement. Quarterly reports will continue until the 
Grantee is instructed by OPB that no further reports are needed, or until the end of this Agreement, whichever 
occurs first. All reports shall be submitted electronically to OPB at env.roi@laspbs.state.fl.us, and a copy shall also 
be submitted to the Department at legislativeaffairs@floridaDEP.gov. 

 
14. Common Carrier.  

a. Applicable to contracts with a common carrier – firm/person/corporation that as a regular business 
transports people or commodities from place to place.  If applicable, Contractor must also fill out and 

mailto:env.roi@laspbs.state.fl.us
mailto:legislativeaffairs@floridaDEP.gov


Attachment 2 
3 of 3 

Rev. 10/6/2022 

return PUR 1808 before contract execution] If Contractor is a common carrier pursuant to section 
908.111(1)(a), Florida Statutes, the Department will terminate this contract immediately if Contractor is 
found to be in violation of the law or the attestation in PUR 1808. 

 
b. Applicable to solicitations for a common carrier – Before contract execution, the winning Contractor(s) 

must fill out and return PUR 1808, and attest that it is not willfully providing any service in furtherance of 
transporting a person into this state knowing that the person unlawfully present in the United States 
according to the terms of the federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C. ss. 1101 et seq.  The 
Department will terminate a contract immediately if Contractor is found to be in violation of the law or the 
attestation in PUR 1808 
 

 
 

15. Additional Terms. 
None. 

 

Any terms added here must be approved by the Office of General Counsel.   



 

DEP Agreement No. LPA0336, Attachment 3, Page 1 of 3 

ATTACHMENT 3 
GRANT WORK PLAN 

 
PROJECT TITLE: Hook Square Pump House Replacement 
 
PROJECT LOCATION: The Project will be located in the City of Miami Springs within Miami-Dade 
County; Lat/Long (25.8202, -80.2808). See Figure 1 for location map.  
 
PROJECT BACKGROUND: The City of Miami Springs (Grantee) has determined that the Hook Square 
pump station has deteriorated to the point that it is no longer meeting the needs of the community. The 
pump station and related appurtenances needs to be replaced to protect water quality, minimize flood risks, 
provide bank stabilization, and protect local manatee populations.  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The Grantee will replace a 35 HP pump station along the C-6 canal. The 
replacement includes the installation of new 50 HP axial flow pump, portable generator, electric controls, 
refurbishing of bar screens as needed, pump discharge and bypass piping, as well as restoration of existing 
buildings and headwalls including an outflow with flap-gate and rip rap bank stabilization. The total project 
cost is estimated at $750,000 for the pump station and related appurtenances. 
 
TASKS: All documentation should be submitted electronically unless otherwise indicated. 
 
Task 1: Preconstruction Activities 
 
Deliverables: The Grantee will complete a topographical and bathymetric survey, geotechnical report and 
existing conditions report to produce a pre-design report. The Grantee will complete the design and 
calculations for the replacement of the existing pump, structural, mechanical and electrical plans, and bank 
stabilization and obtain all necessary permits for construction of the project. 
 
Documentation: The Grantee will submit: 1) a signed acceptance of the completed work to date, as 
provided in the Grantee’s Certification of Payment Request; 2) a copy of the pre-design report; and 3) a 
summary of preconstruction activities to date, indicating the percentage of design completion for the time 
period covered in the payment request. For the final documentation, the Grantee will also submit a copy of 
the design completed with the funding provided for this task and a list of all required permits identifying 
issue dates and issuing authorities.  
 
Performance Standard: The Department’s Grant Manager will review the documentation to verify that 
the deliverables have been completed as described above. Upon review and written acceptance by the 
Department’s Grant Manager, the Grantee may proceed with payment request submittal. 
 
Payment Request Schedule: The Grantee may submit a payment request for cost reimbursement no more 
frequently than monthly.  
 
Task 2: Bidding and Contractor Selection 
 
Deliverables: The Grantee will prepare a bid package, publish a public notice, solicit bids, conduct pre-bid 
meetings, and respond to bid questions in accordance with the Grantee’s procurement process, to select one 
or more qualified and licensed contractors to complete construction of the pump station and outflow 
improvements.  
 
Documentation: The Grantee will submit: 1) the public notice of advertisement for the bid; 2) the bid 
package; and 3) a written notice of selected contractor(s). 



 

DEP Agreement No. LPA0336, Attachment 3, Page 2 of 3 

 
Performance Standard: The Department’s Grant Manager will review the documentation to verify that 
the deliverables have been completed as described above. Upon review and written acceptance by the 
Department’s Grant Manager, the Grantee may proceed with payment request submittal. 
 
Payment Request Schedule: The Grantee may submit a payment request for cost reimbursement following 
the conclusion of the task. 
 
Task 3: Project Management 
 
Deliverables: The Grantee will perform project management, to include field engineering services, 
construction observation, site meetings with construction contractor(s) and design professionals, and 
overall project coordination and supervision. 
 
Documentation: The Grantee will submit interim progress status summaries including summary of 
inspection(s), meeting minutes and field notes, as applicable.  
 
Performance Standard: The Department’s Grant Manager will review the documentation to verify that 
the deliverables have been completed as described above. Upon review and written acceptance by the 
Department’s Grant Manager, the Grantee may proceed with payment request submittal.  
 
Payment Request Schedule: The Grantee may submit a payment request for cost reimbursement no more 
frequently than monthly.  
 
Task 4: Construction 
 
Deliverables: The Grantee will construct improvements to the pump house and related appurtenances in 
accordance with the construction contract documents. 
 
Documentation: The Grantee will submit 1) a copy of the final design; 2) a signed acceptance of the 
completed work to date, as provided in the Grantee’s Certification of Payment Request; and 3) a signed 
Engineer’s Certification of Payment Request.  
 
Performance Standard: The Department’s Grant Manager will review the documentation to verify that 
the deliverables have been completed as described above. Upon review and written acceptance by the 
Department’s Grant Manager, the Grantee may proceed with payment request submittal.  
 
Payment Request Schedule: The Grantee may submit a payment request for cost reimbursement no more 
frequently than monthly.  
 
 
  



 

DEP Agreement No. LPA0336, Attachment 3, Page 3 of 3 

PROJECT TIMELINE & BUDGET DETAIL:  
 
The tasks must be completed by, and all documentation received by, the corresponding task end date. Cost 
reimbursable grant funding must not exceed the budget amounts as indicated below.    
 

Task 
No. Task Title Budget Category Grant 

Amount 
Task Start 

Date 
Task End 

Date 
1 Preconstruction Activities Contractual Services $200,000 07/01/2022 07/31/2023 

2 Bidding and Contractor 
Selection Contractual Services $30,000 07/01/2022 07/31/2023 

3 Project Management Contractual Services $20,000 07/01/2022 07/31/2023 

4 Construction Contractual Services $500,000 07/01/2022 07/31/2023 

Total: $750,000 
 
Figure 1: Location map 

 



 
Attachment 4 

1 of 1 
Rev. 4/27/2018 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

Public Records Requirements 

Attachment 4 

1. Public Records. 
a. If the Agreement exceeds $35,000.00, and if Grantee is acting on behalf of Department in its performance of services 

under the Agreement, Grantee must allow public access to all documents, papers, letters, or other material, regardless 
of the physical form, characteristics, or means of transmission, made or received by Grantee in conjunction with the 
Agreement (Public Records), unless the Public Records are exempt from section 24(a) of Article I of the Florida 
Constitution or section 119.07(1), F.S. 

b. The Department may unilaterally terminate the Agreement if Grantee refuses to allow public access to Public Records 
as required by law.  

2. Additional Public Records Duties of Section 119.0701, F.S., If Applicable.  
For the purposes of this paragraph, the term “contract” means the “Agreement.”  If Grantee is a “contractor” as 
defined in section 119.0701(1)(a), F.S., the following provisions apply and the contractor shall: 

a. Keep and maintain Public Records required by Department to perform the service. 
b. Upon request, provide Department with a copy of requested Public Records or allow the Public Records to be 

inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, F.S., or 
as otherwise provided by law.  

c. A contractor who fails to provide the Public Records to Department within a reasonable time may be subject to 
penalties under section 119.10, F.S.  

d. Ensure that Public Records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from Public Records disclosure requirements 
are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following completion of the 
contract if the contractor does not transfer the Public Records to Department. 

e. Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to Department all Public Records in possession of the contractor 
or keep and maintain Public Records required by Department to perform the service. If the contractor transfers all 
Public Records to Department upon completion of the contract, the contractor shall destroy any duplicate Public 
Records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from Public Records disclosure requirements.  If the contractor 
keeps and maintains Public Records upon completion of the contract, the contractor shall meet all applicable 
requirements for retaining Public Records. All Public Records stored electronically must be provided to Department, 
upon request from Department’s custodian of Public Records, in a format specified by Department as compatible with 
the information technology systems of Department. These formatting requirements are satisfied by using the data 
formats as authorized in the contract or Microsoft Word, Outlook, Adobe, or Excel, and any software formats the 
contractor is authorized to access.   

f. IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF 
CHAPTER 119, F.S., TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 
RECORDS RELATING TO THE CONTRACT, CONTACT THE DEPARTMENT’S 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT: 

Telephone:  (850) 245-2118 
Email:  public.services@floridadep.gov 
Mailing Address: Department of Environmental Protection 

ATTN: Office of Ombudsman and Public Services 
Public Records Request 
3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, MS 49 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 

mailto:public.services@floridadep.gov


 
Attachment 5 

1 of 6 
BGS-DEP 55-215  revised 12/14/2020 

STATE OF FLORIDA  
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

Special Audit Requirements 
(State and Federal Financial Assistance) 

 
Attachment 5 

 
The administration of resources awarded by the Department of Environmental Protection (which may be referred to 
as the "Department", "DEP", "FDEP" or "Grantor", or other name in the agreement) to the recipient (which may be 
referred to as the "Recipient", "Grantee" or other name in the agreement) may be subject to audits and/or monitoring 
by the Department of Environmental Protection, as described in this attachment. 
 
MONITORING 
 
In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F-Audit Requirements, and 
Section 215.97, F.S., as revised (see “AUDITS” below), monitoring procedures may include, but not be limited to, 
on-site visits by DEP Department staff, limited scope audits as defined by 2 CFR 200.425, or other procedures. By 
entering into this Agreement, the recipient agrees to comply and cooperate with any monitoring procedures/processes 
deemed appropriate by the Department of Environmental Protection.  In the event the Department of Environmental 
Protection determines that a limited scope audit of the recipient is appropriate, the recipient agrees to comply with any 
additional instructions provided by the Department to the recipient regarding such audit. The recipient further agrees 
to comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews, investigations, or audits deemed necessary by the Chief 
Financial Officer (CFO) or Auditor General. 
 
AUDITS 
 
PART I: FEDERALLY FUNDED 
 
This part is applicable if the recipient is a State or local government or a non-profit organization as defined in 2 CFR 
§200.330 
 
1. A recipient that expends $750,000 or more in Federal awards in its fiscal year, must have a single or program-

specific audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F. EXHIBIT 1 to this 
Attachment indicates Federal funds awarded through the Department of Environmental Protection by this 
Agreement. In determining the federal awards expended in its fiscal year, the recipient shall consider all 
sources of federal awards, including federal resources received from the Department of Environmental 
Protection.  The determination of amounts of federal awards expended should be in accordance with the 
guidelines established in 2 CFR 200.502-503. An audit of the recipient conducted by the Auditor General in 
accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200.514 will meet the requirements of this part. 

 
2. For the audit requirements addressed in Part I, paragraph 1, the recipient shall fulfill the requirements relative 

to auditee responsibilities as provided in 2 CFR 200.508-512. 
 
3. A recipient that expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its fiscal year is not required to have an audit 

conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F-Audit Requirements. If the 
recipient expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted 
in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, Subpart F-Audit Requirements, the cost of the audit must 
be paid from non-federal resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be paid from recipient resources 
obtained from other federal entities. 

 
4. The recipient may access information regarding the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) via the 

internet at www.cfda.gov     
 
 
 



 
Attachment 5 

2 of 6 
BGS-DEP 55-215  revised 12/14/2020 

PART II: STATE FUNDED 
 
This part is applicable if the recipient is a nonstate entity as defined by Section 215.97(2), Florida Statutes. 
 
1. In the event that the recipient expends a total amount of state financial assistance equal to or in excess of 

$750,000 in any fiscal year of such recipient (for fiscal years ending June 30, 2017, and thereafter), the 
recipient must have a State single or project-specific audit for such fiscal year in accordance with Section 
215.97, F.S.; Rule Chapter 69I-5, F.A.C., State Financial Assistance; and Chapters 10.550 (local 
governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General.  
EXHIBIT 1 to this form lists the state financial assistance awarded through the Department of Environmental 
Protection by this agreement.  In determining the state financial assistance expended in its fiscal year, the 
recipient shall consider all sources of state financial assistance, including state financial assistance received 
from the Department of Environmental Protection, other state agencies, and other nonstate entities.  State 
financial assistance does not include federal direct or pass-through awards and resources received by a 
nonstate entity for Federal program matching requirements. 

 
2. In connection with the audit requirements addressed in Part II, paragraph 1; the recipient shall ensure that the 

audit complies with the requirements of Section 215.97(8), Florida Statutes. This includes submission of a 
financial reporting package as defined by Section 215.97(2), Florida Statutes, and Chapters 10.550 (local 
governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General. 

 
3. If the recipient expends less than $750,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year (for fiscal year ending 

June 30, 2017, and thereafter), an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 215.97, 
Florida Statutes, is not required.  In the event that the recipient expends less than $750,000 in state financial 
assistance in its fiscal year, and elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 
215.97, Florida Statutes, the cost of the audit must be paid from the non-state entity’s resources (i.e., the cost 
of such an audit must be paid from the recipient’s resources obtained from other than State entities). 

 
4. For information regarding the Florida Catalog of State Financial Assistance (CSFA), a recipient should access 

the Florida Single Audit Act website located at https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa for assistance.   In addition to the 
above websites, the following websites may be accessed for information:  Legislature's Website at 
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Welcome/index.cfm, State of Florida’s website at http://www.myflorida.com/, 
Department of Financial Services’ Website at http://www.fldfs.com/and the Auditor General's Website at 
http://www.myflorida.com/audgen/.   

 
 
PART III: OTHER AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 
 
(NOTE: This part would be used to specify any additional audit requirements imposed by the State awarding entity 
that are solely a matter of that State awarding entity’s policy (i.e., the audit is not required by Federal or State laws 
and is not in conflict with other Federal or State audit requirements).  Pursuant to Section 215.97(8), Florida Statutes, 
State agencies may conduct or arrange for audits of State financial assistance that are in addition to audits conducted 
in accordance with Section 215.97, Florida Statutes.  In such an event, the State awarding agency must arrange for 
funding the full cost of such additional audits.) 
 
PART IV: REPORT SUBMISSION 
 
1. Copies of reporting packages for audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F-Audit 

Requirements, and required by PART I of this form shall be submitted, when required by 2 CFR 200.512, by 
or on behalf of the recipient directly to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) as provided in 2 CFR 200.36 
and 200.512  

 
A. The Federal Audit Clearinghouse designated in 2 CFR §200.501(a) (the number of copies required by  

2 CFR §200.501(a) should be submitted to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse), at the following address: 
 

https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Welcome/index.cfm
http://www.myflorida.com/
http://www.fldfs.com/
http://www.myflorida.com/audgen


 
Attachment 5 

3 of 6 
BGS-DEP 55-215  revised 12/14/2020 

 
 By Mail: 

Federal Audit Clearinghouse 
Bureau of the Census 
1201 East 10th Street 
Jeffersonville, IN  47132 

 
 Submissions of the Single Audit reporting package for fiscal periods ending on or after January 1, 

2008, must be submitted using the Federal Clearinghouse’s Internet Data Entry System which can 
be found at http://harvester.census.gov/facweb/ 

 
2. Copies of financial reporting packages required by PART II of this Attachment shall be submitted by or on 

behalf of the recipient directly to each of the following: 
 

A. The Department of Environmental Protection at one of the following addresses: 
 

By Mail: 
Audit Director 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
Office of Inspector General, MS 40 
3900 Commonwealth Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida  32399-3000 

      
Electronically: 
FDEPSingleAudit@dep.state.fl.us   

 
B. The Auditor General’s Office at the following address: 

 
Auditor General  
Local Government Audits/342 
Claude Pepper Building, Room 401 
111 West Madison Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450 
 
The Auditor General’s website (http://flauditor.gov/) provides instructions for filing an 
electronic copy of a financial reporting package. 

 
3. Copies of reports or management letters required by PART III of this Attachment shall be submitted by or 

on behalf of the recipient directly to the Department of Environmental Protection at one of the following 
addresses: 

By Mail: 
Audit Director 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
Office of Inspector General, MS 40 
3900 Commonwealth Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida  32399-3000 

      
Electronically: 
FDEPSingleAudit@dep.state.fl.us   

 
4. Any reports, management letters, or other information required to be submitted to the Department of 

Environmental Protection pursuant to this Agreement shall be submitted timely in accordance with 2 CFR 
200.512, section 215.97, F.S., and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and 
for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, as applicable. 

 

http://harvester.census.gov/facweb/
mailto:FDEPSingleAudit@dep.state.fl.us
http://flauditor.gov/
mailto:FDEPSingleAudit@dep.state.fl.us


 
Attachment 5 

4 of 6 
BGS-DEP 55-215  revised 12/14/2020 

5. Recipients, when submitting financial reporting packages to the Department of Environmental Protection for 
audits done in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F-Audit Requirements, or Chapters 10.550 (local 
governmental entities) and 10.650 (non and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, should 
indicate the date and the reporting package was delivered to the recipient correspondence accompanying the 
reporting package.  

 
 
PART V: RECORD RETENTION 
 
The recipient shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of the award and this 
Agreement for a period of five (5) years from the date the audit report is issued, and shall allow the Department of 
Environmental Protection, or its designee, Chief Financial Officer, or Auditor General access to such records upon 
request. The recipient shall ensure that audit working papers are made available to the Department of Environmental 
Protection, or its designee, Chief Financial Officer, or Auditor General upon request for a period of three (3) years 
from the date the audit report is issued, unless extended in writing by the Department of Environmental Protection. 
 

 
 



Attachment 5, Exhibit 1 
5 of 6 

BGS-DEP 55-215 
Revised 7/2019 

EXHIBIT – 1 
 
 
FUNDS AWARDED TO THE RECIPIENT PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING: 
 
 
 
Note: If the resources awarded to the recipient represent more than one federal program, provide the same information shown below for each federal program 
and show total federal resources awarded 

Federal Resources Awarded to the Recipient Pursuant to this Agreement Consist of the Following: 
Federal 

Program 
A 

 
 

Federal Agency 

 
CFDA 

Number 

 
 

CFDA Title 

 
 

Funding Amount 

State 
Appropriation 

Category 
    $  
      
      

Federal 
Program 

B 

 
 

Federal Agency 

 
CFDA 

Number 

 
 

CFDA Title 

 
 

Funding Amount 

State 
Appropriation 

Category 
    $  
      
      

 
 
Note: Of the resources awarded to the recipient represent more than one federal program, list applicable compliance requirements for each federal program in 
the same manner as shown below: 

Federal 
Program 

A 

 
First Compliance requirement: i.e.: (what services of purposes resources must be used for) 
 

 

 Second Compliance requirement: i.e.:(eligibility requirement for recipients of the resources)  
 Etc.  
 Etc.  

Federal 
Program 

         B 

 
First Compliance requirement: i.e.: (what services of purposes resources must be used for) 

 
 

 Second Compliance requirement: i.e.: (eligibility requirement for recipients of the resources)  
 Etc.  
 Etc.  

 
 



Attachment 5, Exhibit 1 
6 of 6 

BGS-DEP 55-215 
Revised 7/2019 

Note: If the resources awarded to the recipient for matching represent more than one federal program, provide the same information shown below for each 
federal program and show total state resources awarded for matching. 

State Resources Awarded to the Recipient Pursuant to this Agreement Consist of the Following Matching Resources for Federal Programs: 
Federal 

Program  
A 

 
 

Federal Agency 

 
 

CFDA 

 
 

CFDA Title 

 
 

Funding Amount 

State 
Appropriation 

Category 
      
      

Federal 
Program  

B 

 
 

Federal Agency 

 
 

CFDA 

 
 

CFDA Title 

 
 

Funding Amount 

State 
Appropriation 

Category 
      
      

 
Note: If the resources awarded to the recipient represent more than one state project, provide the same information shown below for each state project and show 
total state financial assistance awarded that is subject to section 215.97, F.S. 

State Resources Awarded to the Recipient Pursuant to this Agreement Consist of the Following Resources Subject to Section 215.97, F.S.: 
State 

Program 
A 

 
 

State Awarding Agency  

 
State 

Fiscal Year1 

 
CSFA 

Number 

CSFA Title 
or 

Funding Source Description 

 
 

Funding Amount 

State 
Appropriation 

Category 
Original 

Agreement 
Department of 

Environmental Protection FY2022-2023 37.039 Statewide Surface Restoration and 
Wastewater Projects $750,000 140047 

       
State 

Program 
B 

 
 

State Awarding Agency 

 
State 

Fiscal Year2 

 
CSFA 

Number 

CSFA Title 
or 

Funding Source Description 

 
 

Funding Amount 

State 
Appropriation 

Category 
       
       

 
Total Award $750,000  

Note: List applicable compliance requirement in the same manner as illustrated above for federal resources. For matching resources provided by the Department 
for DEP for federal programs, the requirements might be similar to the requirements for the applicable federal programs. Also, to the extent that different 
requirements pertain to different amount for the non-federal resources, there may be more than one grouping (i.e. 1, 2, 3, etc.) listed under this category. 
 
For each program identified above, the recipient shall comply with the program requirements described in the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) 
[www.cfda.gov] and/or the Florida Catalog of State Financial Assistance (CSFA) [https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCatalog.aspx], and State Projects Compliance 
Supplement (Part Four: State Projects Compliance Supplement [https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/state_project_compliance.aspx]. The services/purposes for which the 
funds are to be used are included in the Agreement’s Grant Work Plan.  Any match required by the Recipient is clearly indicated in the Agreement. 

 
1 Subject to change by Change Order. 
2 Subject to change by Change Order. 

https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCatalog.aspx
https://clicktime.symantec.com/3GfWgb5rmCjDizn22mxQhQo7Vc?u=https%3A%2F%2Fapps.fldfs.com%2Ffsaa%2Fstate_project_compliance.aspx


Exhibit A, Page 1 of 2 
Rev. 8/15/22 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

 
Exhibit A 

Progress Report Form 
 

DEP Agreement No.: LPA0336 
Project Title:  Miami Springs Hook Square Pump House Replacement 

Grantee Name: City of Miami Springs 
Grantee’s Grant Manager:  
 

Reporting Period: Select Quarter - Select Year 
 
Provide the following information for all tasks identified in the Grant Work Plan: 
Summarize the eligible grant [and required match, if applicable] work completed within each task for the 
reporting period, provide an update on the estimated completion date for each task, and identify any 
anticipated delays or problems encountered. Use the format provided below and use as many pages as 
necessary to cover all tasks. Each quarterly progress report is due no later than twenty (20) days following 
the completion of the quarterly reporting period. 
 
Task 1:  Preconstruction Activities 
 

 Progress for this reporting period:                                              
 

 Identify delays or problems encountered:                                              
 
Task 2:  Bidding and Contractor Selection 
  

 Progress for this reporting period:                                              
 

 Identify delays or problems encountered:                                              
 
Task 3:  Project Management 
 

 Progress for this reporting period:                                              
 

 Identify delays or problems encountered:                                              
 
Task 4:  Construction 
 

 Progress for this reporting period:                                              
 

 Identify delays or problems encountered:                                              
 
 



Exhibit A, Page 2 of 2 
Rev. 8/15/22 

% 

Completion Status for Tasks:  
Indicate the completion status for the following tasks, if included in the Grant Work Plan. For construction, 
the estimated completion percentage should represent the work being funded under this Agreement.  
 

Design (Plans/Submittal):  30% ☐, 60% ☐, 90% ☐, 100% ☐ 
 

Permitting (Completed):    Yes ☐, No ☐ 
 

Construction (Estimated):                           
  
 
 
This report is submitted in accordance with the reporting requirements of the above DEP Agreement number 
and accurately reflects the activities associated with the project. 
 

 

 

  

Signature of Grantee’s Grant Manager  Date 
      (Original Ink or Digital Timestamp) 



Exhibit C, Page 1 of 1 
Rev. 12/02/19 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

Exhibit C 
Payment Request Summary Form 

 
The Payment Request Summary Form for this grant can be found on our website at this link: 

https://floridadep.gov/wra/wra/documents/payment-request-summary-form 

Please use the most current form found on the website, linked above, for each payment request. 

 

https://floridadep.gov/wra/wra/documents/payment-request-summary-form


           

Meeting Date: 11/14/2022  

 

To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria P. Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 

Via:   William Alonso, City Manager/Fin. Director 

    

From:   Zuzell E. Murguido, Senior Procurement Officer  

    

Subject: Recommendation to Award contract to F&L Fire and Electrical System, Inc.  
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Recommendation by Professional Services that Council award City RFP # 01-

22/23 to F&L Fire and Electrical System, Inc., the lowest responsible bidder and authorize the execution 

of a contract, in the amount of $54.00/per hour for crew rates per attached Proposal Price sheet, for 

Citywide Miscellaneous Electrical Services as funds are to be budgeted in the FY22/23 Budget pursuant 

to Section §31.11 (E)(1) of the City Code. 

 

DISCUSSION: On October 11, 2022 the City advertised the Request for Proposal #01-22/23 for Citywide 

Miscellaneous Electrical Services of which 572 vendors were notified of the opportunity to bid. On 

October 13, 2022, contractors were required to attend a Mandatory Pre-Bid conference and only 14 

individuals were in attendance (Attachment “A”).  On November 1, 2022 the City received 3 bids 

(Attachment "B") all of which were considered responsive.  

 

F&L Fire and Electrical System, Inc., was considered the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. 

Contract will begin effective November 14, 2022 for a one-year term period, with the option to renew for 

four additional one-year term periods.   

 

Submission Date and Time:    11/9/2022 2:01 PM____  
 

Submitted by: 
 

 

Department:  Finance 

 

Prepared by:  Zuzell Murguido  

 

 

Attachments:       Yes          No 

 

 

Budgeted/ Funded:     Yes          No 

 Refer to above. 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 

 

Dept. Head:   

  

 

Procurement:                                   

                               

 

Asst. City Mgr.:   

 

 

City Manager:   

 

 

Funding: 
 

 

Dept./ Desc.:  PW Bldg./Contractual Services 

 

Account No.:       various 

 

Additional Funding:        

 

 

Amount previously approved:  $       0.00 

 

                       Current request:  $       $54.00/ hr. 

 

              Total vendor amount:  $       unknown 

 













































































































RESOLUTION NO. 2022-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, SELECTING F&L FIRE AND 

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM, INC. FOR CITYWIDE MISCELLANEOUS 

ELECTRICAL SERVICES PURSUANT TO REQUEST FOR 

PROPOSALS NO. 01-22/23; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; 

AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on October 11, 2022, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) issued 

Request for Proposals No. 01-22/23 (the “RFP”) for citywide miscellaneous electrical 

services on an as-needed basis (the “Services”); and 

WHEREAS, three sealed proposals were received by the RFP deadline; and  

WHEREAS, F&L Fire and Electrical System, Inc. (the “Contractor”) was the lowest, 

most responsive and responsible proposer; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the RFP competitive selection process and the 

recommendation of the City Manager, the City Council desires to select the Contractor to 

provide the Services and authorize the City Manager to enter an electrical services 

agreement with the Contractor in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the 

“Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Selection. That the City Council hereby selects the Contractor to 

provide the Services pursuant to the RFP. 

Section 3. Authorization. That the City Council hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to enter into the Agreement with the Contractor in substantially the form 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” subject to approval by the City Attorney as to form, content, 

and legal sufficiency.  

Section 4. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  



Res. No. 22-   
Page 2 of 2 

 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Dr. Victor Vazquez     
Councilman Bob Best       
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo     
Councilman Dr. Walter Fajet     
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of November, 2022. 

 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
      MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 

 

 



City of Miami Springs, FL  Page 1 of 17 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 

AND 

F&L FIRE AND ELECTRICAL SYSTEM, INC. 

 
THIS AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made effective as of the    day of   

  , 2022 (the “Effective Date”), by and between CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, 
a Florida municipal corporation, (the “City”) and F&L FIRE AND ELECTRICAL SYSTEM, INC., a 
Florida for-profit corporation (hereinafter, the “Contractor”). 

WHEREAS, the City desires certain citywide miscellaneous electrical services; and  

WHEREAS, the City issued Request for Proposals No. 01-22/23 (the “ITB”) seeking 
proposals from experienced and qualified electrical contractors to provide the services, design, 
labor, materials, equipment, and all incidentals necessary to provide citywide miscellaneous 
electrical services on an as-needed basis (the “Services,” as further defined herein); and 

WHEREAS, in response to the RFP, the Contractor submitted a proposal (the “Proposal”) 
which is incorporated herein by reference, for the Services and was thereafter selected by the 
City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City and Contractor, through mutual negotiation, have agreed upon a fee 
for the Services; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the Contractor to perform the Services and provide 
the deliverables as specified below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained 
herein, the City and the Contractor agree as follows: 

1. Scope of Services.  

1.1. The Contractor shall furnish the Services in accordance with the Scope of Services 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and provide deliverables for various project aspects for 
the City (each a “Project”), as requested by the City and detailed in a “Statement of 
Work” as shown in Exhibit “C” attached hereto which the City will provide the Contractor 
when engaging the Contractor to work on a specific Project. 

1.2. Prior to commencement of work on a specific Project, the Contractor will provide the 
City with a fixed lump sum or maximum (i.e., not to exceed) cost for the Services set forth 
in the Statement of Work calculated using the rates set forth on the Rate Schedule attached 
hereto as Exhibit “B.” 



City of Miami Springs, FL  Page 2 of 17 

1.3. If the City approves the fixed lump sum cost for the Project, the City will provide the 
Contractor with a Notice to Proceed to perform the Services set forth in the Statement of 
Work.  Contractor acknowledges that it shall not undertake to perform any Services on any 
Project until it has received from the City the Notice to Proceed on such Project.  

1.4. Contractor shall furnish all reports, documents, and information obtained pursuant to 
this Agreement, and recommendations during the term of this Agreement (hereinafter 
“Deliverables”) to the City. 

1.5. The Contractor shall abide by the terms and requirements of the RFP, as though fully set 
forth herein. 

2. Term/Commencement Date.   

2.1. The term of this Agreement shall be from the Effective Date through one year thereafter, 
unless earlier terminated in accordance with Paragraph 8.  Additionally, the City Manager 
may renew this Agreement for four additional one year periods on the same terms as set 
forth herein upon written notice to the Contractor. 

2.2. Contractor agrees that time is of the essence and Contractor shall complete the Services 
within the term of this Agreement, unless extended by the City Manager. 

3. Compensation and Payment.  

3.1. Compensation for Services provided by Contractor shall be in accordance with the approved 
cost set forth in the Statement of Work/Work Order or the Notice to Proceed for such 
Project, which shall be based on the Rate Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

3.2. Contractor shall deliver an invoice to City no more often than once per month detailing 
Services completed and the amount due to Contractor under this Agreement. Fees shall be 
paid in arrears each month, pursuant to Contractor’s invoice, which shall be based upon the 
percentage of work completed for each task invoiced. The City shall pay the Contractor in 
accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act after approval and acceptance of the 
Services by the City Manager. 

4. Subcontractors.  

4.1. The Contractor shall be responsible for all payments to any subcontractors and shall 
maintain responsibility for all work related to the Services. 

4.2. Contractor may only utilize the services of a particular subcontractor with the prior 
written approval of the City Manager, which approval may be granted or withheld in the 
City Manager’s sole and absolute discretion. 

5. City’s Responsibilities. 



City of Miami Springs, FL  Page 3 of 17 

5.1. City shall make available any maps, plans, existing studies, reports, staff and 
representatives, and other data pertinent to the Services and in possession of the City, 
and provide criteria requested by Contractor to assist Contractor in performing the 
Services.  

5.2. Upon Contractor’s request, City shall reasonably cooperate in arranging access to public 
information that may be required for Contractor to perform the Services. 

6. Contractor’s Responsibilities; Representations and Warranties. 

6.1. The Contractor shall exercise the same degree of care, skill and diligence in the 
performance of the Services as is ordinarily provided by a contractor under similar 
circumstances.  If at any time during the term of this Agreement or within two (2) years 
from the completion of this Agreement, it is determined that the Contractor’s 
Deliverables or Services are incorrect, not properly rendered, defective, or fail to 
conform to City requests, the Contractor shall at Contractor’s sole expense, immediately 
correct its Deliverables or Services. 

6.2. The Contractor hereby warrants and represents that at all times during the term of this 
Agreement it shall maintain in good standing all required licenses, certifications and permits 
required under Federal, State and local laws applicable to and necessary to perform the 
Services for City as an independent contractor of the City. Contractor further warrants and 
represents that it has the required knowledge, expertise, and experience to perform the 
Services and carry out its obligations under this Agreement in a professional and first 
class manner. 

6.3. The Contractor represents that is an entity validly existing and in good standing under 
the laws of Florida.  The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by 
Contractor have been duly authorized, and this Agreement is binding on Contractor and 
enforceable against Contractor in accordance with its terms.  No consent of any other 
person or entity to such execution, delivery and performance is required. 

7. Conflict of Interest.  

7.1. To avoid any conflict of interest or any appearance thereof, Contractor shall not, for the 
term of this Agreement, provide any consulting services to any private sector entities 
(developers, corporations, real estate investors, etc.), with any current, or foreseeable, 
adversarial issues in the City. 

8. Termination.  

8.1. The City Manager, without cause, may terminate this Agreement upon five (5) calendar 
days’ written notice to the Contractor, or immediately with cause. 

8.2. Upon receipt of the City's written notice of termination, Contractor shall immediately 
stop work on the project unless directed otherwise by the City Manager. 



City of Miami Springs, FL  Page 4 of 17 

8.3. In the event of termination by the City, the Contractor shall be paid for all work accepted 
by the City Manager up to the date of termination, provided that the Contractor has first 
complied with the provisions of Paragraph 8.4.   

8.4. The Contractor shall transfer all books, records, reports, working drafts, documents, 
maps, and data pertaining to the Services and the project to the City, in a hard copy and 
electronic format within fourteen (14) days from the date of the written notice of 
termination or the date of expiration of this Agreement.  

9. Insurance. 

9.1. Contractor shall secure and maintain throughout the duration of this agreement 
insurance of such types and in such amounts not less than those specified below as 
satisfactory to City, naming the City as an Additional Insured, underwritten by a firm 
rated A-X or better by A.M. Best and qualified to do business in the State of Florida. The 
insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to the City, its officials, 
employees, agents, and volunteers naming the City as additional insured. Any insurance 
maintained by the City shall be in excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not 
contribute to the Contractor’s insurance.  The insurance coverages shall include at a 
minimum the amounts set forth in this section and may be increased by the City as it 
deems necessary or prudent.  

9.1.1. Commercial General Liability coverage with limits of liability of not less than a 
$1,000,000 per Occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage. This Liability Insurance shall also include Completed Operations and 
Product Liability coverages and eliminate the exclusion with respect to property 
under the care, custody and control of Contractor.  The General Aggregate Liability 
limit and the Products/Completed Operations Liability Aggregate limit shall be in the 
amount of $2,000,000 each. 

9.1.2. Workers Compensation and Employer’s Liability insurance, to apply for all 
employees for statutory limits as required by applicable State and Federal laws. The 
policy(ies) must include Employer’s Liability with minimum limits of $1,000,000.00 
each accident. No employee, subcontractor or agent of the Contractor shall be 
allowed to provide Services pursuant to this Agreement who is not covered by 
Worker’s Compensation insurance. In order for this requirement to be waived, 
Contractor must provide proof of exemption from such laws. Information regarding 
eligibility for an exemption from the State of Florida Workers’ Compensation Law is 
available at:  

https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/wc/PublicationsFormsManualsReports/Br
ochures/Key-Coverage-and-Eligibility.pdf.  

Exemptions may be applied for online through the Florida Department of Financial 
Services, Division of Workers’ Compensation at:  

https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/wc/PublicationsFormsManualsReports/Brochures/Key-Coverage-and-Eligibility.pdf
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/wc/PublicationsFormsManualsReports/Brochures/Key-Coverage-and-Eligibility.pdf


City of Miami Springs, FL  Page 5 of 17 

https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/wc/Employer/Exemptions/default.htm. 

9.1.3. Business Automobile Liability with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence, 
combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage.  Coverage must be 
afforded on a form no more restrictive than the latest edition of the Business 
Automobile Liability policy, without restrictive endorsements, as filed by the 
Insurance Service Office, and must include Owned, Hired, and Non-Owned Vehicles. 

9.1.4. Professional Liability Insurance in an amount of not less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per occurrence, single limit. If Professional Liability Insurance is 
required, the City shall select this box: ☐. 

9.2. Certificate of Insurance.  Certificates of Insurance shall be provided to the City, reflecting 
the City as an Additional Insured (except with respect to Professional Liability Insurance 
and Worker’s Compensation Insurance), no later than ten (10) days after award of this 
Agreement and prior to the execution of this Agreement by City and prior to commencing 
Services.  Each certificate shall include no less than (30) thirty-day advance written notice 
to City prior to cancellation, termination, or material alteration of said policies or 
insurance.  The Contractor shall be responsible for assuring that the insurance 
certificates required by this Section remain in full force and effect for the duration of this 
Agreement, including any extensions or renewals that may be granted by the City. The 
Certificates of Insurance shall not only name the types of policy(ies) provided, but also 
shall refer specifically to this Agreement and shall state that such insurance is as required 
by this Agreement.  The City reserves the right to inspect and return a certified copy of 
such policies, upon written request by the City.  If a policy is due to expire prior to the 
completion of the Services, renewal Certificates of Insurance shall be furnished thirty 
(30) calendar days prior to the date of their policy expiration.  Each policy certificate shall 
be endorsed with a provision that not less than thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice 
shall be provided to the City before any policy or coverage is cancelled or restricted.  
Acceptance of the Certificate(s) is subject to approval of the City.  

9.3. Additional Insured. Except with respect to Professional Liability Insurance and Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance, the City is to be specifically included as an Additional Insured 
for the liability of the City resulting from Services performed by or on behalf of the 
Contractor in performance of this Agreement.  The Contractor’s insurance, including that 
applicable to the City as an Additional Insured, shall apply on a primary basis and any 
other insurance maintained by the City shall be in excess of and shall not contribute to 
the Contractor’s insurance.  The Contractor’s insurance shall contain a severability of 
interest provision providing that, except with respect to the total limits of liability, the 
insurance shall apply to each Insured or Additional Insured (for applicable policies) in the 
same manner as if separate policies had been issued to each. 

9.4. Deductibles. All deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and be 
reasonably approved by the City. The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of 
any deductible or self-insured retentions in the event of any claim. 

https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/wc/Employer/Exemptions/default.htm


City of Miami Springs, FL  Page 6 of 17 

9.5. The provisions of this section shall survive termination of this Agreement.  

10. Nondiscrimination. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall not discriminate 
against any of its employees or applicants for employment because of their race, color, 
religion, sex, or national origin, and will abide by all Federal and State laws regarding 
nondiscrimination. 

11. Attorneys Fees and Waiver of Jury Trial.  

11.1. In the event of any litigation arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party 
shall be entitled to recover its attorneys’ fees and costs, including the fees and expenses 
of any paralegals, law clerks and legal assistants, and including fees and expenses 
charged for representation at both the trial and appellate levels. 

11.2. IN THE EVENT OF ANY LITIGATION ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT, EACH 
PARTY HEREBY KNOWINGLY, IRREVOCABLY, VOLUNTARILY AND INTENTIONALLY WAIVES 
ITS RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY. 

12. Indemnification.  

12.1. Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and 
employees, from and against any and all demands, claims, losses, suits, liabilities, causes 
of action, judgment or damages, arising from Contractor’s performance or non-
performance of any provision of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, liabilities 
arising from contracts between the Contractor and third parties made pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Contractor shall reimburse the City for all its expenses including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in and about the defense of any such claim or 
investigation and for any judgment or damages arising from Contractor’s performance 
or non-performance of this Agreement.   

12.2. Nothing herein is intended to serve as a waiver of sovereign immunity by the City 
nor shall anything included herein be construed as consent to be sued by third parties in 
any matter arising out of this Agreement or any other contract. The City is subject to 
section 768.28, Florida Statutes, as may be amended from time to time. 

12.3. The provisions of this section shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

13. Notices/Authorized Representatives. Any notices required by this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been properly given if transmitted by hand-delivery, by 
registered or certified mail with postage prepaid return receipt requested, or by a private 
postal service, addressed to the parties (or their successors) at the addresses listed on the 
signature page of this Agreement or such other address as the party may have designated by 
proper notice. 



City of Miami Springs, FL  Page 7 of 17 

14. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  Venue for any proceedings arising out of this 
Agreement shall be proper exclusively in Miami-Dade County, Florida. 

15. Entire Agreement/Modification/Amendment. 

15.1. This writing contains the entire Agreement of the parties and supersedes any prior 
oral or written representations.  No representations were made or relied upon by either 
party, other than those that are expressly set forth herein. 

15.2. No agent, employee, or other representative of either party is empowered to 
modify or amend the terms of this Agreement, unless executed with the same formality 
as this document. 

16. Ownership and Access to Records and Audits.  

16.1. Contractor acknowledges that all inventions, innovations, improvements, 
developments, methods, designs, analyses, drawings, reports, compiled information, 
and all similar or related information (whether patentable or not) which relate to 
Services to the City which are conceived, developed or made by Contractor during the 
term of this Agreement (“Work Product”) belong to the City. Contractor shall promptly 
disclose such Work Product to the City and perform all actions reasonably requested by 
the City (whether during or after the term of this Agreement) to establish and confirm 
such ownership (including, without limitation, assignments, powers of attorney and 
other instruments).  

16.2. Contractor agrees to keep and maintain public records in Contractor’s possession 
or control in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Agreement. The City 
Manager or her designee shall, during the term of this Agreement and for a period of 
three (3) years from the date of termination of this Agreement, have access to and the 
right to examine and audit any records of the Contractor involving transactions related 
to this Agreement.   Contractor additionally agrees to comply specifically with the 
provisions of Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes.  Contractor shall ensure that public 
records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements are not disclosed, except as authorized by law, for the duration of the 
Agreement, and following completion of the Agreement until the records are transferred 
to the City. 

16.3. Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records, Contractor shall provide 
the City with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or 
copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided by 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.  



City of Miami Springs, FL  Page 8 of 17 

16.4. Unless otherwise provided by law, any and all records, including but not limited to 
reports, surveys, and other data and documents provided or created in connection with 
this Agreement are and shall remain the property of the City.  

16.5. Upon completion of this Agreement or in the event of termination by either party, 
any and all public records relating to the Agreement in the possession of the Contractor 
shall be delivered by the Contractor to the City Manager, at no cost to the City, within 
seven (7) days.  All such records stored electronically by Contractor shall be delivered to 
the City in a format that is compatible with the City’s information technology systems.  
Once the public records have been delivered upon completion or termination of this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall destroy any and all duplicate public records that are 
exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. 

16.6. Any compensation due to Contractor shall be withheld until all records are 
received as provided herein.   

16.7. Contractor’s failure or refusal to comply with the provisions of this section shall 
result in the immediate termination of this Agreement by the City. 

16.8. Notice Pursuant to Section 119.0701(2)(a), Florida Statutes. IF THE 
CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF 
CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO 
PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS: ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC, 201 
WESTWARD DRIVE, MIAMI SPRINGS, FL 33166, 305-805-5006, 
GONZALEZE@MIAMISPRINGS-FL.GOV. 

17. Nonassignability. This Agreement shall not be assignable by Contractor unless such 
assignment is first approved by the City Manager.  The City is relying upon the apparent 
qualifications and expertise of the Contractor, and such firm’s familiarity with the City’s area, 
circumstances and desires.  

18. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement shall to any extent be held invalid or 
unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and each 
remaining term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforceable to the 
fullest extent permitted by law. 

19. Independent Contractor. The Contractor and its employees, volunteers and agents shall be 
and remain an independent contractor and not an agent or employee of the City with respect 
to all of the acts and services performed by and under the terms of this Agreement.  This 
Agreement shall not in any way be construed to create a partnership, association or any other 
kind of joint undertaking, enterprise or venture between the parties. 



City of Miami Springs, FL  Page 9 of 17 

20. Compliance with Laws. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, 
rules, regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities in carrying out Services under this 
Agreement, and in particular shall obtain all required permits from all jurisdictional agencies 
to perform the Services under this Agreement at its own expense. 

21. Waiver. The failure of either party to this Agreement to object to or to take affirmative action 
with respect to any conduct of the other which is in violation of the terms of this Agreement 
shall not be construed as a waiver of the violation or breach, or of any future violation, breach 
or wrongful conduct. 

22. Survival of Provisions. Any terms or conditions of either this Agreement that require acts 
beyond the date of the term of the Agreement, shall survive termination of the Agreement, 
shall remain in full force and effect unless and until the terms or conditions are completed 
and shall be fully enforceable by either party. 

23. Prohibition of Contingency Fees. The Contractor warrants that it has not employed or 
retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the 
Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any 
person(s), company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for the Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or any other consideration, 
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. 

24. Public Entity Crimes Affidavit. Contractor shall comply with Section 287.133, Florida Statutes 
(Public Entity Crimes Statute), notification of which is hereby incorporated herein by 
reference, including execution of any required affidavit.  

25. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed an original and such counterparts shall constitute one and the same instrument.  

26. E-Verify Affidavit. In accordance with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, the City requires all 
contractors doing business with the City to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify 
the work authorization status of all newly hired employees. The City will not enter into a 
contract unless each party to the contract registers with and uses the E-Verify system. The 
contracting entity must provide of its proof of enrollment in E-Verify. For instructions on how 
to provide proof of the contracting entity’s participation/enrollment in E-Verify, please visit: 
https://www.e-verify.gov/faq/how-do-i-provide-proof-of-my-participationenrollment-in-e-
verify. By entering into this Agreement, the Contractor acknowledges that it has read Section 
448.095, Florida Statutes; will comply with the E-Verify requirements imposed by Section 
448.095, Florida Statutes, including but not limited to obtaining E-Verify affidavits from 
subcontractors; and has executed the required affidavit attached hereto and incorporated 
herein. 

27. Non-Exclusive Agreement. The City reserves the right to procure or acquire similar services 
from another provider while this Agreement is in full force and effect. 

https://www.e-verify.gov/faq/how-do-i-provide-proof-of-my-participationenrollment-in-e-verify
https://www.e-verify.gov/faq/how-do-i-provide-proof-of-my-participationenrollment-in-e-verify


City of Miami Springs, FL  Page 10 of 17 

28. Termination Due To Lack of Funding. This Agreement is subject to the condition precedents 
that: (i) City funds are available, appropriated and budgeted, for the Services annually for 
each year of the Term; (ii) the City secures and obtains any necessary proceeds, grants or 
loans for the accomplishment of the Services pursuant to any borrowing legislation adopted 
by the City Commission relative to the Services; and (iii) the City Commission enacts 
legislation or other necessary resolutions, which awards and authorizes the execution of this 
Agreement and the annual appropriation and budgeting for the Services. The City represents 
to Contractor that the City has adopted a resolution authorizing execution of this Agreement, 
if required by applicable law. 

29. Background Checks. Prior to the execution of this Agreement, the Contractor shall furnish 
the City with a copy of a screening and background check, including a criminal background 
check for Contractor, its officials, agents, employees or subcontractors providing Services 
under this Agreement.  The Contractor shall be responsible for updating the City in writing 
with any additions and deletions of the individuals authorized to provide Services under this 
Agreement.  In the event that additional individuals are authorized to perform such Services, 
the Contractor shall furnish the City with a copy of a screening and background check, 
including a criminal background check, prior to such individual commencing such Services.  It 
shall be in the City Manager’s complete and sole discretion as to whether the type of check 
and the results are acceptable. If compliance with this section is required, the City shall select 
this box: ☐. 

30. Conflicts; Order of Priority. This document without exhibits is referred to as the “Base 
Agreement.” In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and any exhibits 
or attachments hereto, or any documents incorporated herein by reference, the conflict shall 
be resolved in the following order of priorities and the more stringent criteria for 
performance of the Services shall apply: 

30.1. First Priority: Base Agreement;  

30.2. Second Priority: RFP No. 01-22/23 (if applicable); 

30.3. Third Priority: Exhibit A – Scope of Services (if applicable); 

30.4. Fourth Priority: Exhibit B – Rate Schedule (if applicable); 

 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank. Signature pages follow.] 
  



City of Miami Springs, FL  Page 11 of 17 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day and year as first 
stated above. 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS  
 
 
 
By:        
William Alonso, CPA, CGFO 
City Manager 
 
Attest:  
 
 
By:        
Erika Gonzalez, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form and legal sufficiency:  
 
 
By:        
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
City Attorney 
 
Addresses for Notice:  
City of Miami Springs 
Attn: City Manager 
201 Westward Drive 

Miami Springs, FL 33166 
305-805-5011 (telephone) 
alonsow@miamisprings-fl.gov (email) 
 
With a copy to:  
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
Attn: Haydee Sera, Esq.  
City of Miami Springs Attorney 
2800 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, 12th Floor 
Coral Gables, FL 33134 
hsera@wsh-law.com (email) 

CONTRACTOR 
 
 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
Title:        
 
Entity:        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Addresses for Notice:  
       
       
       
       
     (telephone) 
     (email) 
 
With a copy to:  
       
       
       
       
     (telephone) 
     (email) 
 



 

City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 12 of 17 

E-VERIFY AFFIDAVIT 
 

In accordance with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, the City requires all contractors doing 
business with the City to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work 
authorization status of all newly hired employees. The City will not enter into a contract unless 
each party to the contract registers with and uses the E-Verify system.  
 
The contracting entity must provide of its proof of enrollment in E-Verify. For instructions on 
how to provide proof of the contracting entity’s participation/enrollment in E-Verify, please visit: 
https://www.e-verify.gov/faq/how-do-i-provide-proof-of-my-participationenrollment-in-e-
verify  
 
By signing below, the contracting entity acknowledges that it has read Section 448.095, Florida 
Statutes and will comply with the E-Verify requirements imposed by it, including but not limited 
to obtaining E-Verify affidavits from subcontractors.  
 
☐ Check here to confirm proof of enrollment in E-Verify has been attached to this Affidavit. 
 
In the presence of:      Signed, sealed and delivered by: 
 
              
Witness #1 Print Name:     Print Name:       
       Title:        
Witness #2 Print Name:     Entity Name:       
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
State of Florida 
County of     
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of ☐ physical presence or ☐ 

online notarization, this   day of     , 20 , by    
  (name of person) as        (type of authority) for  
    (name of party on behalf of whom instrument is executed).  
 
 

        
Notary Public (Print, Stamp, or Type as Commissioned) 

 Personally known to me; or 
 Produced identification (Type of Identification:     ) 
 Did take an oath; or  
 Did not take an oath  

https://www.e-verify.gov/faq/how-do-i-provide-proof-of-my-participationenrollment-in-e-verify
https://www.e-verify.gov/faq/how-do-i-provide-proof-of-my-participationenrollment-in-e-verify


 

City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 13 of 17 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
 



CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 01-22/23 

 

Section 2. Services 
RFP Page 11 of 80 

SECTION 2 

SERVICES NEEDED BY THE CITY 

2.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Contractor shall provide all necessary labor, materials, equipment, reports and expertise required to 
provide the services, including but not limited to the tasks identified herein, which shall collectively be 
referred to as the “Services.” 

2.2 PURPOSE 

The City of Miami Springs is currently soliciting competitively sealed proposals from experienced and 
qualified electrical contractors to provide hourly service rates for licensed electrical services related to 
miscellaneous, as needed electrical work - citywide.  

2.3 DELIVERABLES 

The selected Contractor must have a minimum of one (1) State and County Licensed Master Electrician 
on staff as the qualifier for all jobs. The Contractor must furnish the labor, hand tools, general-purpose 
test instruments, materials, supervision, transportation/travel, construction equipment, machinery, tools, 
fuel and equipment necessary to complete all electrical work at the multiple facilities and locations within 
the City of Miami Springs.  

The selected Contractor must provide hourly rates for labor, on an "as needed" and/or "on call" basis, for 
providing repairs, maintenance, and replacement (new) electrical services throughout the City of Miami 
Springs. Please refer to the Scope of Services below. 

The majority of the work shall be accomplished during the normal work day, however, some of these 
services, due to emergency situations and special events, may be required at night, on weekends and after 
normal hours at the hourly rate proposed and at no additional cost to the City.  The Contractor shall be 
able to provide services available to the City on a 24 hour 7 day per week basis.   

2.4 MANAGEMENT  

The Contractor shall have sufficient number of personnel, materials, transportation and an adequate 
inventory of tools and equipment to perform work at the job site. The Contractor shall be held responsible 
for the on-site supervision, scheduling, storage, receiving and placement of materials, as well as proper 
billing for hours worked and equipment used. The use of City equipment and tools shall not be permitted. 

Management of this agreement includes the following: 

▪ All employees assigned by the Contractor to the performance of work under this agreement shall 
be physically able to do their assigned work. It shall be the Contractor’s responsibility to insure 
that all employees meet the physical standards to perform the work assigned and have sufficient 
training and experience to perform the work required in the specific trade. 

▪ The personnel employed by the Contractor shall be capable employees, age 18 years or above, 
qualified in this type of work. 

▪ It is the Contractor’s responsibility to ensure that all employees are legally allowed to work in the 
United States in accordance with Immigration policies. 

▪ Employees shall be required to dress neatly, without vulgar or otherwise offensive apparel, 
commensurate with the location and types of tasks being performed. 



CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 01-22/23 

 

Section 2. Services 
RFP Page 12 of 80 

▪ No smoking is permitted in/on any City owned facilities and properties. 

▪ The Contractor shall require employees to be dressed in proper work attire when reporting for 
duty. Break rooms and office areas are off-limits to the contractor.  

▪ The Contractor shall prohibit his employees from disturbing papers on desks, opening desk 
drawers or cabinets or using the telephone or office equipment provided for official use. 

▪ The Contractor shall require his employees to comply with the instructions pertaining to conduct 
and building regulations, issued by duly appointed officials, such as, the building managers, 
guards, inspectors, etc. 

▪ Employees may not solicit, distribute or sell products while on City property.  

▪ The City of Miami Springs, Florida, under the City’s “Drug-Free Work Place General Policy” 
recognizes that alcohol, drugs or any illegal substances are strictly prohibited on City property. 
Employees shall not possess or be under the influence of alcohol, drugs or any illegal substances 
while on City property. 

PROPER BEHAVIOR AND LANGUAGE BY ALL EMPLOYEES OR INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS OF THE 
CONTRACTOR AND SUB-CONTRACTOR ON OUR CITY PROPERTY IS STRICTLY REQUIRED. THE CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS WILL NOT TOLERATE POOR BEHAVIOR IN PUBLIC FACILITIES. 

2.4 COORDINATION OF WORK 

The Contractor will need to coordinate all work with the City from the start date to the completion of any 
project. Any changes within the work shall require prior approval from the Public Works Director or his 
designee. The Public Works Director or his designee shall inspect all work at various times or when called 
upon and on completion. No invoices can be paid unless approved by the Director or his designee and all 
projects require permitting and “Final Inspections” with the Building and Code Compliance Office.  

The Contractor is responsible for the entire project contracted, for the work that is self-performed, and 
work that is performed by subcontractors. Subcontractors may only be utilized for non-electrical work 
related to the project with prior approval by the City of Miami Springs. Subcontractors utilized by the 
Contractor (for non-electrical work only) shall be paid by the contractor.  Subcontractors shall not invoice 
the City.  

The Contractor shall supervise and direct the work, using his best skill and attention. He shall be solely 
responsible for all construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for 
coordinating all portions of the work under the agreement. 

2.5 LICENSING 

The Contractor must hold a certified and registered Master electrical contractor license with the State of 
Florida and Miami Dade County. This license must be valid at the time of the proposal opening and must 
remain in good standing during the term of the agreement. Copies must be provided with the proposal 
submittal and must be updated annually. The Contractor shall fully comply with Federal and State laws, 
County and Municipal ordinances and regulations in any manner affecting the performance of work. 
Contractor shall notify the City if any change occurs in regards to licenses. 

The Contractor shall provide the City of Miami Springs with a vendor application and signed copy of their 
W-9 form, (Request for Taxpayer Identification Number). 

 

 



CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 01-22/23 

 

Section 2. Services 
RFP Page 13 of 80 

2.6 PROPOSALS 

The Contractor must have successfully completed, within the past three (3) years, a minimum of five (5) 
commercial electrical projects where the agreement amount was $20,000.00 or more. 

The Contractor shall complete all required forms. These must be completed and contain sufficient and 
specific information which directly responds to the request. The City reserves the right to reject any and 
all proposals at its sole discretion.  

Licensed Electricians shall have: 

▪ Considerable knowledge of the standard tools, materials, methods and practices of the electrical 
trade. 

▪ Considerable knowledge of the principles and theory of electricity. 

▪ Considerable knowledge of the occupational hazards and safety precautions of the electrical trade 
and ability to work with high voltages. 

▪ Ability to install, alter, repair, maintain and locate defects in a variety of electrical equipment and 
systems. 

▪ Ability to interpret and work from technical sketches and blue prints. 

▪ Skills in the use and care of the standard tools, equipment and testing devices utilized in the trade. 

2.7 LABOR AND HOURLY RATES 

The Contractor shall furnish all labor (at an hourly rate), tools, equipment, and transportation to provide 
electrical work at multiple facilities and locations within the City of Miami Springs. These services shall 
include "on call services" "on an as needed basis" for small to large electrical projects, maintenance and 
service repairs.  

Labor and equipment with operator provided by the Contractor shall be billed to the City based on the 
hourly rates proposed in the "Proposal Price Sheet" attached. The hourly rate proposed shall include full 
compensation for labor, equipment use, travel time and any other cost (including overhead and profit) to 
the contractor. The rate for all daily work is to be considered straight time for all labor unless previously 
authorized in writing. 

The scope of work may include, but is not limited to, repairing, replacing or providing new services for any 
of the types of work listed below: 

▪ Troubleshoot and correct problems in electrical systems of any size and voltage both indoors and 
outdoors 

▪ Small to large electrical projects (which includes both above ground and underground services) 

▪ Various types of fans, lights, transformers, electric motors,  generators, card readers, controllers, 
GFI, circuit breakers, automatic doors, photocells, circuitry upgrades, voice and data systems, 
Fiber Optic cabling, RF transceivers and camera systems, network cabling solutions, resetting 
timers for irrigation, lighting, A/C and elevator systems, panel boards, fire alarm panels, fueling 
systems, motion sensors 

▪ Conduit, circuits, main and sub-panels, switches and switch gear 

▪ Pulling wires 

▪ Repair or replacement of underground feeders; various wire sizes and voltages 



CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 01-22/23 

 

Section 2. Services 
RFP Page 14 of 80 

▪ Upgrade power to various locations 

▪ Install new power drops – various sizes and phases 

▪ To provide maintenance on athletic field light pole lamps, alignment of bracket and support 
bracing and realignment of light fixtures  

▪ Roadway and over head streetlights (bollard, cobra heads, and related fixture) lighting, pole/post 
lighting, roadway sign lighting, parking lot and all associated electrical devices 

▪ Park and athletic field lighting  

▪ Golf and facility lighting, roadway sign lighting, parking lot and all associated electrical devices 

▪ Lamps, fixtures, brackets, coax wire and hardware, as special equipment may be required 

▪ Removal and installing of new wood, concrete and steel poles on athletic field 

▪ Holiday lighting and any other related electrical services as determined by the City 

▪ Unshielded copper cabling installation and testing for Category 5E and Category 6 cables  

▪ Fiber optic cable installation, termination, splicing and testing for multimode fiber optic systems 

The Contractor’s time shall start on the job site. Any and all travel time expenses shall be borne by the 
Contractor and will not be reimbursed by the City. All such work is at the contractor’s agreed upon hourly 
rate. 

2.8  EQUIPMENT  

The Contractor is required to have necessary equipment and adequate means and methods to access 
fixtures, lamps, lenses and other ancillary parts to accomplish the scope of work. By no means is the list 
below a complete list of required work.  

At minimum, the types of equipment required are as follows: 

▪ Hydraulic bucket-truck with a reach capacity of no less than 25 Feet 

▪ Scissor lift with a reach of no less than up to 30 feet in height 

▪ Form of wireless communication between the Contractor and the City 

▪ Trenching equipment 

▪ Service equipment including but not limited to, extension ladders, conduit bending 
equipment, and electrical testing equipment 

2.9 MATERIALS AND PARTS 

Materials shall be furnished by the Contractor as requested by the City. The City reserves the right to 
furnish materials to the Contractor.  

In accordance with the Florida Statute, the Contractor and any Subcontractors shall include the sales tax 
in calculating their individual job proposals. The clause allows the City, after an agreement award, to 
designate materials and equipment which will be purchased directly by the City in a tax-exempt purchase 
and delivered to the job site for incorporation into the project. 

It is further agreed that the City take advantage of any cash discounts offered by the supplier for prompt 
payment. 



CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 01-22/23 

 

Section 2. Services 
RFP Page 15 of 80 

The Contractor shall be responsible to the City for the acts and omissions of its employees, subcontractors, 
and agents and employees, and other persons performing any of the work under the agreement with the 
Contractor. 

Unless otherwise provided in the project documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for all labor, 
materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, transportation, and other facilities 
and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the project whether temporary or 
permanent and whether or not incorporated in the project. 

The Contractor warrants to the City that all materials and equipment, if applicable, furnished under this 
Contract shall be new unless otherwise specified, and that all work will be of good quality, free from faults 
and defects and in conformance with the project specifications. All work not conforming to these 
requirements, including substitutions not properly approved and authorized, may be considered 
defective. If required by the City, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and 
quality of materials and equipment. 

The Contractor shall notify the City of Miami Springs, in writing, of any conditions detrimental to proper 
and timely completion of work. Do not proceed with work until unsatisfactory conditions have been 
corrected. 

2.10 PROJECTS OVER $5,000.00 

Some projects required by the City may be anticipated to exceed the cost of $5,000.00. In these cases, the 
City reserves the right to separately price out and request proposals, at its discretion, for these electrical 
jobs. Therefore, it will be the responsibility of the awarded contractor to notify the City immediately, in 
writing, of any work that they anticipate to exceed $5,000.00 which may be discovered while performing 
other required repair services for the City. It shall however, remain the contractor’s responsibility to 
eliminate any unsafe conditions upon discovery even if only intended as temporary solutions and repairs.  

For projects over $5,000.00, the Contractor shall provide an estimate with sufficient detail and in a format 
acceptable to the City. Lump sum estimates will not be accepted. Should the contractor require additional 
information prior to estimate/proposal, requests must be made to the Public Works Director or his 
designee. The Contractor shall complete the total estimate to accomplish the work and will identify any 
additional tasks necessary to satisfactorily accomplish the overall scope of work. The Contractor must 
return the estimate to the Director within five (5) business days, or as otherwise directed. 

The Contractor’s estimate will be evaluated to determine if the scope has been clearly and accurately 
understood, the work has been properly estimated with supporting data presented and that material and 
equipment estimates are reasonable and properly documented. The City reserves the right to secure a 
additional quotes from other contractors. 

The estimate provided by the Contractor shall be firm; no increases will be permitted unless unforeseen 
circumstances arise while the services are being performed. 

The City may, in its sole discretion, allow the work to be done without the solicitation of other quotes, if 
deemed in the best interest of the City. In this case, the contractor, at the City’s discretion, may be 
requested to perform the work. 

The Contractor acknowledges that work will be performed only after receipt of an authorized purchase 
order or an executed agreement 

If, during the course of work, the Contractor encounters unforeseen conditions which impact the work, 
and which could not initially be evaluated, the contractor shall provide timely notification to the Public 
Works Director or his designee and not proceed until a written authorization has been issued. 



CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 01-22/23 

 

Section 2. Services 
RFP Page 16 of 80 

2.11 EMERGENCY WORK 

Emergency Work requests may be needed from time to time. The Contractor shall within two (2) hours’ 
notice report to the emergency job site, verify the emergency and proceed with work without delay. The 
work completed must be in response to an emergency request. All other findings must be noted and 
reported immediately to the Public Works Director. The work must be completed to ensure “safety” 
guidelines are met. Any additional required work must be completed the following business day.  

The Contractor’s time shall start on the job site. Any and all travel time expenses shall be borne by the 
Contractor and will not be reimbursed by the City. All such work is at the contractor’s agreed upon hourly 
rate. 

2.12 ELECTRICAL STANDARDS 

The National Electrical Code, all local codes, and Owner’s Standards shall govern for all electrical 
equipment and construction work. Should conflicts between the Agreement Documents and such codes 
exist, they shall be immediately brought to the attention of the Owner. 

The Contractor shall, and in addition to all other guarantees, be responsible for faulty labor or 
workmanship and shall promptly correct improper work, without cost to the City, within 48 hours after 
receipt of notification of such faulty labor or workmanship. If the Contractor fails within 48 hours to 
correct defects, the Owner shall retain the right to have such work remedied and the Contractor shall be 
fully liable for all costs and expense reasonably incurred by the Owner. Payments in full or otherwise do 
not constitute a waiver of this guarantee. The guarantee period shall be effective for one (1) year after 
acceptance of the work by the City. 

2.13 PROTECTION 

The Contractor shall exercise caution at all times for the protection of persons (including employees) and 
property. The safety and convenience of the general public and the businesses adjacent to the work shall 
be provided for in a satisfactory manner, as determined by the City.  

The Contractor, at all times, shall conduct the work in such a manner as to insure the least obstruction to 
pedestrian and vehicular traffic as is practical. “Street Closed” signs shall be placed immediately adjacent 
to the Work, in a conspicuous position, at such locations as traffic demands. Barricades must be provided 
by the Contractor at Contractor’s expense, when work is performed in areas traversed by persons or 
vehicles, or when deemed necessary by the City’s Representative. At any time that the streets are required 
to be closed, the Contractor shall notify the Police Department and Public Works Department before any 
closures occur and again as soon as it is opened.  

The Contractor shall conform to all Federal, State, County, City regulations during the performance of the 
Agreement. Any fines levied due to inadequacies or failure to comply with any and all requirements shall 
be the sole responsibility of the Contractor. Any person found not in conformance with any laws, statutes, 
rules or regulations will not be allowed on the job site. Continued violations by a Contractor shall 
constitute cause for immediate termination of the Agreement.  

All existing structures, utilities, services, roads, trees, shrubbery, etc., shall be protected against damage 
or interrupted service at all times by the Contractor and the Contractor shall be held responsible for any 
damage to property caused by reason of its operations on the property. 

2.14 CLEAN WORKSPACES 

The Contractor shall keep the premises free from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused by 
his operations and shall clean up behind the work as much as reasonably possible during the work 



CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 01-22/23 

 

Section 2. Services 
RFP Page 17 of 80 

progress. At the completion of the work he shall remove all his waste materials and rubbish from the 
location, as well as, all tools, construction equipment and machinery so that no further cleaning by the 
City is necessary. The Contractor is not permitted to use City trash receptacles. An on-site dumpster may 
be placed at the jobsite with prior written approval from the Public Works Director or his designee. The 
Contractor shall restore all property which has been disturbed or damaged during the work; and shall 
leave the area in a neat and presentable condition. 

2.15 LOCATING UNDERGROUND LINES & UTILITIES 

The Contractor will be responsible for locating all existing underground utility services. The Contractor is 
responsible for contacting Sunshine State on call of Florida, before any excavation or penetration of the 
earth. This is to satisfy Florida Statue Chapter 556. Sunshine One will need 48 hours notification before 
such work can commence.  

Should damage occur due to negligence on the part of the contractor, it is the contractor’s responsibility 
to see that items are restored and repaired in a manner acceptable to the City.   

The City of Miami Springs shall require a full one (1) year warranty on all materials and workmanship for 
each job completed. The warranty shall commence from the date of acceptance of the work. 

2.16 INVOICING 

After the work called for on a purchase order has been completed, the Contractor shall be required to 
submit invoices to the Public Works Department with actual hours used to perform the work (by category 
of personnel); to be verified by Project Manager or Supervisor, date and time the work was initiated and 
completed, where the work was completed; and a detailed breakdown of the materials used to complete 
the work, with copies of receipts attached. Public Works will need to verify and sign-off on all work 
completed prior to any payments being made.  

All invoices must be submitted via U.S. Regular Mail to: 

  Finance Department 
  ATTENTION: [Insert Department Request] 
  City of Miami Springs 
  201 Westward Drive 
  Miami Springs, FL 33166 
 
2.17 HOURS OF WORK 

The majority of this work shall be accomplished during the normal work day. Work that is scheduled shall 
be considered as normal work days and shall be invoiced as straight time at the rate awarded. Some work 
on street light poles, etc. may require working at night, weekends and/or after hours, this will be at the 
sole discretion of the contractor, although all work must be invoiced at the regular rate. No overtime will 
be paid for these services. 

2.18  BOUNDARIES OF WORK 

Contractor must be familiar with the corporate limits of the City of Miami Springs. Refer to City map, 
Exhibit B attached. By submitting a proposal, the proposer certifies that he/she is familiar with the City 
boundaries and the proposed scope of work required.  

 

 



CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 01-22/23 

 

Section 2. Services 
RFP Page 18 of 80 

2.19 CITY'S RESPONSIBILITY 

The City shall determine how the Contractor will receive access to the facility. If the contractor loses 
building access key(s), the Contractor shall pay the City the cost to replace hardware as necessary to 
secure the building(s) to its/their original level of security. 

2.20 SIGNIFICANT CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP 

If Respondent is a corporation (other than one whose shares are regularly and publicly traded on a 
recognized stock exchange), partnership, limited liability company, or other business entity, Respondent 
represents that the ownership and power to control such entity belongs to and is vested in the person or 
persons executing its agreement with the City and/or as disclosed to City prior to executing the 
agreement. If there shall occur any changes of ownership of and/or control of respondent, whether such 
change of ownership is by sale, assignment, bequest, inheritance, operation of law or otherwise, without 
the prior written consent of the City, then City shall have the option to terminate the agreement upon 
thirty (30) days’ notice to Respondent. 

 
END OF SECTION 2



 

City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 14 of 17 

EXHIBIT B 
RATE SCHEDULE 

 



 

City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 15 of 17 

 
  



 

City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 16 of 17 

 
  



 

City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 17 of 17 

EXHIBIT C 
STATEMENT OF WORK 

 
[INSERT SAMPLE STATEMENT OF WORK] 


	Agenda Summary - November 14, 2022
	Agenda Summary p, 2
	4A Artist of the Month
	6A Minutes - October 24, 2022
	6B Minutes - Ocotber 27, 2022
	8A Ordinance - EAR Amendments
	8B Ordinance - Water Supply Amendmants
	8C Ordinance - FLUM 1101 Wren Ave
	8D Resolution - Tentative Plat for 1101 Wren Ave.
	9A Resolution - Tennis Courts Resurfacing
	9B Resolution - Hook Square Pump House Grant
	9C Resolution - Electrical Services City-Wide

	Federal Award Identification Numbers FAIN: 
	Federal Award Date to Department: 
	Total Federal Funds Obligated by this Agreement: 
	Federal Awarding Agency: 
	Grantee Name: City of Miami Springs
	Printed Name and Title of Person: William Alonso, City Manager, City of Miami Springs
	Printed Name and Title of Person_2: Angela Knecht, Director, Division of Water Restoration Assistance
	Additional signatures attached on separate page: On
	Date Grantee signed: 
	Date DEP Signed: 
	Agreement Number: LPA0336
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Off


